Ticker Number: 5904

Poya International Co., Lid

2015 Annual Report

Website for inquiry at MOP Sitp://mops.twse.com.tw/mops/web/index

Poya official websitetttp://www.poya.com.tw

Date of printing: April 27, 2016



V1.

The spokesman and the acting spokesman

Name of spokesman: Shen Hong-Yu

Title: Manager, Finance and Accounting Division
Telephone: (06)241-1000

E-mail: simon@poya.com.tw

Name of acting spokesman: Hu Chun-Sheng

Title: Section Manager, Finance and Accounting Eiom
Telephone: (06)241-1000

E-mail: fin888@poya.com.tw

Address and telephone numbers of the corporateqnea@rs and the
branchesPlease refer to page 146~148

Shares Registration Agent:

Name: Shares Registration Service Dept, Hua Naariies Co., Ltd.
Address: 4F, No. 54, Ming Sheng East Road Sectiphdipei
Telephone: (02)2718-6425

Website: http://www.entrust.com.tw

External auditors of the financial statement cawgrthe previous fiscal

period

Name of firm: PriceWaterhouse Coopers Taiwan
Names of CPAs: Lee Ming-Hsien, Liou Tzu-Meng
Address: 12F, No. 395, Lin Sen Road Section I, diain
Telephone: (06)234-3111

Website: http://www.pwc.tw

Name of exchanges in foreign countries where thengamy is listed for
securities trade and the means of access to infmmmabn overseas
securitiesNone

Company websitenttp://www.poya.com.tw



V.

Table of Contents

LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS .......oooiiiiiiiiee ettt snnenee e 1

COMPANY OVERVIEW ..ottt ettt e e et e e e e e et e s snsseee e e e e e annneneeeas 5

1. Date of Incorporation 5

2. Company History 5

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE........ccttiiiie ettt e e e s et e e e e e snnnee e e e nnnseeeeas 8

1. Organizational Structure 8

2. Information on the Directors, Supervisors, Gendftahager, Vice General Manager,
Assistant Vice General Manager, Heads of Divisiamd Branches 10

3. Remunerations to the Directors, Supervisors, GéMamnaager, and the Vice General
Manager in the Previous Fiscal Year 19

4. Corporate Governance in Action 23

5. Information on the Fees for Certified Public Acctamts 46

6. Information on the Replacement of Certified PuBloacountants 47

7. If the Chairman, General Manager, Finance or ActingrManager of the Company

Has Been Working in the Accounting Firm of the CRAdts Affiliates within the Last
Year, the Name and Title of the Personnel and gre& of Such Working Relation
Existing 48

8. Inthe Last Fiscal Period as of the Date This RgMas Printed, the Status of the
Transfer of Shares or the Shares in Pledge Hettidirectors, Supervisors, Managers
or the Shareholders with More than 10% of the CamjgeShares 49

9. Information Showing that Top 10 Shareholders HéeeRelationship with One Another
as the Related Parties, Spouse or Kindred wittar2tid Tier 50

10. The Quantity of Shareholdings of a Particular Regiment Business Held by the
Company, Its Directors, Supervisors, Managers hadrtvestment Business Directly or
Indirectly Controlled by the Company, and the Cdidsted Percentage of Combined
Shareholdings 50

CAPITAL PROJECTION AND IMPLEMENTATION .....cc. it 51

1. Capital Stock and Shares 51

2. Corporate Bonds 59

3. Preferred Shares 59

4. The Issuance of Overseas Depository Receipts 59

5. The Issuance of Employee Stock Options 59

6. New Shares Restricted to Employees 59

7. Acquisition of New Shares from Other CompaniestlgioMergers and Acquisitions or
Assignment 59

8. Capital Planning and Implementation 59



V. OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS. ...ciiiiiiii e 60

VI.

VIII.

1. The Content of Business 60

2. Market and Sale Overview 67

3. Inthe Last Two Years as of the Date This Repor$ Rhanted, the Number of
Employees, Average Working Period, Average Age Eddcation 71

4. Information on the Expenditures for EnvironmentadtBction 71

5. Labor-Management Relationship 71

6. Material Contracts 81

FINANCIAL INFORMATION .....iiiiiiititiiiis ceeeeeeee st e e e e e e e e e e e e e seseestbbbeneeeeeees 82

1. Condensed Balance Sheets and Consolidated Incatesrgints in the Last Five
Years 82

2. Financial Analysis in the Last Five Years 86

3. Audit Committee' Review Report on Financial Statetw# Last Fiscal Year 91

4. Financial Information in Last Fiscal Year 92

5. The Audited Financial Statement of the Companyflteghe Last Fiscal Year 92

6. Any Insolvency for the Company and the Affiliatestihe Last Fiscal Period and to the
Date This Report Was Printed, and the Effect orFihancial Position 92

VII. FINANCIAL POSITION, FINANCIAL OPERATION IN REV  IEW, AND RISK
AS SESSIMENT L.ttt et e oo e e e e bbbt e e e e e e e bbb 93

1. Financial Position 93

2. Financial Performance 94

3. Cash Flow 95

4. Major Capital Expenditure in the Last Fiscal Yead dts Effect on Financial Position
and Operation 96

5. Reinvestment Policy in the Last Fiscal Year, therMReason for Profits or Losses, the
Improvement Plan, and the Investment Plan in tree ¥@ead 96

6. Risk Analysis and Assessment 97

7. Other Important Notice 101

SPECIAL NOTES ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e s s s nrr e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e nnanes 102

1. Information on the Affiliates 102

2. From the Last Fiscal Year to the Date This Repas\Rrinted, Any Issuance of
Securities through Private Placement 102

3. From the Last Fiscal Year to the Date This Repas$ \Rrinted, the Holding or
Disposition of Equity Shares by the Company 102

4. Other Supplementary Note 102

5. From the Last Fiscal Year to the Date This Repas\Rrinted, Any Event that

Significantly Affects the Shareholders' Equity do&k Price of the Company as Stated
in Article 36-111-(Il) of the Securities and Exchga Act: No 102



l. Letter to the Shareholders

Letter to the Shareholders

Dear shareholders,
1. 2016 Business plan

In 2015, the global economy grew weakly becausewéral factors such as slow growth
rate of global trading and Chinese economy, dedliprices of international materials and
lower economy growth rate than expected in emergiagkets. The decreasing prices of
international crude oil also cause effect on groeftglobal economy and resource allocation.
Although the declining oil prices do help to raike private consumption and corporate
investment, it may also lead to negative impaceconomy of the countries exporting
materials. Besides, the bad exporting performahdaisvan, which is caused by the
development of local supply chain in China, impdhktsinvestors’ willingness and the
recruitment in domestic. As a result, the privaitesumption turned conservative, the growth
of domestic demand would be lower than expected.r&te of consumption growth is approx.
2.54% in 2015 from the DGBAS (Directorate-GenefaBodget Accounting and Statistics,
Executive Yuan) forecast. The economic recoverycivis expected in 2016 will be beneficial
to shift the resource into the investments and ggp&/hen the time comes, the investment
and exports will grow leading to higher private somption.

Facing changeable environment, climate change apdlation structure shift, Poya shall
keep making differentiation by market positioninggrading its services and developing new
products to pursue better operating performancéh YWe support of all personnel and the
management, there are 131 stores national wideebgrid of 2015, The net sales and net
profits after tax in 2015 are NT$10.7 billion and$0.95 billion respectively, both of which
reached the record highs.

In term of the business operation, Poya will introel the 8 generation store to upgrade
the image of market positioning and to activatesdiéng place with the spirits of “Beauty,
Trendy, and Color.” In addition to creating braradue, Poya will also focus on product quality.
With the core value of offering more and higherr@to (Cost-Performance Ratio) products,
Poya can raise the satisfaction level of the custenfs there is the trend of consuming
fair-priced and fashion products, Poya will irregyly offer promotion and hold activities to
reward our customers. We hope to intensify thetpasieeling in fair-price for our customers,
and provide great fun when they make the purchsesover, Poya will keep providing
better services, tracing the consuming behaviothk@members periodically, and maintaining
the permanent value of the customers.



2. 2015 Business results

(1) The implementation of the business |

Unit : NT$ 1,000

Title/amount FY201t FY2014 C:r:giit'n ;222?50':
Net sales 10,687,82 9,167,590 1,520,235 16.58%
Cost of goods sold (6,310,255 | (5,456,820) 853,435 15.64%
Gross profits 4,377,57 3,710,770 666,800 17.97%
Operating expenses | (3,248,955 (2,815,877) 433,078 15.38%
Operating income 1,128,61! 894,893 233,722 26.12%
i':'}‘;g;:gjﬁggpenses 20,300 42,139 (21,839)  (51.83%)
Earnings before tax 1,148,91! 937,032 211,883 22.61%
Earnings after tax 952,145 772,462 179,683 23.26%
Basic EPS (in NT$) 10.00 8.14 1.86 22.85%

A. The growth of net sales and national store nundraam stable. The growth rate
store number in 2015 20.18%.

Unit: StoresNT$ 1,000

Title/year FY201Z FY2013 FY2014 FY2015
Net sales 6,272,81! 7,249,459 9,167,590/ 10,687,825
Total

otal store number 74 g7 109 131
(Note)

Note: The store number in 2014, which was , was used as thmsis for the calculation of the growth rate

new stores.
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(2)

Financial structure and profitability analysis

Title FY2015 FY2014
Ratio of liabilities to assets (%) 51.78 50.89
Financial
Ratio of long-term capital to real
Structure _ 167.98 184.71
estate, plants, and equipment (%)
Return on assets (ROA) (%) 18.14 17.52
Return on equity (ROE) (%) 37.06 34.93
Profitability —.
Profit ratio (%) 8.91 8.43
Basic EPS (NT$)Note) 10.00 8.14

Note : EPS is calculated on the basis of the weightedsaeequantity of outstanding shares for the year.

ROE and ROA

40.00% 1193
- 17
35.00% mmw 06%
30.00% T ET
25.00% -
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15.00% e L
D.—
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3. Business policy

(1) Introduce the 8generation stores to make differentiated markeitipos

Hold the core spirits of “Beauty, Trendy, Color’oya will introduce &
generation stores. Poya will not only focus on bhe&nd image intensification, store
beautification and medium visibility, but also pemphasis on optimization of the
product display and exhibition of hotspots in tlelisg space in order to create a
store with human warmth. By creating innovated hess operation and offering
more comfortable, brighter shopping space, Poyadespen the market position and
image; also, lead to a new century.



(2) Intensify the competitive ability of stores by @iféntiated marketing

Poya can cultivate specific selling points to i the traffic, sales and net
profits by means of effective market researcheskwhelp to understand the
customers’ demands and market position, outstarativgntages which help to create
brand value, and differentiated marketing actigitaé each store which help to
intensify the competitive ability of stores in eavlarket region.

(3) Enhance the competitive ability of category manag@m

Poya devotes itself to greater product competittgsnmore effective inventory
control, deeper product categories and higher cetapéss of product mix in order to
satisfy the customers’ needs at different levelsncrease the selling opportunity of
products in different area, and to remain the leggosition in each product category.

Poya aims at the objective of becoming as “A moedegpred Poya by the
customers”, and hopes to provide better produadssarvices so that customers will
give priority to Poya whenever making a purchaseddition, Poya will implement
the sustainable spirit on environment, society @mporate governance for perpetual
growth and corporate sustainability. On behalfhef management, we are appreciated
to the supports of all shareholders, customerssapgliers, and the dedication of all
personnel. We will spare no efforts in raising argte value for our shareholders.
Wish everyone health and luck!

Poya International Co., Ltd.
Chen Jian-Zao, Chairman
Chen Zong-Cheng, General Manager

Shen Hong-Yu, Financial and Accounting Manager



.  Company Overview

Company Overview

1. Date of incorporation: March 12 1997

2. Company history:

March 1997

April 1997

June 1998

October 1998

March 1999

June 1999

August 1999

November 1999

December 1999

February 2000

April 2000

June 2000

Established Hua Ya Daily Items Compamyited, with a stated capital of
NT$20 million.

Reorganized the Company as Hua Ya Diédys Company Limited by
shares.

Officially adopted Poya and DOU CHINresttademarks of the Company
for the corporate identity system.

Set up the San Min Branch at Tai Rogd, Taichung, with the intention
of expanding the retailing market in central Taiwan

Set up the Wen Heng Branch at Wen H&8h&@ad, Kaohsiung, with the
intention of enlarging the market share and theraips scale in
department store and boutique industry in Kaohsiung

Renamed the Company as Poya DepartneatGt., Ltd, and expanded
its business scope by a resolution of the Regutareholder Meeting in
1998.

Set up the Tung Ning Branch at TunggNRoead in Tainan City.

Relocated the Company headquartéot@4, Min Tzu Road Section IlI,
Tainan City.

Completed the design of tffegneration CIS and established a brand
new corporate identity system

Purchased the inventories and fissdta of operation sites of Pao Ching
Wu Co., Ltd. at Chia Nan District and Chang Yuntbas$ to set up the
Hsiao Pei Branch and the Feng Chia Branch.
Set up the Tou Liu Branch at Tou Liu YCinh Yun Lin County. Being
different from the principles of branch expansiommetropolitan cities, the
Company started to launch their plan for the dewelent of mid-size
urban centers.

Change the Company’s name from Poya Degar Store Co., Ltd. to

Poya International Co., Ltd.
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August 2000

January 2001

August 2001
April 2002

September 2002

September 2002

December 2002

December 2003

September 2005

March 2007

July 2008

December 2009

January 2011

July 2011

July 2012

August 2013

May 2014

August 2014

Entered into an agreement with Hua Sacurities Co., Ltd. for the
supervision of listing on Taipei Exchange. The Camp prepared for
listing on Taipei Exchange and transferred its apen to a new era.

Set up the Yuan Lin Branch at the MuanTownship in Chang Hua
County.

Set up the Feng Shan Branch in Feng Shg in Kaohsiung County.
Registered as an emerging stock on Talpechange of Taiwan for
enhancing the Company’s awareness before entenmdrading market,
and establishing the Company’s image to its custsmich helped the
Company in business developments and product sales.

Set up the Liberty Branch on LibRdgd in Kaohsiung City.

Listed on Taipei Exchange and gsatipn entered into a new era.

Set up the Wen Hsin Branch at Wen Reiad in Taichung City, which
was the 18 branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.

Completed the design of tffeg@neration CIS and established a brand
new corporate identity system.

Set up the San Min Branch in ChiCRgiin Hsinchu County, which was
the 20" branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.

Set up the Ta Tun Branch at Ta Tun Rod&ichung City, which was the
30" Branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.

Set up the Shueh Shi Branch at HsuelR8ad in Taichung City, which
was the 48 Branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.

Set up the Nan Ping Branch at Nag Raad in Taoyuan County, which
was the 58 Branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.

Completed the design of tAegéneration CIS and established a brand
new corporate identity system.

Set up the Pa Te Branch at Chieh Shoul Ro#&a Te City in Taoyuan
County, which was the 80Branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.

Set up the Po Ai Branch at Po Ai RoacCinu Nan Township in Miaoli
County, which was the Y0Branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.

Set up the Ching Wu East Branch at@Wn East Road in Taichung City,
which was the 80 Branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.

Set up the Chung Cheng Branch at Nan Ktamg Cheng Road in Miaoli
County, which was the 80Branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.

Set up the Jinhua Branch at Jinhua Roddinan City, which was the
100" Branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.
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January 2015 Set up the Hankou Branch at Hankou Rodaichung City, which was
the 118" Branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.

September 2015 Set up the Siangyang Branch aty&iagdRroad in Taichung City, which
was the 128 Branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.

December 2015  Set up the farglory Branch at SeBintai 5th Rd. Section I, in New Taipei
City, which was the 130Branch of Poya International Co., Ltd.



lIl.  Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance

1. Organizational Structure

(1) Organizational Chart of the Company
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(2) Main Duties of Each Division

Division ' Main Duties

Audit Office

L 4

Review and evaluate the effectiveness of the iaterantrol system of the
Company and provide relevant information for thenagement in time for the
more efficient execution of assigned duties.

Formulate and implement the annual audit plan asgdare the audit reports.
Keep track of the status of corrective action assirgg non-conformities on the
basis of the audit findings.

Office of General
Manager

Formulate, analyze and implement the businessypofithe Company.

Give managerial advices to each division of the Gamny.

Overall manage the branch expansion and colleantir&et information.

Overall manage the formulation, evaluation and angntation of each business
plan of the Company.

Formulate the mid-term and long-term developmeategy.

Coordinate the execution of each division and @eaall managerial systems.

Business Planning
Division

Direct and coordinate the operation of each braant,achieve the annual goals
sales and profits.

Formulate the business plan and product display foleeach branch, and
supervise the branches to achieve the business goal

Implement the promotional activities and keep tddhe results.

Development
Division

Expand new branches.
Investigate into the selection of branch locatiad the operation of new branche
Investigate into the market size

Human Resources
and Administrative
Division

* * 6 O oo

* 6 06 0 0

Perform the duties relating to the personnel amdimidtration affairs, such as the
recruitment, employment and dismissal, educati@hteaining, evaluation and
attendance management, payroll management of htesaarces.

Conduct the affairs of employee welfare accordmthe policies of Employee
Welfare Committee.

Decorate and design the branch.

Contract out the branch decoration and renovation.

Perform the duties relating to the office supppescurement.

Manage the insurance slips of each constructiotracinand rental agreement.
Take charge of relative business of legal and taeagement of both internal anc
external contracts enacting and verifying. Alsavide the legal consultation, de
with the litigation and ensure that company abioethe domestic and foreign
regulations.

=2

Logistics Division

Allocate and distribute products properly amonghitenches in the same region
Process the imported merchandises of each braricmwade

Provide logistics support to E-commerce activitiggo C).

Provide logistics support and product distributivanagement to the branches b
the centralized logistic center (B to B).

System
Development
Division

Activate system automation and transfer of storaipon information.
Take charge of information system planning, develept and management;
allocate and install the computer hardware andvsoét; eliminate the failure.

Finance and
Accounting Divisior

*

Overall manage the financial affairs and sharestegion services of the
Company.

Mange fund properly and handle the transactionsdex the Company and bank
Make the short-term, middle-term and long-term &fund management.

Take charge of all the accounting and tax affaid glan the budgets.

Maintain the database of the suppliers.

Marketing Planning
Division

* 6 6 0 0

Perform the duties relating to service procesg, gadmotion, customer
management and analysis, and other business senditers.

Product Planning
Division

Introduce and eliminate products, raise the prdsgsariodically for promoted
products, and explore new product suppliers.
Differentiate the products from those of the coritpes.

Business Division

L 4

Direct and coordinate the operation of each braocthieve the annual goals of

sales and profits.

of



2. Information on the directors, supervisors, generamanager, vice general manager, assistant vice geaémanager, heads of divisions and
branches:

(1) Profiles of Directors

1. Basic Profiles of Directors

April 2 2016

Quantity of Quantity of Quantity of Other

Quantity of Managers, directors, or

Nationality or nitial dat sliselislelliy <L il shareholding at shareholding by | shareholding under| gqycation and | positions in supervisors who is kindred within
place of niual aate | time of assuming present spouse and the name of third important the Compan the 2 tier
incorporation PFaiiez office underage children parties experience and other
Quantity |Percentagd Quantity i i CeImE S Relation
Republic of Duo Chin
China :_r:\éestment Co.] 2014.06.10 3 yrs [1999.05.10| 7,611,747 8.19% 7,832,65 8.22% 0 0%l 0 0%|No No No No No
Chairman of
Duo Chin
Investment
Pei Men High  [Co., Ltd.
Chairman School; Director of  |Vice Chen Fan
Republic of Representative | Owner of Chien |Poya ChairmarnMei-Jin Spouse
China Chen Jian-Zao ) ) ) 0 0 0 0% 172,297  0.18% 0 0%|Chang Herbal  [Investment |General [Chen Son-in-law
Medicine Co., Ltd. Manager|Zong-Chen
Company Supervisor of
Chen Ching
Investment
Co., Ltd.
Republic of E(())%/’all_rt\(\j/estmen 2014.06.10| 3yrs |1999.05.10|7,637,219  8.22 7,84571]  8.23% 0 0% 0 094 No No No No No
Chairman of
Poya
Investment
Kuang Hua Girls |Co., Ltd
\ﬁﬁe Representative High School; Director of ChairmarChen
Chairman |Republic of ) Chin Ting Art Duo Chin Jian-Zao |Spouse
China ﬁgﬁgizan ) ) ) 168,894 0.18% 172,292 0.18% 0 0% 0 0% Gallery, Plant ~ |Investment Ezgzr;r Chen Son-in-law
Manager Co., Ltd. Zong-Chen
Director of
Chen Ching
Investment
Co., Ltd,;
Information Dept|Supervisor of
. Feng Chia Poya . Chen Father-in
Director and Republic of Chen University; Investment ChalrmarJian-Zao —law
General China Zong-Cheng 2014.06.1Q 3yrs 12003.04.21/ 5,814,158 6.26% 5,962,174 6.26%42,610,65 2.74% 0 0% General Nianage Co., Ltd; Vic_e Chen Fan |Mother-in
Manager - . Chairman,, ...
Poya Internationgd Supervisor of Mei-Jin -law
Co., Ltd. Duo Chin

10



Quantity of
Nationality or shareholding at the
Initial date |  time of assumin
place of g

Quantity of Quantity of Other :
/ 5 Managers, directors, or
shareholding by | shareholding under| gqycation and | positions in | supervisors who is kindred within
spouse and the name of third important the Compan the 2 tier

Quantity of
shareholding at

: . ; ; present : 4 !
incorporation PFaiiez office underage children parties experience and other

Quantity |Percentagd Quantity i i companies Relation

Investment
Co., Ltd. ;
Director of
Chen Ching
Investment
Co., Ltd.
Chairman ang
VP, ST. Shing
Optical Co.,
Ltd.;

VP, Greater
China
Business
Dept, ST.
Shine Optical
Co., Ltd;;

Honorary
Doctorate
Degrees of
Science,
National
Kaohsiung
University of
Applied Science

Executives DITEE,
Shine Optical
n Republic of Chen - P il Holding
Director ; Ming-Shian 2014.06.10| 3 yrs |2011.06.22 0 0 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%]|Graduate School . [No No No
China : Groups Inc.;
of Business .
e . Director,
Administration, Obtical
National Cheng Cp .
PN ) onnection
Chi University X
Electronic I (et
: : Director,
Engineering,  Igpine Optical
National
) (Samoa)
Kaohsiung Holdin
University of 9 .
Applied Science CTEITEE, e:;
Director,
Shine Optical
HK Limited

Chair Professor,
Graduate School
of Management,
Chang Jung

Christian Committee
. o member,
University; .
IndependentRepublic of . . | . . . .|PhD, Honoris Remuneratlor
Director China Lin Tsai-Yuan |[2014.06.14 3yrs |2005.05.1 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% Causa, Human Committee of|No No No
TYC Brother
Resources, Industrial Co
American M & N Ltd '
University: '

PhD, Business
Administration,
National Cheng
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Quantity of
Nationality or shareholding at the
Initial date |  time of assumin
place of g

Quantity of Quantity of Other .
a : Managers, directors, or
shareholding by | shareholding under| gqycation and | positions in supervisors who is kindred within
spouse and the name of third important the Compan the 2 tier

Quantity of
shareholding at

) L of office present . . !
incorporation underage children parties experience and other
companies

Relation

Chi University;
Master,
Accounting,
National Cheng
Chi University;
Associate
Professor of
Accounting,
National Cheng
Kung University;
Professor of
Business
Administration,
National Sun
Yat-Sen
University;
Dean of
Institutional
Affairs, National
Sun Yat-Sen
University;
Director and Vice
President,
Evening College,
National Sun
Yat-Sen
University;

Vice President,
Chang Jung
Christian
University;
Visiting Professol
College of
Management, Sun
Yat-Sen
University at
Guangzhou;
Professor of
management andg
accounting,
Tamkang
University;
Executive VP,
Sunonwealth
Electric Machine
Industry;

12



Quantity of uantity of OUEITIN ) Quantity of Other Managers, directors, or
Nationality or Initial date ST I ICIULE shgreholciling at shareholding by | shareholding under| gqycation and | positions in supervisorg who is kindred within
place of i time of assuming present spouse a_nd the name of third important the Compan the 2 tier
incorporation office underage children parties experience and other
Quantity |Percentagd Quantity i i CeImEEs Relation
Convener,
Remuneration
Committee of
Sunonwealth
Electric Machine
Industry, TYC
Brother Industria
Co., Ltd.
President,

Guangdong Liang
Light Fixtures
Co., Ltd.
Independent
Director, Taiwan
Business Bank;
Practicing CPA,
Chung Hsin CPA
Office(1972-1988)

Passed the

advanced CPA

examination

Passed the

securities

investment

analyst exami;

Members of

Taiwan CPA

Association.
Chairman an(
General
Manager, Sar
Far Property
Limited
Representatiy

Wenzao Ursulinele of

College Institutional

Independem Re_pubhc of Jung Jiun-Rung 2014.06.10| 3yrs |2014.06.10 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% G(_eneral Manage|Director, No No No
Director China Minfa Pleasant

Construction Co.|Hotels

Ltd. International
Inc
Chairman an(
General
Manager,
Jingo
International

13



Quantity of
Nationality or shareholding at the
Initial date |  time of assumin
place of g

Quantit)_/ o Quant_ity i Managers, directors, or
shareholding by | shareholding under| gqycation and | positions in | supervisors who is kindred within
spouse and the name of third important the Compan the 2 tier

Quantity of
shareholding at

: . ; ; present : . !
incorporation PFaiiez office underage children parties experience and other

Quantity |Percentagd Quantity i i companies Relation

Records Co.,
Ltd.
Chairman,
Cheng Hsin
Investment
Co., Ltd.
Chairman,
Chang Yi
Investment
Limited
Company
Director, Chi
Yi Investment
Co., Ltd.
Convener,
Remuneratior|
Committee of
Sunfar
Computer
CO., LTD
Director,
Thinflex
Corporation
Masters in Chairman,
Finance, Boston |Song Yang

: : Electronic
Unlversn'y, U.S. Materials
Masters in (Kunshan)
Accounting, Limited

National Taiwan |Company
Independent

University Director

IndependentRepublic of . Bachelor’s eChem
Director China Liou Jr-Hung |2014.06.10| 3yrs (2014.06.10 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 O%Degree in solutions
Accountin corp.

9 Independent
National Director’
Chengchi Fitness

University Factory Co.,

Passed the ETD .
advanced CPA upervisor,

examination Kenmec_
Mechanical

Engineering
Co., Ltd.
Chairman,
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Quantity of
Nationality or shareholding at the
Initial date |  time of assumin
place of g

Quantity of Quant_ity of Managers, directors, or
shareholding by | shareholding under| gqycation and | positions in supervisors who is kindred within
spouse and the name of third important the Compan the 2 tier

Quantity of
shareholding at

: . ; present : , !
incorporation PFaiiez underage children parties experience and other
companies Relation

Chien Hsing
Information
Co., Ltd.
Chairman,
Chien Lian
Investment
Co., Ltd.
Director, Shu
Lai Business
Consultancy
Co., Ltd.
Director,
Chang Chun
Biomedical
Co., Ltd.
Director,
Huang Hui
Biotech Co.,
Ltd.

Director,

Na Wei
Regeneration
Co., Ltd.
Independent
Director,
NewEdgeTech
nologies,Inc.
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2. Profiles of dominant shareholders of instituéibshareholders

April 2 2016

Name of institutional Dominant shareholders of institutional shareholders

shareholders (Proportion of shareholding, %)

Chen Jian-Zao (30%), Chen Fan Mei-Jin (20%), ChesrLee (10%), Chen
Duo Chin Investment Co., Ltd. |Zong-Cheng (10%), Chen Rong-Rong (10%), Chen Sheam§10%),Chen

Chun-Tsai(10%)

Chen Fan Mei-Jin (33.4%), Chen Jian-Zao (22.2%grCheetee (11.1%
Poya Investment Co., Ltd. Chen Zong-Cheng (11.1%), Chen Rong-Rong (11.1%)nCBharShar
(11.1%)

3. Professional intelligence and independence mdiors

More than 5 years of experience and the
Status of independence (Note 1)
following professional qualifications

Quialifications|A lecturer  |Judge, Experience
or higher prosecutor, in business,
capacity in allawyer, CPA, or (law, finance,

public or other accounting
Also an
private professional and |and other
Independen
college or |technical areas of
Director of
university in [personnel with |specializatio

G | H | I | J |otherpublic

business, |certification that the
companies
law, finance [through national |Company
accounting, |examinations needs
orrelated  [with the issuance
subjects in |of license and

corporate |certificates

managemen

Duo Chin Investmen)|

Co., Ltd.; ) v v v v _
Representative:

Chen Jian-Zao

Poya Investment Cq

Ltd. . v v v v o
Representative:

Chen Fan Mei-Jin

Chen Zong-Cheng v v vV -

Chen Ming-Shian v VIivIivVvI| v IVvIVv IV IV |V |V -

Lin Tsai-Yuan v v v vVIivIiIvIvIVvI|IV IV IV IV |V -

Jung Jiun-Rung v VI ivIv IV IV IV IV ]|V v =

Liou Jr-Hung v v VivivIivIivIiVIiIVIiIVIVI YV 2
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Note 1: If any of the following qualifications igpplicable to the directors, in the last 2 yearsobefand during
their term of office with the Company, putvd'in relevant fields:

A.
B.

Not an employee of the Company or its group congsani

Not a director or supervisor of the Company or gheup companies (except as an Independent
Director of a subsidiary where the Company or theept to the Company directly or indirectly
holds more than 50% of its voting shares).

Shareholder who is a natural person, and not theopethe spouse, underage child or under the
name of a third party holding more than 1% of Wtaltshares or one of the top 10 natural person
shareholders.

Not a spouse, kindred within the 2nd tier or thetre kin of kindred within the 3rd tier of the
aforementioned personnel.

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of an ingtinal shareholder directly holds more than 5%
of the outstanding shares of the Company or a tiresupervisor or employee of one of the top 5
institutional shareholders.

Not a director, supervisor, manager of a specifimpany or institution that the Company has
financial or business transactions or a sharehdidéding more than 5% of the shares of such
company or institution.

Not an owner, partner, director, supervisor, managel the spouse of the an owner, partner,
director, supervisor, manager of a professional llykawned firm, partnership, corporation or
institution, or a professional personnel providingsiness, legal, financial and accounting services
or consultation to the Company or its group comgsnHowever, the Remuneration Committee
members shall be excluded according to Article Refjulations Governing the Appointment and
Exercise of Powers by the Remuneration Committee @bmpany Whose Stock is Listed on the
Stock Exchange or Traded Over the Counter.

Not a spouse or kindred within the 2nd tier to apodirector of the Company.

Any of the provisions contained in Article 30 oét@ompany Act shall be applied.

Not being elected to the seat as a representafitkeogovernment, institution, or other parties
pursuant to Article 27 of the Company Act.
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(2) Profiles of the general manager, vice general mamagsistant vice general manager, heads of éaslod and branch:

April 2, 2016

Quantity of Quantity of
Quantity of shareholding by | shareholding under Manager who is the spouse or
shareholding spouse and underagg the name of a third Education and important Positions in other kindred within the 2" tier

Nationality] Name [Date of offic children experience companies

Relation

Director of Chen Chin
Investment Co., Ltd.;

Republico| Chen . . . ?upemsor of Po
General Manager China [Zong-Chenfy 2000.12.28| 5,962,174 6.26% 2,610,65[ 2.74% 0 0vydinformation Dept, Feng Chia Univers Y estment Co., Ltd.: )[ o No No
Supervisor of f Duo Ch n
Investment Co., Ltd.
Senior Manager, n . . . . .
Development Republic o] Ren 2010.03.10 a 0o 0 0 o 00/(Natlonal Chin YiUniversity of SmencNO No No No

China | Shi-Liang and Technology

Division
Manager, Product |Republico[ Chen . .
Plann?ng Division ghina Rong.Rond 200012.28| 466,478 0.49% a 0% Q 0%EMBA, Royal Roads University  |No No No No
mgﬂi?negrlg\ljggiss Regﬁﬁ:': g ChlIJ_rIEWen 2013.12.01 31,47 0.03% 0 0% 0 o%iProvinciaI Hsin Feng High School |No No No No
Manager, HR Republicol  Tsai Graduate  Institute  of  Industi
Administrative ghina Ming-Lun 2002.09.02 51,00 0.05% 0 0% a 09%Management, National Cheng K(No No No No
Division 9 University
Manager, Finance Republicol  Shen JGraduate School of Finance
and Accounting ghina Hona-Yu 2008.11.01 62,04 0.079 2,08( 0% 0 09%Banking, National Chung CheNo No No No
Division 9 University
Manager, System ’ .

Republic o] Wu Dept of Computer Science, Soocl
Development China Rai-Chin 2006.02.06 16,00 0.02% o 0% qQ Oo/University No No No No

Division

Graduate  School of Logistic{

Manager, Logistics |Republic o Fan . ) )
g gisti puoll 2014.07.01 1,45 0.009 0 0% 0 0%Management, Nationafaohsiung FiryNo No No No

Division China Di-Wei
University of Science and Technolog
Dept of Accounting, Tainan Univerg
Manager, Audit Republico| Tsai | of Applied Science and Technolog
Office China Yee-Pei 2012.04.01 1,003 0.00% 0 0% : 0%post Bachelor Study on Real ESNO No No No
Management, Evergreen University]
Vice Manager, n . .
Marketing Planning Republico| Chen 2016.03.31 1.36 0.009 0 o o O%Dept of Applied Foreign IanguagNO No No No

China | Hsiao-Wei IAsia University

Division
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3. Remunerations to the directors, supervisors, genekananager and the vice general manager in the prevus fiscal year
(1) Remunerations to the directors

December 31 2015; currency unit: NT$1, 000

Remunerations to directors Remunerations to employees performing routine dute

A+B+C+D in proportion to A+B+CHDHE+F+G in

corporate earnings proportion to corporate
Qty of shares of new | earnings

Directors Remuneration (Note 11) Salaries, bonus, and specig Qty of shares entitled to

Remuneration (A) Pension (B) © Business subsidy (D) subsidy (E) Pension (F) Employee Remuneration (G) subscribe under ESO (H) restricted elg;:loyee shareq -
remuneration
Name from investees
All companies in the suII;Zlyt;)lgﬂes
All All All All All The Company consolidated financial Al All All
companies companies ies i i companies inf companies in| companies inf statement companies companies in} companies inf
Poya in the Poya inthe Poya h Poya h Poya the Poya the the Poya in the Poya the Poya the
International | consolidated] International | consolidated] International | consolidated] International | consolidated] International | consolidated] International | consolidated | International | consolidated| International | consolidated] International | consolidated] International | consolidated|
financial financial financial financial financial financial financial Cash Stock Cash Stock financial financial financial
statement statement statement statement statement statement statement | gividend | dividend | dividend | dividend statement statement statement
Duo Chin
Investment Cof,
Chairman | Ltd. | 3263 3,263 0 0 960 960 0 0 0.44% 0.44% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.44% 0.44% 0
Representative]:
Chen Jian-Zao|
Poya
Investment Co.
Vice Ltd
Chairman | Representativel 2,613 2,613 0 0 960 960 0 0 0.38% 0.38% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.38% 0.38% 0
Chen Fan
Mei-Jin
Director Chen
Zong-Cheng 0 0 0 0 960 960 0 0 0.10% 0.10% 3,783 3,783 0 0 0 , 7833 0 3,783 0 0 0 0 0.90% 0.90% 0
Director Gizn
Ming-Shian 0 0 0 0 480 480 48 48 0.06% 0.06% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.06% 0.06% 0
Independent| . .
Director | - Tsa-Yuan 0 0 0 0 480 480 50 50 0.06% 0.06% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.06% 0.06% 0
Independent
Director | J1Ng Jiun-Run 0 0 0 0 480 480 32 32 0.05% 0.05% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.05% 0.05% 0
Independent
Director |04 Jr-Hung 0 0 0 0 480 480 40 40 0.05% 0.05% o 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.05% 0.05% 0

Note 1: The motion of distribution of earnings f6¥2015 was passed by the Board of Director on ZI2LB2, pending the approval at the ShareholdergiiMpef 2016.
Note 2: Corporate earnings in FY2015 amounted t89%2.145 million.
Note 3: Poya International strongly upholds theispf corporate governance thereby disclosingrédspective remunerations of the directors.
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Remuneration Brackets

Name of directors

A+B+C+D

(A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

Brackets of remunerations to the directors of Poya

(2) Remunerations to supervisors: Not appliance. (#ieioto intensify corporate governance, three Inddeet Directors were elected at Shareholder’s
Meeting on June 10, 2014. Besides, Poya Interratestablished the Audit Committee instead of suipers according to Securities and Exchange

Act.)

International

Less than NT$2,000,000

Poya International

Lin Tsai-Yuan,,
Chen Zong-Cheng
Chen Ming-Shian,

Jung Jiun-Rung,

Liou Jr-Hung,

All companies in the
consolidated financial
statement

Lin Tsai-Yuan,,
Chen Zong-Cheng
Chen Ming-Shian,

Jung Jiun-Rung,

Liou Jr-Hung,

Poya International

Lin Tsai-Yuan,
Chen Ming-Shian,
Jung Jiun-Rung,

Liou Jr-Hung,

All companies in the
consolidated financial
statement

Lin Tsai-Yuan,
Chen Ming-Shian,
Jung Jiun-Rung,

Liou Jr-Hung,

NT$ 2,000,006~NT$ 5,000,000 (exclusive)

Chen Jian-Zao,
Chen Fan Mei-Jin

Chen Jian-Zao,
Chen Fan Mei-Jin

Chen Jian-Zao,
Chen Fan Mei-Jin

Chen Jian-Zao,
Chen Fan Mei-Jin

NT$5,000,006~NT$10,000,000 (exclusive) 0 0 Chen Zong-Cheng Chen Zong-Cheng
NT$10,000,008-NT$15,000,000 (exclusive) 0 0 0 0
NT$15,000,000-NT$30,000,000 (exclusive) 0 0 0 0
NT$30,000,006~NT$50,000,000 (exclusive) 0 0 0 0
NT$50,000,000-NT$100,000,000 (exclusive) 0 0 0 0
More than NT$100,000,000 0 0 0 0
Total 7 7 7 2
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(3) Remunerations to the general manager

December 31 2015; currency unit: NT$1, 000

Qty of shares of new
restricted employee
shares Any

A+B+ C+ D in proportion Qty of shares entitled to

Salary (A) Pension (B) Bonus and subsidy (C) Employee remunerations (D) to corporate earnings (%) subscribe under ESO!

All All companies in remuneration

5 All All q pan All All All q

i NS companies in| companies in companies - rpo Company Reconsciicaled companies companies inl Poya companies fleminycstces
Poya f Poya f a in the financial Poya P: Poya f 4 P: beyond

8 5 5 " 5 in the N the Internati in the 0
International International International | consolidated statement International International subsidiaries
consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated|  onal consolidate

statement statement statement statement d statement|

the the

3,783 3,783 0 0 0 0 0 3,78 0 3,783 0.79% 0.79% 0 [ 0 0 0

Note 1: The motion of distribution of earnings f6¥2015 was passed by the Board of Director on ZI2L82, pending the
approval at the Shareholders Meeting of 2016.

Note 2: Stock dividend was calculated based owrlibeing price on June 9 2015 (a day before thdutisn at the Shareholders
Meeting) and the consideration of the ex-rights exdlividend effect, which was NT$362.9. The empley/
remuneration NT$358 is less than one share, anill ghall be distributed in cash.

Note 3: There is no vice general manager in Poygarational and only the remuneration to the gdmeemager is disclosed.

Note 4: Corporate earnings in FY2015 amounted t896P.145 million.

Remuneration Brackets

Brackets of remunerations to the general manage Names of the general manager and the vice generabmager

and vice general managers of Poya International All companies in the consolidated

Poya International

statement
Less than NT$2,000,000 0 0
NT$ 2,000,000-NT$ 5,000,000 (exclusive) 0 0
NT$5,000,006~NT$10,000,000 (exclusive) Chen Zong-Cheng Chen Zong-Cheng
NT$10,000,006-NT$15,000,000 (exclusive) 0 0

NT$15,000,008-NT$30,000,000 (exclusive)
NT$30,000,008-NT$50,000,000 (exclusive)

NT$50,000,006-NT$100,000,000 (exclusive)
More than NT$100,000,000
Total

RO |O|O
Rr|O|lOo|O|lo

(4) Names of managers entitled to employee remuneratidrthe status of distribution:

December 31 2015; currency unit: NT$1, 000
Amount of Proportion to

stock Amount of cash|  Total corporate earnings
(Note 2) (%)

= | General Manager. Chen

> Zong-Cheng

3 |Manager, Finand 4,983 0 4,983 0.52%

Q . Shen

@ | and Accounting Hono-Yu

% Division 9

Note 1: The motion of distribution of earnings f6¥2015 was passed by the Board of Director on ZIPL&2, pending
the approval at the Shareholders Meeting of 2016.

Note 2: Stock dividend was calculated based omwrlibging price on June 9 2015 (a day before thdutisno at the
Shareholders Meeting) and the consideration oéiheghts and ex-dividend effect, which was NT$36Zhe
employees’ remuneration NT$358 is less than oneeshad it will shall be distributed in cash.

Note 3: Corporate earnings in FY2015 amounted t896P.145 million.
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(5) The analysis of the remunerations to the direcgupervisors, general manager, vice general
manager paid by Poya International and all othemgamies in the consolidated financial
statement in late two years in proportion to coap®earnings, and the association between
the policy, standard, combinations and procedureminerations and the operating
performance and the future risks are as followed:

December 31 2015; currency unit: NT$1, 000

FY 2015

FY 2014

Total remunerations Pr°p°”'°’? to corporate Total remunerations P“’PO”'O’? 10 EORIENS
earnings (%) earnings (%)

& o All companies
The |companiesi in the
(e consolidated consolidated CZ?;Z“;?:;?(’
statement statement
Directors (including
Independent Directorg 9,828 9,828 1.27 1.27 9,886 9,886 1.04 1.04
Supervisors (Note) 205 205 0.03 0.03 0 0 0 0
General manager
(also director) 8,491 8,491 1.10 1.10 8,526 8,526 0.90 0.90
Total 18,524 18,524 2.40 2.40 18,412 18,412 1.93 1.93

Note: Since Poya International has establishedtATodinmittee on June 10 2014, there is no remurer &di
supervisors paid by Poya International in FY2015.

The remunerations to the directors of Poya Intéwnat are stated in the Articles of
Incorporation with reference to industry standadd the resolution at the Shareholders
Meeting. Poya International introduced externadctiors in supporting the advocacy of
corporate governance by the government. Exceptmerations to the directors and
employees, the bonus distributed to the generahgemand the head of each division are
also determined and adjusted based on the opegaifigrmance of Poya International.
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4. Corporate governance in action
(1) The Board of Director in session:

Information on the Board of Director in session
In the most recent fiscal period, The Board of Bioe held 11 sessior(#) and the attendances by
the directors are shown in the table below:

Frequency of attendance

Attended by Attendance rate (%)

(sitting in F\é)observers) proxy [B/A] (Note) Remarks
. Duo Chin Investment Co., Ltd. o
Chairman Representative: Chen Jian-Zao 10 1 90.91%
‘ Poya Investment Co., Ltd 2
el Representative: Chen Fan Mei-Jin - . S
Director Chen Zong-Cheng 10 0 90.91%
Director Chen Ming-Shian 10 0 90.91%
independent |\ in Tsai-Yuan 10 1 90.91%
Ingierr;i?grent Jung Jiun-Rung 10 1 90.91%
'”g‘i’rﬁ?ﬁf”t Liou Jr-Hung 10 1 90.91%

Other important notice:
A. Provisions of Article 14-I1l of the Securities aRachange Act, and the minutes of Board meetings adiverse opinions or qualified opinions from

Independent Directors on record or backed by writteclarations in the resolutions of the Board: &juglicable.

B. The enforcement of avoiding the interested-direfrttum making a decision of the interest-relativegmsal: directors acted to avoid possible
influence on the result of decisions taken on nmstiwith conflicts of interest to Poya International

C. Assessment of the objective to fortify the functiai the Board of Director in the current periodi éime last fiscal period (such as establishment of

the Audit Committee, improvement of informationrtsparency...) and the accomplishments:
(A) Poya International has formulated the measuresmdpnance assessment of the Board of Directa291% to implement the execution of

corporate governance and promote the functioneoBibard of Director.
(B) Poya International established the Audit Committee the Nomination Committee in 2014 to fortify #heecution of corporate governance

and the mechanism of management
(C) The minutes of Board session on recand the relative corporate governance regulaticere wploaded to the special web pages designed for

investors for the purpose of fortifying the inforioa disclosure of the Board of Director.
Note: Attendance rate (%) is calculated based emtimber of meetings called and the attendandeedlitectors (sitting in as observers) during their

term of office.
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(2) The operations of the Audit Committee or the pgétion of the supervisors in the Board of
Director:

The operations of the Audit Committee

The Independent Directors were elected at the 8bllieg Meeting on June 10, 2014. Besides,
Poya International established the Audit Commiittestead of supervisor according to Securities
and Exchange Act.

In the most recent fiscal period, the Audit Comestheld 7 sessions (A) and the attendances in
meeting as observers by the Independent Directersteown in the table below:

Frequency of
attendance in

Rate of attendance in meeting

meeting as Attended by proxy as observers (%) B/A) Remarks
observers B) (Note)
'”g‘?pe”de”t Lin Tsai-Yuan 6 1 85.71%
irector
'“g‘?pe”de”t Jung Jiun-Rung 6 1 85.71%
irector
Independent| . . 0
Director Liou Jr-Hung 7 0 100.00%

Other important notice:
A. Provisions of Article 14-V of the Securities andcBange Act, and the resolution passed by the twdstlor more of the directors withou
the approval of the Audit Committee: Not applicable
B. The enforcement of avoiding the interested-indepanhdirector from making a decision of the intemesative-proposal, in which the
Company shall state the name of such Independeettdr, the content of the proposal, the reasonsferest avoidance and the
participation in voting: Not applicable.
C. The communication between the Independent Directodsthe internal audit manager, or the Independeattors and the accountants
(such as communication on the matters, methodsesudts with respect to the corporate finance sirt®ss operations):
(A) The internal audit manager reports the audit resalthe Committee members in the Audit Committeeting periodically. The
communication between the Independent Directorslamihternal audit manager is good.
(B) The CPAs report the review results of the curraaricial statements to the Committee members iAtigét Committee meeting
quarterly. The communication between the Indepenberctors and the CPAs is good.
Note: Rate of attendance in meeting as observeyss(#alculated based on the number of meetingectaind the attendance in meeting as
observers of the Independent Directors during tteem of office.
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(3) The discrepancy between the executions of Corp@aternance of Poya International and the “Corgo@vernance Best Practice Principles by
TWSE/GTSM-listed Companies”, and the reasons ferdiscrepancy:

Discrepancy from Corporate Governance Best
State of operation Practice Principles by TWSE/GTSM-listed
Companies and the reasons

Poya International enacts and discloses the |® The enactment of Corporate Governance Best Pedetiaciples |® Compliant with the requirements of “Corporate
Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles has been approved by the Board of Directors onligctd7, 2014  Governance Best Practice Principles by

according to “Corporate Governance Best with the amendment being approved by Board of Darean Aprif TWSE/GTSM- listed Companies”.
Practice Principles by TWSE/GTSM- listed 27, 2015. The Principles have been disclosed ospbeial web
Companies”. pages designed for investors (www.poya.com.tw)@nmtOPS.
B. Equity structure and shareholders’ equity
(A) Poya International enacts the internal operatin®@ Poya International appointed a share registratgamt to handle |® Compliant with the requirements of “Corporate
procedure for responding to the related business and also arranged a company spakder Governance Best Practice Principles by
recommendations, doubts, disputes and lawslitsresponding to the recommendations and disputdseof t TWSE/GTSM:- listed Companies”.
of the shareholders and executes thoroughly shareholders. Additionally, Poya International éed¢he
according to such procedure. Corporate Governance Best Practice Principlesdteptthe

shareholders’ equity and executed thoroughly adegr relative

rules and regulations.

(B) Poyalnternational keeps proper control over|® With the support of the share registration ageoyaRnternationg

list of dominant shareholders and the ultin  can properly control and understand the composdafaominant
shareholders of these dominant shareholdéwg shareholders and can declare the status of shdneg®lof the
hold real control of Poya International. directors, and managers at regular intervals.

@ As Poya International is closely affiliated wite dominant
shareholders except for the natural persons, Ragenktional
shall properly keep the list of ultimate sharehcdds the
dominant shareholders under control. Poya Intesnatican
obtain such the list of ultimate shareholders gttane from the
dominant shareholders, when necessary.

© Poya International establishes and executes ﬂm Currently, Poya International has no affiliatedeeprises

risk control mechanism and firewall between the regulated by the Company Act.
Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates.

(D) Poya International establishes the internal rule® Poya International has enacted the Operationaddwres for

and regulations to prohibit any personnel of the Preventing Insider Trading and Handling Materiaidie

Company from trading the securities by utilizing Information, Corporate Governance Best Practicedifyies, and

private corporate information. Procedures for Ethical Management and Guideline€émducto
prohibit any personnel of the Company from tradimg securities
by utilizing private corporate information.
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The organization and functions of the Board @
Directors

State of operation

Discrepancy from Corporate Governance Best

Practice Principles by TWSE/GTSM-listed
Companies and the reasons

(A)

The Board of Directors enacts the policies of
maintaining the variety of the member
composition and executes thoroughly.

@ Poya International has enacted the Corporate Gawuee Best

thoroughly the policies of maintaining the variefythe Board
composition.

Practice Principles to fortify the Board structared has executed Governance Best Practice Principles by

@® Compliant with the requirements of “Corpora

TWSE/GTSM:- listed Companies”.

(B)

Except the Remuneration Committee and Aug

i® Poya International has established the Remunar@monmittee

Committee, Poya International establishes other according to relative rules in 2011 to fortify therporate

functional committee voluntarily.

governance. In 2014, Poya International set uptiat
Committee and Nominating Committee voluntarilythe most
recent fiscal period, the Committees operate wellthe
operation state of each Committee is as followleel: t
Remuneration Committee has held 3 sessions; thé Aud
Committee has held 7 sessions.

(©)

Poya International stipulates the measures ar
means of performance assessment of the Bo
Directors and makes the performance assess
annually and at regular intervals.

® Poya International has stipulated the measurpsrdérmance
assessment of the Board of Directors and has rhade t

meperformance assessment according to relative ames

regulations. Employees conduct the assessmenehbystlves an

colleagues at the end of annual. The system gi¢hfermance

assessment of the Board of Directors in 2015 ruogeply.

The orientations covering the overall Board akbtors

assessment are as followed:

(A) The degree of participation in corporate operation.

(B) The promotion of decision quality at the Board afeldtors.

(C) The composition and structure of the Board of Doex

(D) The election of Directors and further studies.

(E) Internal control.

The orientations covering performance assessmeBidard

members are as followed:

(A) Corporate target and mission control.

(B) Acknowledge of the Directors’ duties.

(C) The degree of participation in corporate operation.

(D) Internal relationship building.
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State of operation

(E) The Directors’ specialty and further studies.
(F) Internal control.

Discrepancy from Corporate Governance Best

Practice Principles by TWSE/GTSM-listed
Companies and the reasons

(D)

Poya International makes routine assessmen
the independence of the Certified Public
Accountant.

@f Poya International makes routine assessment @mugally) of

the independence of the certified public accoustantording to
Article 29-V of the Corporate Governance Best React
Principles. The Auditors’ audit checklist enactenlguant to
Article 47 of the “Certified Public Accountants Aeind No.10 of
the “Statement of Ethic Code of Conduct” on “Infegr
impartiality and independence” and the “declaratbn
independence and impartiality” issued by the dedipublic
accountants stll be reviewed by the Audit Committee and the
submitted to the Board of Directors for approvabider to asses
the independence of the certified public accoustant

After being confirmed, except the certificatiorddimancial fees,
there is no circumstance as followed between thelatants and
Directors:

(A) Direct and indirect financial relationship.

(B) Close business relationship

(C) Potential employment relationship.

(D) Financing and guarantee behavior.

The accountant recruitment and the expenseetatibn can be
made once the families are confirmed that theytdoalate the
independence.

e

D. Poya International establishes the channels of |@® Poya International disclosed corporate socialaesibility report |® Compliant with the requirements of “Corpora
communication with the stakeholders and the sp| and designed the special web page for stakehabaeltse Chines| Governance Best Practice Principles by
web page designed for the stakeholders. Poya official website. Since 2013, Poya Internationagared the TWSE/GTSM:- listed Companies”.
International properly responds to the main is@fes corporate social responsibility report voluntatiyhelp the
corporate social responsibility concerned by the stakeholders to understand the operating status.
stakeholders. @ Hot line, email, facebook and investor’s contactdew are

offered for maintaining positive communication wiach
stakeholder.
@ Special web page was designed for corporate gameenand the
minutes of Board session on record were disclosdti® Chinesée
official website for investors to download the tala information.
E. Poya International appoints the professional sha/® Poya International appoints Hua Nan Securities 3d. as the |® Compliant with the requirements of “Corpol
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State of operation

Discrepancy from Corporate Governance Best

Practice Principles by TWSE/GTSM-listed
Companies and the reasons

registration agent to handle the related affairs off  professional share registration agent to assisCtmepany to Governance Best Practice Principles
Shareholders Meeting. handle the related affairs of Shareholders Meeting. TWSE/GTSM:- listed Companies”.

F. Disclosure

(A) Poya International installs an official website foe| ® Poya International has installed official website€hinese and |® Compliant with the requirements of “Corpora
disclosure of its financial and operational English for the disclosure of its financial and gi®nal Governance Best Practice Principles by
information and the enforcement of corporate information and the enforcement of corporate goaece. The TWSE/GTSM:- listed Companies”.
governance. addresses of websites are as followed:

Chinese Website: www.poya.com.tw
English Website: www.poya.com.tw/en

(B) Poya International adoptsher means of disclosur @ Poya International has adopted other means dbdises:

(such as the installation of English website, the (A) Install the official websites in Chinese and Englig disclose

appointment of a designated personnel to gather and relative information.

disclose the Company'’s information, realization pf (B) Announce material information in Chinese and Einglis

the spokesman system, and uploading the process ¢€) Appoint the designated personnel to update Chiaerde

the conferences for institutional investors on the English websites periodically.

official websites). (D) Participate in the conferences for institutionadestors held
by the securities corporation and the authoritieske a
presentation about the operation status of the @asnpnd
disclose the relative information on the Chinesa Bnglish
websites according to the relative rules and reiguis.

(E) The spokesman of Poya International announces the

Company’s information according to the Regulatitmrghe
Management of Spokesman. There is only one spokesma
and one acting spokesman.

G. Poya International provides other major informati®nOther major information: @ Compliant with the requirements of “Corpora
which helps to understand the operation of corg{  (A) Courses for further studies taken by the directorsrder to Governance Best Practice Principles by
governance (including but not be limited to rights enhance the professional functions of the Company’s TWSE/GTSM:- listed Companies”.
and interests of the employees, employee care, directors and broaden their knowledge, Paoyarhational ha
investor relation, supplier relation, the rightstod applied the 6-hour courses at home from Taiwan @atp
stakeholders, courses flurther studies taken by t Governance Association in 2015. Besides, the dirs@lso
directors and supervisors, risk management policies  participated in other related courses. In 2015pfahe
execution of risk measure standards, execution pf directors have taken the courses for further studibe
customer policies, purchase of liability insurances courses taken by the directors are mentioned iteTab
for the Company’s directors and supervisors) below.

(B) Courses for further studies taken by the managdéues:
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Discrepancy from Corporate Governance Best

State of operation Practice Principles by TWSE/GTSM-listed
Companies and the reasons

courses taken by the manager are mentioned in Tatdéow,
(C) Execution of avoiding the director from participetiin the
proposal having the interest relation with suchdinector:
the directors of Poya International shall prachicgh
self-discipline and shall not participate in thding when the
interest relation between the director and the gsapraised
up at the Board meeting harms the interests o€Ctirapany.
(D) Purchase of liability insurances for the Compailjfsctors:
the directors of Poya International shall pracétdcal
corporate management, thus there isn't any lavesuiegal
behavior. Poya International has purchased lighilit
insurances for the directors and supervisors fraboh
Insurance since 2015 with the sum insured to be
USD$5 million. The period of insurances is from @r 1,
2015 to October 1, 2016.

Poya International receives self-evaluation repo
of corporate governance or evaluation reports of
corporate governance issued by other professio

institution. (Please specify the comments of Board Governance. Poya International also discussesthgtlauthorities

of Directors, the results of self-evaluation or
evaluation reports issued by other professional
institution, the main shortcoming or suggestiord
the improved status, if applicable)

® Poya International intensifies the execution apooate @® Compliant with the requirements of “Corpora
governance based on the comments of the Boardrefidis and| Governance Best Practice Principles by
nal makes a self-evaluation report in the Appraisalofporate TWSE/GTSM- listed Companies”.

for improvement of corporate governance, whichudek the

following items:

an (A) Stipulate and revise the relative rules of corgogaivernance
according to the laws and regulations and the jeslic

(B) Enhance English official website to fortify the anfnation
transparency.

(C) Announce material information in Chinese and Eihgis
fortify the integrity and fairness of informatiofsdlosure.

(D) E-voting is adopted at the Shareholders Meetinghodince
relative information of Shareholders Meeting prengily.

Poya International will keep fortifying the exeautiof corporate

governance according to the relative laws and egiguils in the

future.
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Table 1 Courses for further studies taken by thectbrs and managers:

Hours of Compliant

Date of office  Date of training Organizer Name of course
study or not

Create Win-Win Situation between Corporate and &pdiy

' _ 2015.07.06 Taiwan Corporate Governance AssociatipfCSR

Chairman Chen Jian-Zao 2014.06.10 2015.10-26 6 Yes
T Taiwan Corporate Governance Associatiprinternal Control and Risk Management from Director’

Perspectiv

Create Win-Win Situation between Corporate and &pdiy

_ o 2015.07.06 Taiwan Corporate Governance Associati CSR

Vice Chairman Chen Fan Mei-Ji 2014.06.10 2015.10'26 6 Yes
T Taiwan Corporate Governance Associati| Internal Control and Risk Management from Director’

Perspective

Create Win-Win Situation between Corporate and Spdiy

2015.07.06 Taiwan Corporate Governance AssociatipitSR

Chen Zong-Cheng 2014.06.10 2015'10'26 6 Yes
— Taiwan Corporate Governance Associatiprinternal Control and Risk Management from Director’

Perspective

Taiwan Corporate Governance Associati Create Win-Win Situation between Corporate and &pdiy

CSR
Director Chen Ming-Shian | 20140610 | 5000708 | o0 e onge 6 Yes

ALLBOTED Seminar on Guidelines of Insider Shareholding oS@IListed
Companies/Emerging Stock Companies

Director and General
Manager

Taiwan Corporate Governance AssociatibiFreate Win-Win Situation between Corporate and pdiy

Ind dent Di Lin Tsai-Yi 2014.06.10 2015.07.06 CSR ) )
ndependent Director in Tsai-Yuan -Uo. 2015.08.07 Securities and Futures Institute ) o _ _ . s
Seminar on Guidelines of Insider Equity Tradingré/SE

Listed Companies.

Create Win-Win Situation between Corporate and &pdiy

Taiwan Corporate Governance Associati CSR

2015.07.06

2015.10.26 Taiwan Corporate Governance Associati e ES

Independent Director Jung Jiun-Rung 2014.06.10
Internal Control and Risk Management from Director’

Perspective

Corporate Governance and Securities Regulations

Independent Director Liou Jr-Hung 2014.06.10 2015.04.15 Securities and Futures Institute 6 Yes

Corporate Social Responsibility Analysis

16" Session of the Chief Accounting Officers Contirguin
Education Program

Seminar on the latest IFRS

Shen Hong-Yu 2008.11.01 | 2015.07.23~24| National Cheng Kung University Introduction of CSR report 12 Yes
Seminar on the latest GAAS

Seminar on the moral and legal issues

Manager of Finance an
Accounting Division
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(4) Disclosure of the organization, functions and opens of the Remuneration Committee, if
applicable:

A. Profiles of the Remuneration Committee members

Qualificatio . .
More than 5 years of experience and the following

professional qualifications SIS G (M e (Vs 1)

A lecturer Judge, prosecutor|Experience i Also a
or higher capacitylawyer, or other |business, la RemuneratiRemarks
in a public or professional and |finance, ion
private college or|technical personnqaccounting Committee
university in with certification |and other of other
business, law, |through national |areas of A public
accounting, or  |examinations with|specialization companies
related subjects infthe issuance of [that the
corporate license and Company
management certificates needs
Independent in Tsai-yuan v v v vlviviviv]iv]v]|v 1 No
Independery 5, 1\ jiun-Run v vlivi v iviv]|v]iv]|v 1 No
Director
independent o, gr-Hung v v vlviviv|v|v|v]v| - No
Director

Note 1: If any member meets any of the followingtie last two years before being elected into effic during the
term of office, put a¥” in the appropriate fields:

A. Not an employee of the Company or its group congzmni

B. Not a director or supervisor of the Company orghaup companies (except as an Independent Director
of a subsidiary where the Company or the paretitadCompany directly or indirectly holds more tf#%
of its voting shares).

C. Shareholder who is a natural person, and not theopgethe spouse, underage child or under the mdéme
a third party holding more than 1% of the totalrelsaor one of the top 10 natural person sharehalder

D. Not a spouse, kindred within the 2nd tier or thetnef kin of kindred within the 5th tier of the
aforementioned personnel.

E. Not a director, supervisor, or employee of an tagtinal shareholder directly holds more than 5%hef
outstanding shares of the Company or a direct@ersisor or employee of one of the top 5 institnéb
shareholders.

F.  Not a director, supervisor, manager of a speciimgany or institution that the Company has findnaia
business transactions or a shareholder holding thare5% of the shares of such company or ingtituti

G. Not an owner, partner, director, supervisor, managel the spouse of the an owner, partner, director
supervisor, manager of a professional wholly-owfiem, partnership, corporation or institution, or a
professional personnel providing business, legagnicial and accounting services or consultatioth&o
Company or its group companies.

H. Any of the provisions contained in Article 30 oétompany Act shall be applied.
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B. The Operations of the Remunerations Committee

(A) The Remunerations Committee of Poya Internatiooasists of 3 members
(B) The term of the current members: June 10 2014 ne u2017. In the last fiscal period, the
Remunerations Committee convened 3 sessiApsThe eligibility of the members and their
attendance in committee meetings are shown below:
Frequency of Attendance rate (%)

attendance (B) (B/A) RT3
Convener Lin Tsai-Yuan 3 100%
Member Jung Jiun-Rung 3 100%
Member Liou Jr-Hung 3 100%

Other important notes:

A. Where the Board of Directors does not accept dseethe recommendations of the
Remunerations Committee, the date and instandeedddard session, the contents of the
motions, the resolution of the Board and the respda the opinions of the Remunerations
Committee shall be specified (if the resolutiong@muneration issues passed by the Board| of
Directors are superior to the recommendations@Rémunerations Committee, the detailed
explanation shall be given): None.

B. If there is any adverse opinion or qualified opmaf the members in the decision over specific
motions at the Remunerations Committee meetingeoord or with a written declaration, the
date and instance of the committee meeting, theeatsof the motion, the opinions of all

members and the response to the opinions of mershalisbe specified: None.

Note: Attendance rate (%) is calculated based emtimber of meetings called and the attendanckeoélitectors (sitting in as observers) during
their term of office.
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(5) The practice of corporate social responsibility:

A. Enforcement of corporate governance

(A) Poya International establishes the policy or systeniA)
corporate social responsibility to review the resof
enforcement.

(B)

Poya International holds the education and trainilngB)
corporate social responsibility periodically.
© Poya International appoints exclusive (or
concurrently) dedicated unit in charge of the
execution of corporate social responsibility. Retat
matters are handled by the management authoriz
the Board of Directors and a report of handling is
given to the Board of Directors afterward. (D)
Poya International establishes the reasonableig®lic
of remuneration, connects the performance reviey
system with the policy of corporate social
responsibility and set up a clear and effectivéesys
of rewards and penalties.

(©)

(D)

<

State of operation

Poya International has enacted Corporate SocigddRegility
Best Practice Principle and established Corporatéab
Responsibility Committee in October ,2014. The st is
served by General Manager, managing the formulation
relative strategies and systems, and reviewingef t
implementation. Besides, the implementation stalinade by
the following teams:

Labor & Ethics Regulation Team

Environment Safety and Management Team

Social Charity Team

Integrity Operation Team

Supply Chain Management Team

Business Confidentiality Management Team
Shareholders’ Equity Protection Team

Poya International issues internal monthly newslaoids the
monthly meeting to advocate the relative policiEsarporate
social responsibility.

Poya International has appointed Finance and Adcwn
Division as the exclusive (or concurrently) divisibeing in
charge of the formulation and implementation of Gi#Rcies,
systems and action plans. The execution of CSR Ishal
reported to Board of Directors by the minister.

Poya International has established Remuneratiom@tiee,
and committee members are served by IndependesitDis.
The Remuneration Committee is to deliberate redghialicies,
and formulate proper evaluation system for diffegsitions;
The officers of each division shall make the eviadurafor
employees at least once a quarter, and help engddygdind
their talents and suitable positions by goal sgtiind evaluatio
interview. The evaluation is the basis for promotio
compensation and pay raise.

Discrepancy from Corporate Social
Responsibility Best Practice Principles by

TWSE/GTSM:-listed Companies and the
reasons
the

Compliant  with requirements
“Corporate  Social Responsibility Bes
Practice Principles by TWSE/GTSMisted
Companies”.
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State of operation

Discrepancy from Corporate Social
Responsibility Best Practice Principles by

TWSE/GTSM:-listed Companies and the
reasons

B.
(A)

(B)

(©

Environment for sustainability

Poya International makes effort to upgrade the
efficiency on the use of resources and in usingdaled
bio-degradable materials to decrease the impattteon]
environment.

Poya International establishes an appropriate
environmental management system in line with the
specific features of the industry.

Poya International pays attention to the influeofce

(A)

(B)

climatic change on the Company’s operation, execut€)

the examination program of greenhouse gas emiss
and stipulates the strategies of energy savinglspna
reduction and greenhouse gas decrease.

on,

Poya International makes effort to upgrade theiefficy on the
use of resources in a reasonable range. For exaRpja
International applies electronic system for filgiesv and
approval to reduce paper waste. Poya Internatmealadopts
various energy-saving products like LED lightingyerter air
conditioner, water-saving toilets to decrease tiygeict on the
environment.
As in the retail industry, Poya International makésrt to
upgrade the efficiency on the use of resourcesedimere is no
sewage, chemicals, gas, noise and wgeteratedrom
operations, ISO 14001 or other relative specifiregiis not
applicable for Poya International.
Poya International closely pays attention to thpant of
climatic change on the Company’s operation, coesnio push
forward the energy management, and executes tieirxi@on
program of greenhouse gas emission.

The effects of energy saving and carbon reductid0il5 ares
followed( checked in 2014) :

(1) The average electricity usage of each store deznldas
7.04%.
The greenhouse gas emission of each store decriaase
8.69%.
The average water usage of each store decreased by
7.08%.
According to the details of means and effects fargy saving
and carbon reduction, please see 2014 corporaitd seport

(2)

(3)

Compliant with the requirements
“Corporate  Social Responsibility Bes
Practice Principles by TWSE/GTSMisted

Companies”.

p.23-p.28.
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C.
(A)

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

(F)

Maintenance of social charity
Poya International enacts the managerial poliaieks &
procedures according to the relative rules and
international recognized human rights of labor.
Poya International establishes the mechanism and
channel for receiving employee complaints and giv
responses properly.

Poya International provides the employees a safe g
healthy work environment and gives them safe and
healthy training periodically.

Poya International establishes the mechanism for
routine communication with the employees and ma
notification to the employees via reasonable meang
operation changes that may cause significant inflas
on the employees.

Poya International provides the employees an éffeq
training program cultivating career abilities.

Poya International establishes the policy of cugiom
right protection and the procedure of customer

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

kes

t
(E)

(F)

complaints in the process of research and developime

procurement, production, operations, and services.

State of operation

Poya International enacts relative personnel réignlsin
compliance with the applicable rules governing tdiooce.

Poya International complies with the applicablesujoverning

labor force and makes efforts to enhance the erapleyvelfare).

Employees can report to the immediate officer, taofficer or
human resources officer directly or raise commentsake
complaints through internal platform such as EI&ta¥ and
Connections. Auditors will start the investigatimmce they
received notice. All the comments received from leyges will
be taken into consideration fully for improvement.

Poya International has arranged routine inspectiopublic
safety once annually and non-scheduled physicahimedion to
ensure all employees have a safe and health werkoement.
Poya International provides the employees withraptete
communication. For example, an internal meetingafbr
employees and an ABC sales meeting will be heldyaventh.
Besides, Poya International also offers E-platfoamd internal
websites, such as EIP, Notes and Connection Riatmmake
an effective, two-way communication with employé&zselp
them understand the policy and activity of operatio
management.

Poya International has designed a training progmaddisclose)
relative information of such program on the humacruiting
website:
http://www.104.com.tw/cfdocs/project/1305/poya_13DHplan.html

1. Poya International executed “Profile Protecttan” in 2013
The Audit Office is delegated to maintain such pkaccording
to this plan, those profiles filled out by the stgrersonnel or
customers shall be protected in the safe and sbabe taken
out arbitrarily. At a regular base, some of thespaal profiles
shall be destroyed to protect customer’s privacy.

2. Poya International has appointed designatedpees to
handle the complaints of customers. The customaptnt
hotline is: 0800-033168.
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Discrepancy from Corporate Social
Responsibility Best Practice Principles by
TWSE/GTSM:-listed Companies and the
reasons

the

Compliant  with requirements
“Corporate  Social Responsibility Bes
Practice Principles by TWSE/GTSMisted
Companies”.




State of operation

Discrepancy from Corporate Social
Responsibility Best Practice Principles by
TWSE/GTSM:-listed Companies and the

reasons

(G) Poya International complies with the relative ridesl |[(G) Poya International sells products in compliancéie relativelCompliant  with  the requirements
regulations and international guidelines when rules and regulations and international guidelines. “Corporate  Social Responsibility Bes
marketing or labeling their products and services. Practice Principles by TWSE/GTSMisted

(H) Poya International takes into consideration whether(H) Poya International takes some steps before makauptact |Companies”.
suppliers involved in any record of causing damdge with the supplier. Poya International reviette background ali
the environment or society before making transasti other related information of the supplier. The eogpks of the
with the suppliers. purchasing division visit the suppliers’ factorseigularly to

understand the environment and the process of goods
production, as well as overall corporate operation.

()] Poya International may at any time terminate ocires(l) Poya International includes in the contract teretgiiring
the contracts with major suppliers when any of thern compliance with relative product rules and reguladi Ifthere ig
violates the corporate social responsibility pokad any violation, Poya International will remove thencerned
causes impacts on the environment and society. product from the shelves at once, and the supgitialt take

responsibility to pay compensation.

D. Intensification of information disclosure Compliant with the requirements

(A) Poya International discloses relevant and reliable [(A)  Poya International has made the 2014 CorporateaSoci “Corporate  Social Responsibility Bes
information of corporate social responsibility dre t Responsibility Report in 2015 and disclosed thedremn Practice Principles by TWSE/GTSMisted
official website and MOPS. MOPS and official websites in Chinese and English. Companies”.

E. If the Company enacts its Corporate Social RespditgiBest Practice Principle in accordance while tCorporate Social Responsibility Best Practidaediples for

TWSE-GTSM-listed Companies”, specify the discrepesmbetween the execution and the content of timeiple:

The Company has complied with requirements of “Gaafe Social Responsibility Best Practice Prinafdg TWSE/GTSM- listed Companies” according to aglle rules

and regulations.

The Company has issued 2014 corporate social regpldg report in 2015, also has disclosed it ba website. Currently, the corporate social resipditg report has not ye

been verified by any certification institution.

F.  Other major information that helps to understardperation of corporate social responsibility:
(A) The Company has disclosed the Corporate SocialdRs#plity Report on MOPS and official websitesGhinese and English in 2015 to help to understaadCompany’s
operation of corporate social responsibility.
(B) The implementations in 2015:
(1) Poya International participated into the “Internatil Beach Clean-Up” held by “the Society of Wildess” to protect the environment by action.
(2) Poya International participated into the activigmred “Love in Kaohsiung-Christmas Carnival” held“Kpohsiung Community Services Association”.
(3) Poya International sponsored national slow-pitdhlsall championships- the silence cup for heaiingaired labor in Tainan in 2015.
G. Ifthe Corporate Social Responsibility Report af ompany is accredited by the external accreditagency, elaborate on the standards applicalties taccreditation:
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(6) The practice of ethical corporate management arabures:

A.

(A)

(B)

(©

Policy of ethical corporate management and actian |
in place

Poya International elaborates the policy and agilan
of ethical corporate management in the internaécog
and external documents, and the Board of Direcidr
the management actively meet the commitments of]
executing operating policies.

Poya International enacts the prevented program
against unethical behaviors, stipulates the omerati
procedure, code of conduct, discipline of violatéord
complaint system in each program and executes
thoroughly.

Poya International adopts prevented measures tow|
those operating activities with higher risks of tiieal
behaviorgegulated by Article 7.2 of “Ethical Corpor4
Management Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM:- listed companies” or within the
business scope of the Company.

State of operation

Poya International has enacted Procedures fordtthic
Management and Guidelines for Conduct, and exedated
compliance with relative policies.

Poya International has enacted Procedures ford&thic
Management and Guidelines for Conduct, and execated
compliance with relative policies. Relative mattars also
regulated in the “Rules of Work and Personnel Managnt
Regulations”

Poya International appoints the Finance and Acéognt
Division as the exclusive dedicated unit, in chasfjthe
execution of prevented measures against unethetelviors an
the regular reports submitted to the Board of Dmex

Discrepancy from Ethic Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles for

TWSE/GTSM:-listed Principles and the
reasons
Compliant with the “Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM:- listed companies.
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State of operation

Discrepancy from Ethic Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles for

TWSE/GTSM:-listed Principles and the
reasons

B.
(A)

(B)

(©)

(D)

(E)

Realization of ethical corporate management

Poya International takes the record of ethical
management of the transaction counterparties into
consideration and includes in contract term reqgiri
compliance with the rules of ethical corporate
management.

Poya International establishes a exclusive (or
concurrently) dedicated unit, which is subordirtate
the Board of Directors, in charge of executingahi
corporate management and reporting the executior
the Board of Directors at a regular interval.

Poya International stipulates the policy of avoidin
conflicts of interests, provides proper channeis fo
reporting and receiving complaints, and executes
thoroughly.

Poya International establishes the effective aciogin
system and internal control system, and receives th
audits periodically carried out by the internal isord
or certified public accountants in order to thoriolyg
execute ethical corporate management.

Poya International holds the external and internal
education and training of ethical corporate managg
at regular intervals.

(A)

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

Poya International has explicitly stated in allibess agreeme
the relative rules and regulations of ethical coafm
management which emphasizes on the prohibitiorivirigyor
taking bribes.

Poya International has appointed Finance and Adoaun
Division as an exclusive dedicated unit, which kreglort to the
Board of Directors at regular intervals.

Poya International has stipulated the rules andlaéigns in its
Procedures for Ethical Management and Guideline€émduct
that the directors, managers and the stakeholdesgpting or
participating at the Board meeting as a noting observer shg
express opinions about the relationship of interesthe Board
meeting when a proposal at a Board meeting coneedirector
manager or stakeholder’s personal interest omeedast of the
juristic person represented by the director, manage
stakeholder. If such a relationship is likely tejpdice the
interest of the Company, such director, managstakeholder
may not participate in the discussion nor votelat proposal.
In addition, the director, manager or stakeholtatlgefuse
involvement in discussion and voting, and may xereise
voting rights as proxy on behalf of another directo

Internal auditors and certified public accountarit®oya
International have established an accounting syatarinterna
audit control system, have executed thoroughly r@eg to
applicable laws, and have reported to the Boafdirgfctors
Poya International holds a monthly meeting for mgki
announcements of the relative policies to all tmpleyees, and
includes the relative rules and regulations ofcethtorporate
management in its Rules of Personnel Managemetwgtiall

be reviewed by the new employee.

Compliant wih the “Ethical Corpora
Management Best Practice Principles
TWSE/GTSM:- listed companies.
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State of operation

Discrepancy from Ethic Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM:-listed Principles and the
reasons

C. Operation of the system for the personnel to report

the unethical practices of others
Poya International establishes the concrete syatem
convenient channel for the personnel to reporten t
unethical practices of others and the relative rdwa
policy; also, appoints proper personnel to hariude t
matters based on the object being reported to the
unethical practices.

(A)

Poya International establishes the standard opesdti
procedures for investigating into the unethicacpcas
being reported on and the relative confidentiatesys

(B)

(A)

(B)

Poya International has establishes the systenméopérsonnel
to report on the unethical practices of othersthidal
Corporate Management Best Practice Principles ag£of
Ethical Conduct. Employees can report to the Board
Directors, Audit Office, internal auditor or hisfhienmediate
officer. Poya International has appointed Auditi€¥fas an
exclusive dedicated unit to manage the relatecsssu

Poya International has establishes the mechanisthdo
personnel to report on the unethical practicedtuérs in Ethicg
Corporate Management Best Practice Principles ag£of
Ethical Conduct. The coherent department will gtadollect
the evidences and investigate with secrecy oneedives the
notice.

Compliant with the “Ethical Corporg
Management Best Practice Principles
TWSE/GTSM:- listed companies.

and regulations.

(C) Poya International takes the measure of protetiiag [(C) Poya International allows anonymous report on tiethical
reporter from being improperly punished for repugti practices of others in its Rules of Personnel Mansnt to
on the unethical practices of others. protect the reporter and stipulates relative reguria in Codes
of Ethical Conduct.
D. Intensification of information disclosure Compliant with the “Ethical Corporg
(A) Poya International discloses the Ethical Corporate [(A) The special web page was designed for corporatergamce ofManagement Best Practice Principles
Management Best Practice Principles and its exaty official websites in Chinese and English to diseltdse relative [TWSE/GTSM- listed companies.
on the official websites and MOPS. information of ethical corporate management. Besi@@ya
International has uploaded the Principles on theP80
E. Ifthe Company enacts its Ethical Corporate ManaggrBest Practice Principles in accordance witH'Btkical Corporate Management Best Practice Ppiesifor

TWSE/GTSM:- listed companies”, specify the discregpas between the execution and the content ofiiineiple:
The Company has complied with requirements of ‘€&hCorporate Management Best Practice Principle$\WSE/GTSM- listed companies” according to apgitie rules

Management Best Practice Principles):

operation of ethical corporate management

F.  Other major information that helps to understardperation of ethical corporate management (famgte, any amendment to the provision of the Etiicaporate

Poya International has uploaded its Ethical Corgokéanagement Best Practice Principles on the Ghiofficial websites and the MOPS in order to telpnderstand the
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(7) Mean of inquiry for corporate governance principdesl related regulations: the special web pagedesigined for the investors on the official website
(http://www.poya.com.tw).

(8) Other major information that helps to understareddperation of corporate governance shall alsadmoded on the following platform:
A. The special web page designed for the investoth®@nfficial website (http://www.poya.com.tw).
B. MOPS: http://mops.twse.com.tw/mops/web/index
The abbreviation is “Poya” and the Stock Code B0%.

(9) The implementation of the internal control system:
A. Declaration of internal control: please refer tg@ad44-145.
B. Certified Public Accountant Review Report whichissued by the certified public accountants basetheraudit result of the internal control

system: None.
(10) In the last fiscal period as of the date this rep@s printed, the main faults and the improvenaeé@iny case that the Company or its personnel was

punished based on the regulations, or that thepeet was punished by the Company for violatinggtevision of internal control system shall be
specified: None.
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(11) In the last fiscal period as of the date this repa@s printed, the major resolutions of the
Shareholders Meeting and the Board of Directorsaar®llowed:

A. Major resolutions of the Shareholders Meeting

Nature of ‘ Date of ‘

Resolutions Implementation

meeting meeting

Proceed as
resolved.
The proposal had
been passed. Th
date of
distribution was
set up on Aug. 3,
Proposal for distribution of 2014 profits 2015.

Cash dividends o
NT$ 696,436,627,
had been
distributed on
Aug. 27, 2015.
The proposal had
been passed.
2015.06.10 Poya Internationd
proposed to issuq
941,130 new
shares through
Proposal for a new share issuance through caitaliz of capitalization of
earnings and employee bonus earnings of NT$
9,411,300.
Employee bonus
of NT$31,000,00(
had been
distributed on
Aug. 27, 2015.
Executed as
resolved.
Amendments to part of provisions of “Rules of Pichae for Executed as
Shareholders Meetings”. resolved.

Business Report and Financial Statement of FY 2014

17

=

Shareholders
Meeting

Amendments to part of provisions of “Articles ottrporate”

B. In the last fiscal period as of the date this repaas printed, the Board of Directors
held 15 sessions and the major resolutions are suized as followed:
Nature of ‘ Date of ‘

; . Resolutions
meeting meeting

1. Passed the motion of distributing year-end bonukdananagers in

FY2014

2. Passed the motion of distributing year-end bonwhsirman and
vice-chairman in FY2014

3. Passed the motion of borrowing an amount of NT$h0llon from

2015.01.26 Chang Hwa Bank in mid-term loans. Chairman Chen-4&o was
authorized to handle the transactions with the bank

4. Passed the motion of the application to Chang HauakBor the
guarantee of gift certificates, with the amountrgnteed to be NT$20

million.

Board
Session

Passed the 2014 Business Report and Financiahttate.
Passed the proposal for distribution of 2014 psofit

Passed the proposal of new share issuance thrapifialzation of
earnings and employee bonus.

Board
Session

wnN P

2015.02.24
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Nature of Date of :
Resolutions

meeting meeting

4. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofrihva@gions of the
“Articles of Incorporation”.

5. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofrih@gions of the
“Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Eipte”

6. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofrinegons of the
“Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Prlasip

7. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofrih@gions of the
“Management of the Use of Seals”

8. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofrinegons of the
“Management of the Receipt and Use of Negotiabd¢eriments”

9. Passed the motion of calling for a regular sessfahe Shareholders
Meeting in FY 2015.

10. Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Intermati€o., Ltd.
Zhongzheng Branch in Taoyuan

=

Passed the proposal of “Declaration of Internalt@ds in FY 2014”".

2. Passed the assessment of the independence angregipress, and the
appointment of the certified public accountant

3. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofringgons of the
“Investment Cycle”

4. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofrihvdgions of the
“Finance Cycle”

5. Passed the motion of the submission of the “Prodragserving the
Security of Personal Data Files”

Board 2015.03.23 6. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofringgions of the

Session T “Rules of Procedures for Shareholders Meeting”

7. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofrilnggions of the
“Procedures for Ethical Management and Guideline€bnduct”

8. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofringgions of the
“Codes of Ethical Conduct”

9. Passed the motion of the re-enactment of the “Implgation Rules of
Internal Audit” of the internal audit system, alsbiing the original
“Implementation Rules of Internal Audit”

10. Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Intermati€o., Ltd. Chung

Shan Branch in Tamsui

1. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofritnggions of the
“Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles”

2. Passed the motion of the enactment of the “RuldsPaacedures for
Board of Directors Performance Assessments”

3. Passed the motion of the amendment to the followowuments of
internal control system:
A. Re-enactment of the “Sale and Receipt Cy€ldie original one wg

abolished)

B. Re-enactment of the “Purchase and Payment Cycle2 @Figinal

Board 2015.04.27 one was abolished)

Session T C. Enactment of the “Delegation of Duties and Measifiieeputy
Systems” (The original enactments of “Measure Gowvegythe
Management of Delegation of Duties” and “Measur®eputy of
Duties” were abolished)

D. Re-enactment of the “Property, Plant and Equiprsate” (The
original enactment of “Fix Asset Cycle” was aboédh

4. Passed the motion of the amendment to the followitegnal charters:

A. Amendment to part of the provisions of the “ChagkeNominating
Committee for Directors” and modification to thenmaof the
Charter as “Nominating Committee Charter”
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Nature of
meeting

Date of
meeting

Resolutions

B. Amendment to part of the provisions of the “Rematien
Committee Charter”

Passed the motion of the replacement of the extauditors due to the

internal changes in the office of the certified fiiaccountants

commissioned to do tax-affair review

Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Internati€o., Ltd. Huaxia

Branch in Zuoying, Xiangyang Branch in Fengyuared@n Mall Branch

in Kaohsiung, Liugiao Branch in Gangshan, Zhongghgranch in

Yongkang and Sanduo Branch in Kaohsiung

Board
Session

2015.05.29

Passed the motion of acquisition of real estateeimgyuan Taichung.

Board
Session

2015.07.06

N

Passed the motion of drawing up the matters ofiedehds and exights
for FY2015
Passed the motion of distributing cash dividendsf2015profits.

Board
Session

2015.07.27

wnN

Passed the proposal of “Individual RemuneratiorBiéctors and
Supervisors in FY2014”.

Passed the motion of distributing bonus to the marsin FY2014.
Passed the motion of insurance renewal for thetdire andhe importan
executives. (The expiration date of liability inances is October 1, 201
Passed the motion of the re-enactment of the “fR@leverning the
Operation of System Development Division”, abolighthe original
“Rules Governing the Operation of IT Department”.

Passed the motion of financing from financial itugton. Chairman Che
Jian-Zao was authorized to handle the transactidthsthe bank.
Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Intermati€o., Ltd. Jhong
Shan North Branch in Gangshan.

Board
Session

2015.09.07

Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Internati€o., Ltd. Henan
Branch in Taichung, Gongshang Branch in Wugu, DeBianch in
Nanzih, Mingcheng Branch in Kaohsiung, Yumin Branmtfiucheng,
Gongzheng Branch in Xiluo, Yude Branch in Dajia.

Board
Session

2015.10.26

w N

Passed the motion of the enactment of the “Proesdor Election of

Director”, abolishing the original” Rules for Direes Election”

Passed the motion of the amendment to the” Intekandit System”.

Passed the motion of the enactment of the followilmgernal Audit

Programs”:

A. The enactment of “Safety Control Mechanism of Cotaepand
Network System”.

B. The enactment of “Majors for IT System and Docuntgatkup anc
Recovery”.

Passed the motion of the rescission of POYA Intesnal Co., Ltd Ziyou

Branch in Kaohsiung and Shalu Branch in Taichung.

Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Internati€o., Ltd.

Pingzhen Branch in Taoyuan, Wannei Branch in Kaottgi

Board
Session

2015.11.16

Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Internati€o., Ltd. Dasing
Branch in Taoyuan.

Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Internati€o., Ltd.
Farglory Branch irSijhih.

Board
Session

2015.12.28

Passed the self assessment of the capability gfrdparation of financia
statement.

Passed the motion of the amendment of part ofriinageons of the”
Management Operational Process for Preparing Rak8tatement”.
Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofringgons of the

“ Internal Audit System”.
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Nature of

Date of

D

>

) ‘ , ‘ Resolutions
meeting meeting

4. Passed the motion of the enactment of “2016 AnAudlit Plan”

5. Passed the “2016 Annual Operating Plan”

6. Passed the motion of the enactment of the “ ApfitinaProcess of the
Trading Pause and Resumption”

7. Passed the motion of entrusting the amount ofcgiftificates to KGI for
issuance of gift certificates. Comply with the sibnd regulations, the
gift certificate issuance is the business whichGbenpany shall bear th
obligation to entrust the amount as developing suiness.

8. Passed the motion of planning the constructiomeftarehouse buildin
of the logistic center which was mandated to otheisuild on the rente
land.

9. Passed the motion of planning the procurement oéhvause equipment
of the logistic center.

10. Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Intermali€o., Ltd.
Douyuan Branch in Erlin, Zihciang Branch in Jhub®ynsian Branch ir
Tainan.

1. Passed the proposal of the year-end bonus for &émagers in FY2015

2. Passed the proposal of the year-end bonus fomhiientan and the vice

Board 2016.01.25 chairman in FY2015.

Session 713, Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Internati€o., Ltd. Sihu
Branch in Changhua, Raohe Branch in Songshan, Rerdach in
Sanchong.

1. Passed the motion of the amendment to part ofriinegons of the
“ Article of the Corporation”.

2. Passed the proposal for distribution of 2015 psofit

3. Passed the proposal of the “ Remunerations of grapkand directors |
FY 2015.

Board 2016.02.22 4. Passed the proposal of a new share issuance thcapghlization of
Session o earnings.

5. Passed the 2015 Business Report and Financiah#ats.

6. Passed the motion of calling for a regular sesgfdhe Shareholders
Meeting in FY 2016.

7. Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Internmati€o., Ltd.
Dongmen Branch in Taipei.

1. Passed the proposal of” Declaration of Internalt@bin FY 2015

2. Passed the motion of the enactment of “Procedoresléction of
Certified Public Accountant.”

3. Passed the assessment of the independence angrigipress, and the

Board 2016.03.28 appointment of the certified public accountant
Session =714, Passed the proposal of personal change of actoigesperson.

5. Passed the motion of the disposal of the Companland and buildingf
Fong Yuan branch.

6. Passed the motion of alteration of the locatiorstgdting up the POYA
International Co., Ltd. Renai Branch in Sanchong.

1. Passed the motion of the re-enactment of the “Mayyales” of the
internal audit system. (The original one has bdmished.)

Board 2. Passed the proposal of personal change of inteusd officer.
Sessi 2016.04.25|3. Passed the motion of alteration of the locatiorstiting up the POYA
ession : N : .
International Co., Ltd. Kueijen Branch in Tainan.
4. Passed the motion of setting up the POYA Internati€o., Ltd.

Zhonghe Branch in New Taipei City, Homei BranciZimanghua.
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(12) In the last fiscal period as of the date this rep@s printed, the major content of the
adverse opinion of the directors or supervisothédecision over specific motions at the

Board Meeting on record or with a written declaratshall be specified: None.
(13) In the last fiscal period as of the date this rep@s printed, the resignation and dismissal
of the Company’s personnel (including chairman,egahmanager, accounting manager,
Apr 27 2016

Title

Officer of

Name

internal audit manager...etc.) shall be summarized:

Date of Office

Date of Dismissal

Reason for the
Change

Marketing and Chen Chun-Tsai 2009.02.19 2016.03.31 Leave withaut
Planning Divisiol
Officer.of Audit Tsai Yee-Pei 2012.04.01 2016.05.01 Position adjerstr

st
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5. Information on the fees for certified public accounants

Name of CPA firm ‘ Name of CPAs
PriceWaterhouse Lee Liou
Coopers Taiwan Ming-Hsian | Tzu-Meng 2015.01.01-2015.12.3 ]

Item ” Miscellaneous
Bracket Auditing fees foos
Less than 2,000 v
2,000~4,000(exclusive) v -

4,000~6,000(exclusive)
6,000~8,000(exclusive)
8,000~10,000(exclusive)
10,000 and more

o0 W N

(1) If the payment of the miscellaneous services resulby the certified public accountants,
the CPA firm or its affiliates accounts for moramh25% of the auditing fees, the amounts
of the auditing fees and miscellaneous fees anddhtents of the miscellaneous services

shall be disclosed.
Fees for certified public accountants

Currency unit: NT$ 1,000

Name of CPA | Name of | Auditing i Audit

firm CPAs Business period RIS
ignjregistration
Other
Lee miscellaneous
Ming-Hsien fees- includes the

fees for the
secretarial work,
printing of the
report on new
share issued
" through
[ capitalization of
earnings, and
certification of
taxation. Total
amount is
NT$185.
(Currency unit:
NT$ 1,000).

(2) If the auditing fees decrease with the comparidadhefees in a year previous to the year
of replacement of the CPA firm, the amount of thdiang fees before and after the
replacement and the reasons shall be disclosed.Non

(3) If the auditing fees decrease by more than 15% thiéhcomparison of the fees in the
previous year, the decrease amount of the audiéeg, the percentage and the reasons

PriceWaterhous 2015.01.01
Coopers Taiwa 3,250 185 185 2015.12.31
Liou
Tzu-Meng

shall be disclosed: None.
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6. Information on the replacement of certified publicaccountants, in the last two fiscal
periods and after:
Poya International replaced the certified publiccamtants to react to the changes of internal
organization in PriceWaterhouse Coopers Taiwardin2

(1) Former certified public accountants

Date of replacement 2014.03.17
Reasons and |React to the changes of internal organization icefVaterhouse
explanation Coopers Taiwan
T Party CPA The Company
Explanation that tH>tuation (Consigner)

Company or the CHyerminate the
terminatgs or  rejedapnointment voluntarily
the appointment Reject the (continued)
appointment

None

Opinions on and
reasons of an audit
report issued by the
former CPA during the
most recent 2 years
containing an opinion
other than an
unqualified opinion.

None

Accounting policies or practices

Financial report disclosure
Auditing scope or procedure
Other

Any disagreements |Yes
between the former
CPA and the issuer

No [V’
Description

Others (shall be
disclosed according tq
Article 10, None
Subparagraph 5, Item)
1-4 of the Principle)
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(2) Successor certified public accountants

Name of the accounting firm PriceWaterhouse Caopaiwan
Name of the CPAs Lee Ming-Hsien, Liou Tzu-Meng
Date of the appointment 2014.03.17

Consultations and the consultation results of
issues made by the new CPA regarding
accounting treatment of or application afcounting
policies to a specific transaction, or the typeaodit None
opinion that might be rendered on the secu
firm’s financial report prior to the formal engagent
of the successor CPA.

Any disagreements in written form between

Non
successor CPA and the former CPA one

7. If the chairman, general manager, finance or accoummg manager of the Company has
been working in the accounting firm of the CPAs oiits affiliates within the last year, the
name and title of the personnel and the period ofugh working relation existing: None.
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8.

In the last fiscal period as of the date this repdrwas printed, the status of the transfer

of shares or the shares in pledge held by the direxrs, supervisors, managers or the
shareholders with more than 10% of the Company’s sfres:

(1) Transfer of shares held by the directors, manamggishe major shareholders

FY2015

Change in

guantity of
SUETES

In 2016 as of the date this
report was printed
Change in| Change in
guantity of| quantity of
shares |shares pledge:

Change in
guantity of
shares pledge(

Duo Chin Investment 77 551 0 0 0
. Co.,Ltd.
Chairman -
Representative: 0 0 0 0
Chen Jian-Zao
Vice Poya Investment Co., Ltd. 77,68( 0 0 0
Chairman |Representative: 1
Chen Fan Mei-Jin L ¢ ¢ ¢
Directorand
General |Chen Zong-Cheng 69,32 (2,100,000 0 0
Manager
Director (Chen Ming-Shian 0 0 0 0
Independen, i, Tsai-yuan 0 0 0 0
Director
Independen .
Director Jung Jiun-Rung 0 0 0 0
Independen, ;| 5 ping 0 0 0 0
Director
Finance ant
Accounting|Shen Hong-Yu 3,888 0 0 0
Manager
(2) Information showing the counterparty of the shaasdferring is the interested party:

None

3)
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9. Information showing that top 10 shareholders havelte relationship with one another as
the related parties, spouse or kindred within the &d tier.

Information on the relationship among the top 10 shreholders

Shares held by the spouse an

Shares held by the person underage children

Proportion of Proportion of

Qty of

Qty of

Shares held by the name of a

third party

Proportion of

April 2 2016

The name and relationship of
top 10 shareholders having th
relationship with one another
as the related parties, spouse
kindred within the 2™ tier
specified in SFAS No. 6.

Remarks

shareholdings| shareholdings| shareholdings | shareholdings [ shareholdings | shareholdings RIS
Chen Jian-Za Spouse
Poya Investment Col, Chen Son-in-law
Ltd. 7,845,71 8.23% Zong-Cheng | Mother and
Representative: 172,292 0.18% 0 0% 0 0% Chen Lee-Leqd  daughter
Chen Fan Mei-Jin Chen Mother and
Rong-Rong daughter
Che_n Ean Spouse
. Mei-Jin -
Duo Chin Investmen| Chen Son-in-law
Co., Ltd. 7,832,651 8.22% | . Father and
Representative: 0 0% 172,293 0.18% 0 0% ch gL Lg daughter
Chen Jian-Zao €N -€€-Le8  Father and
i daughter
Rong-Rong
Chen
Spouse
Chen Ching Czhoenng:J(i;T;g Father and
Investment Co., Ltd. 7,288,29] 7.65% Chen Ean daughter
Representative: 2,390,576 2.51% 6,182,24 6.49% 0 0% Meidi Mother and
ei-Jin
Chen Lee-Lee Chen daughter
Sisters
Rong-Rong
Investment Account
of Small
Denomination World
Funds Co. Ltd. in et 2 T 0 0% 0 0%
custody of Deutsche
Bank
Kuai Wei Investment Chen Jian-Za Father-in-law
Co., Ltd. 6,466,91 6.79% Chen Fan Mother-in-law
Representative: 5,962,174 6.26% 2,610,65 2.74 0 0% Mei-Jin
Chen Zong-Cheng Chen Lee-Leg Spouse
Chgr?e\::agéﬁa Father-in-law
Chen Zong-Cheng 5,962,174 6.26% 2,610,65 2.749% 0 0%! Mei-Jin Mother-in-law
Chen Lee-Led SIeES
2 Chgg Spouse
Chang Yi Investmen Choenng:liane-;g Father and
Co., Ltd. 2,937,52 3.08% Chen Ean daughter
Representative: 2,390,576 2.51% 6,182,24 6.49% 0 0% Meidi Mother and
Chen Lee-Lee (?rl{er:n daughter
Sisters
Rong-Rong
Gao Heng Investme! Chen Jian-Za Fda;EeLtaer:d
Co., Ltd. 2,533,45] 2.66% Chen Fan Mothgr —
Representative: 466,479 0.49%9 0 0% 0 0% Mei-Jin
Chen Rong-Rong Chen Lee-Ledq dayghter
Sisters
Chen Spouse
Zong-Cheng | oihor and
Chen Jian-Za daughter
Chen Lee-Lee 2,390,5Y6 2.51% 6,182,24 6.49% 0 0%| Chen Fan Mother and
Mei-Jin
Chen da_ughter
Rong-Rong Sisters
Wei Jing Investment Chen Jian-Za Fda;EeLtaer:d
Co., Ltd. 2,243,53 2.35% Chen Fan M thg d
Representative: 466,479 0.49% 0 0% 0 0% Mei-Jin (;J eL?n
Chen Rong-Rong Chen Lee-Leg gius%erser

10. The quantity of shareholdings of a particular reinvestment business held by the Company,
its directors, supervisors, managers and the invesient business directly or indirectly
controlled by the Company, and the consolidated peentage of combined shareholdings:

None.
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I\VV. Capital Projection and Implementation

Capital Projection and Implementation
1. Capital stock and shares

(1) Sources of capital stock

April 27 2016; unit: NT$1; share

Stated capital Paid-in capital Remarks
Issuing Investment by

Year/month

price Quantity of shares Amount Quantity of shares Amount Source of capital stock properties beyond Others
cash

Mar 1997 1,000 20,040 20,000,00 20,004 20,000,00@Capital for incorporation No -

Raised capital of

Nov 1998 10 4,400,00 44,000,00( 4,400,00 44,000,00{NT$24,000,000 by issuing ne No -

shares

Raised capital of

Jul 1999 10 12,400,000 124,000,000 12,400,00 124,000,00pNT$80,000,000 by issuing ne No Note 1

shares

Issued new shares through

capitalization of retained

earnings amounted to

NT$ 24,800,000.

Issued new shares through

|capitalization of retained

earnings amounted to

NT$ 14,880,000.

Issued new shares through

capitalization of retained

earnings amounted to

NT$ 40,920,000.

Issued new shares through

capitalization of employee bon

amounted to NT$

347,000.

Issued new shares through

capitalization of retained

earnings amounted to

NT$ 30,742,050

Issued new shares through

capitalization of employee bon

amounted to NT$

3,000,000.

Issued new shares through

capitalization of retained

earnings amounted to

NT$ 11,934,450.

Issued new shares through

capitalization of employee bon

amounted to NT$

4,395,500.

Issued new shares through

capitalization of retained

earnings amounted to
T$76,505,700.

Issued new shares through

capitalization of employee bon

amounted to NT$

8,000,000

Converted the convertible

corporate bonds into 903,106

common shares, with the raise

capital to be NT$9,031,060

Converted the convertible

corporate bonds into 4,436,638

common shares, with the raised

capital to be NT$44,366,380.

Converted the convertible

corporate bonds into 333,184

common shares, with the raise

capital to be NT$3,331,840.

Converted the convertible

corporate bonds into 8,768

common shares, with the raised

capital to be NT$87,680

Raised capital of

Sep 2006 10 61,000,000 610,000,00 80,000,00( 476,341,66(NT$175,200,000 by issuing ne No Note 12

shares

Issued new shares through

capitalization of retained

earnings amounted to

NT$60,573,000.

Issued new shares through

|capitalization of employee bon

amounted to NT$

10,252,300.

Converted the convertible

corporate bonds into 233,892

common shares, with the raise

capital to be NT$2,338,920

Converted the convertible

corporate bonds into 136,777

common shares, with the raise

capital to be NT$1,367,770

Issued 7,414,000 new shares

through private placement, wit|

the raised capital to be

NT$74,140,000

Sep 2000 10 14,880,00 148,800,00 14,880,00 148,800,00 No Note 2

Oct 2001 10 16,368,000 163,680,001 16,368,001 163,680,001 No Note 3

Jun 2002 10 30,000,00! 300,000,00 20,494,70 204,947,00 No Note 4

May 2003 10 40,000,040 400,000,00 23,868,90 238,689,05 No Note 5

Jun 2004 10 46,000,00 460,000,00f 25,501,90 255,019,00 No Note 6

Jun 2005 10 46,000,000 460,000,001 33,952,47! 339,524,770 No Note 7

Nov 2005 10 61,000,00! 610,000,00 34,855,57! 348,555, 76 No Note 8

Feb 2006 10 61,000,000 610,000,00 39,292,21. 392,922,141 No Note 9

May 2006 10 61,000,00! 610,000,00 39,625,39; 396,253,98| No Note 10

Jul 2006 10 61,000,000 610,000,00 39,634,16! 396,341,66/ No Note 11

Nov 2006 10 61,000,000 610,000,009 54,950,588 549,505,88! No Note 13

[=}

Apr 2007 10 75,000,00( 750,000,00¢ 55,087,36! 550,873,65! No Note 14

Jun 2007 10 75,000,00 750,000,00! 62,501,36! 625,013,65! No Note 15
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Year/month

Stated capital Paid-in capital Remarks
Issuing Investment by

price Quantity of shares Amount Quantity of shares Amount Source of capital stock properties beyond Others
cash

Sep 2007

Issued new shares through
capitalization of retained
earnings amounted to

NT$ 5,508,740

Issued new shares through
capitalization of employee bon
amounted to

NT$10,252,300

Converted the convertible
corporate bonds into 608,262
common shares, with the raise
capital to be NT$6,082,620

10 85,000,00! 850,000,00 64,685,73 646,857,31 No Note 16

Jun 2008

Issued new shares through
capitalization of retained
earnings amounted to

NT$ 6,468,580

Issued new shares through
capitalization of employee bon
amounted to NT$

10,252,300

10 85,000,000 850,000,009 66,357,81! 663,578,19 No Note 17

Jun 2009

Issued new shares through
capitalization of retained
earnings amounted to

NT$ 59,722,040

Issued new shares through
capitalization of employee bon
amounted to NT$

7,287,440.

10 100,000,00 1,000,000,00 73,058,76 730,587,67 No Note 18

Sep 2010

Issued new shares through
capitalization of retained
earnings amounted to

NT$ 142,464,600.

Issued new shares through
capitalization of employee bon
amounted to NT$

10,037,730.

10 120,000,0p0 1,200,000,00p 88,309,00! 883,090,00! No Note 19

Aug 2011

Issued new shares through
capitalization of retained
earnings amounted to
NT$8,830,900.

Issued new shares through
capitalization of employee bon
amounted to NT$

8,945,680.

10 120,000,00 1,200,000,00 90,086,65 900,866,58 No Note 20

Aug 2012

Issued new shares through
capitalization of retained
earnings amounted to
NT$9,008,660.

Issued new shares through
capitalization of employee bon
amounted to NT$

6,391,750.

10 120,000,00 1,200,000,00 91,626,69 916,266,99 No Note 21

Aug 2013

Issued new shares through
capitalization of retained
earnings amounted to
NT$9,162,660.

Issued new shares through
capitalization of employee bon
amounted to NT$

3,642,980.

10 120,000,00 1,200,000,00 92,907,26 929,072,63 No Note 22

Aug 2014

Issued new shares through
capitalization of retained
earnings amounted to
NT$9,290,720.

Issued new shares through
capitalization of employee bon
amounted to NT$

2,767,220.

10 120,000,00 1,200,000,00 94,113,05 941,130,57 No Note 23

Aug 2015

Issued new shares through
capitalization of retained
earnings amounted to NT$
95,277,38 952,773,88(9,411,300.

Issued new shares through
capitalization of employee bon
amounted to NT$

2,232,010.

10 120,000,00 1,200,000,00 No Note 24

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:
Note 4:

Note 5:
Note 6:
Note 7:
Note 8:
Note 9:
Note 10:
Note 11:
Note 12:
Note 13:

Note 14:
Note 15:
Note 16:

At the approval of Securities and Futurem@ission of the Ministry of Finance under Lett®0%.7.19(88) Tai-Tsai-Cheng (I) N0.63994.
At the approval of Securities and Futurem@ission of the Ministry of Finance under Lett®02.9.18(89) Tai-Tsai-Cheng(l) No.78517.
At the approval of Securities and Futures@ission of the Ministry of Finance under Lett602.10.9(90) Tai-Tsai-Cheng (I) No. 162012.
At the approval of Securities and Futuresn@ission of the Ministry of Finance under Lett€02.6.19(91) Tai-Tsai-Cheng (I) No.
0910133129.

At the approval of Securities and Futures@ission of the Ministry of Finance under Lett®03.5.26 Tai-Tsai-Cheng(l) No.0920123022.
At the approval of Securities and Futurem@ission of the Ministry of Finance under Lett€02.6.04 Tai-Tsai-Cheng(l) N0.0930124844.
At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan under Letter 20@F.&hin-Kuan-Cheng (I) No.0940122740.
At the approval of Ministry of Economic Affs under Letter 2005.11.25 Ching-Shou-Chung-T@i 09433215370.

At the approval of Ministry of Economic Affs under Letter 2006.02.17 Ching-Shou-Chung-T@i0N531714710.

At the approval of Ministry of Economicfaifs under Letter 2006.05.02 Ching-Shou-ChungN@i09532117920.

At the approval of Ministry of Economicfaifs under Letter 2006.07.18 Ching-Shou-ChungN@i09532523600.

At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan under Letter 206086 Chin-Kuan-Cheng (I) N0.0950120110.
At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan on capitalizatiémetained earnings under Letter 2006.09.18
Chin-Kuan-Cheng (1) N0.095014275.

At the approval of the Ministry of Economic Affaien conversion of corporate bonds into common shareler Letter 2006.11.07
Ching-Shou-Shang-Tzi N0.09501247890.

At the approval of Ministry of Economicfaifs under Letter 2007.04.30 Ching-Shou-ChungN@i09601092770.

At the approval of Ministry of Economicfaifs under Letter 2007.06.12 Ching-Shou-ChungN@i09601127360.

At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan on capitalizatiémetained earnings under Letter 2007.07.09
Chin-Kuan-Cheng (1) No. 0960034976.

At the approval of the Ministry of Economic Affaien conversion of corporate bonds into common shareler Letter 2007.09.13
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Note 17:

Note 18:

Note 19:

Note 20:

Note 21:

Note 22:

Note 23:

Note 24:

Ching-Shou-Shang-Tzi N0.0960125730.

At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan on capitalizatiémetained earnings under Letter 2008.06.19
Chin-Kuan-Cheng (1) N0.0970030752.

At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan on capitalizatiémetained earnings under Letter 2009.06.22
Chin-Kuan-Cheng (1) N0.0980030830.

At the approval of the Ministry of Economic Affaismder Letter 2009.08.10 Ching-Shou-Shang-Tzi N802279010.

At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan on capitalizatiémetained earnings under Letter 2010.08.06
Chin-Kuan-Cheng (1) N0.0990041257.

At the approval of Ministry of Economic Affairs uadLetter 2010.11.02 Ching-Shou-Shang-Tzi No.0986320.

At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan on capitalizatibmetained earnings under Letter 2011.07.08
Chin-Kuan-Cheng-Fa-Tzi N0.1000031705.

At the approval of Ministry of Economic Affairs uedLetter 2011.08.15 Ching-Shou-Shang-Tzi No.1086Z30.

At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan on capitalizatiémetained earnings under Letter 2012.06.25
Chin-Kuan-Cheng-Fa-Tzi N0.1010027987.

At the approval of Ministry of Economic Affairs uedLetter 2012.08.06 Ching-Shou-Shang-Tzi No.10%0740.

At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan on capitalizatiémetained earnings under Letter 2013.06.28
Chin-Kuan-Cheng-Fa-Tzi N0.1020025274.

At the approval of Ministry of Economic Affairs uadLetter 2013.08.16 Ching-Shou-Shang-Tzi No.1086230.

At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan on capitalizatiémetained earnings under Letter 2014.07.03
Chin-Kuan-Cheng-Fa-Tzi N0.1030025252.

At the approval of Ministry of Economic Affairs uedLetter 2014.08.14 Ching-Shou-Shang-Tzi No.1086820

At the approval of Financial Supervisogn@nission of the Executive Yuan on capitalizatiémetained earnings under Letter 2015.07.01
Chin-Kuan-Cheng-Fa-Tzi N0.1040024741.

At the approval of Ministry of Economic Affairs uadLetter 2015.08.24 Ching-Shou-Shang-Tzi No.10Z0250
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April 27, 2016; unit: share

Stated Capital
Quantity of Quantity of Remarks
outstanding share§y unissued shares

95,277,388 shares 24,722,612 shares

Common
shares

Stocks listed in Taipei

120,000,000 shares
Exchange

(2) Structure of shareholders
Structure of shareholders

April 2 2016; unit: people; share

Financial Other Natural |. .Fofe'gn
Government| . .. . . institutions and
institutions | institutions persons foreigners
Number 2 28 27 4,377 197 4,624
Quantity of

27,50( 2,081,74 44,138,56( 18,758,57 30,270,96 95,277,38

J

shareholdings
Proportion of
shareholdings

0.03% 2.18% 46.339 19.699 31.779 1009

(3) Diversification of shareholdings

April 2 2016 ; Common shares: NT$10/share

. No. of shareholders QUL .Of . ‘
Rank of shareholdings shareholdings  [Proportion of shareholdings
{zzgelis) (shares)

1 to 999 3,355 423,737 0.449
1,000 to 5,000 888 1,504,171 1.589
5001to 10,000 102 723,051 0.769

10,001to 15,000 49 599,821 0.639
15,001 to 20,000 24 415,29% 0.449
20,001 to 30,000 41 1,004,47] 1.059
30,001to 40,000 16 562,22% 0.599
40,001 to 50,000 12 527,199 0.559
50,001 to 100,000 43 3,031,228 3.189
100,001 to 200,000 34 4,634,52] 4.879
200,001 to 400,000 29 8,146,941 8.559
400,001 to 600,000 5 2,402,90] 2.529
600,001 to 800,000 10 7,161,505 7.529
800,001 to 1,000,000 1 811,861 0.85¢9
More than 1,000,001 17 63,328,446 66.479
Total 4,624 95,277,38 100.00%

Note: Diversification of preferred stocks: None
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(4) List of dominant shareholders

April 2 2016

Quantity of Proportion of

shareholdings(shares shareholdings

Names of dominant shareholders

Poya Investment Co.,Ltd. 7,845,711 8.23%
Duo Chin Investment Co., Ltd. 7,832,655 8.22%
Chen Ching Investment Co., Ltd. 7,288,292 7.65%
O R W I FBg00016 | 700
Kuai Wei Investment Co., Ltd. 6,466,911 6.79%
Chen Zong-Cheng 5,962,174 6.26%
Chang Yi Investment Co., Ltd. 2,937,521 3.08%
Gao Heng Investment Co., Ltd. 2,533,457 2.66%
Chen Lee-Lee 2,390,576 2.51%
Wei Jing Investment Co., Ltd. 2,243,533 2.35%
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(5) The market price, net value, earnings and divideerdshare in the last 2 years and the
related information (TPEX)

Unit: New Taiwan Dollar

Market [Highest 258 402 361
price pe
share |-oWest 165.5 229.5 295.5
(Note 1) |Average 199.34 320.57 326.85
Net ..
value pe|CuM-dividend 25.52 28.72 31.31
share -
(Note 2) [Ex-dividend 18.12 -(Note 9) -(Note 10)
Weighted average quant
of shares(1,000 shares) 93,952 95,179 95,383
Earnings Before
per shar({Earnings per |adjustmen 8.22 10.00 2.59
share After
adjustmert 8.19 -(Note 9) -(Note 10)
Cash dividend 7.4/share ~(Note 9) -(Note 10)
From earnings 0.1/share ~(Note 9) -(Note 10)
DividendStock _
per shar{divideng From capital i ] (Note 10)
surplus
Cumulative unpaid
dividends(Note 4) ] ' (Note 10)
P/E ratio(Note 5) 24.25 32.06 _(Note 10)
arSa.IOyISi P/P ratio(Note 6) 26.94 -(Note 9) -(Note 10)
Cash dividend yield rate
(Note 7) y 3.71% -(Note 9) -(Note 10)

Note 1: The highest, lowest and average price ¢h gaar is shown and the average market priceatf gaar is
calculated with reference to the trading value tading volume.

Note 2: It's based on the quantity of outstandingres at the end of the year and the decisionstritiition of earnings
at the Shareholders Meeting in the next year.

Note 3: If retrospective adjustment is necessagytduhe release of stock dividends, the EPS befodeafter the
adjustment shall be stated.

Note 4: If there is an issue requirement of eqgségurities that unpaid dividend could be accumdl&iehe year with
earnings for distribution, the cumulated amountiigbaid dividends over the year up to current pestuall be
disclosed.

Note 5: P/E ratio = average price per share atrgda the current year/earnings per share.

Note 6: P/P ratio = average price per share aingda the current year/cash dividends per share

Note 7: Cash dividend yield rate = cash dividendgbare/average price per share at closing inuherat year.

Note 8: Information on March 31 2016 is reviewedckytified public accountants.

Note 9: The proposal of dividends for FY 2015 hasrbapproved by the Board of Directors on Feb @26ending
the ratification at the 2016 Shareholders Meefirite proposal shall be resolved by the Shareholerting.

Note 10: Information covers the period of less thaa year.
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(6)

1.

3.

Dividend policy and implementation

Dividends policy as stated in the Company’s Arabé Incorporation

The industry that the Company is in continues tohex with many changes; the
corporate lifecycle is currently in a phase of dtegrowth. After the confirmation of the
financial statements each year, the Company shalthe income tax and also offset losses
for previous years. If after this, retained earmeagnains, the Company shall set aside 10% as
legal reserve and may set aside or reverse moreraras special reserve based on the law.
The remaining profits are distributable earningstfee current period, being added to the
accumulated retrained earnings from the previouar y#® be equal to accumulated
distributable earnings.

The earning distribution of the Company shall beedeined by the Board of Directors
based on the industrial environment where the Comps in, the future business
development and the shareholder profits. The pmpoisShareholder dividend and bonus
distribution shall be executed after it is approbgdthe Shareholders Meeting. Shareholder
dividend and bonus shall be 50% to 100% of the mctated distributable earnings. The
dividend and bonus shall be paid by cash or stak®ng which the cash dividend shall not
be less than 1% of total dividends. Cash divideag not be distributed in the event that it is
less than NT$ 0.5 per share, in which case a sheaidend shall be distributed instead.

New shares or cash dividends may be paid fromredaearnings on condition that the
pool of reserve exceeds 25% of the paid-in capital.

Information on dividends distribution resolved e tShareholders Meeting

On February 22 2016, the Boards of Directors adbpte proposal for distribution of
2015 earnings resolved by 2016 Regular SharehoMeeting as followed:

The accumulated earnings NT$838,441,014 shall pgoppated as cash dividends
(NT$8.80 dollars per share). In addition, aftersidaring future business development, the
accumulated earnings NT$9,527,730 shall be apmmgtias stock dividends to issue new
shares of common stock through capitalization, BB62,shares were calculated. Upon the
distribution of cash dividends being passed by $fmareholders Meeting, the Board of
Directors shall be authorized to set up the dativflend distribution.

The Board of Directors shall be fully authorizedthg Regular Shareholders Meeting to
handle the matters related to that the sharesafitgpto be distributed to each share based on
the number of actual outstanding shares changaibead the change of capital.

Summary of significant change on expected divideoicty: None.
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(7) The impact of stock dividend issuance resolvedhieyShareholders Meeting on the business

performance and EPS

The total stock dividends are 952,773 shares. $figance of stock dividends is for the
purpose of business expansion. There are posiwreflts to the Company’s operating
performance by retaining the cash from operatingiegs for new store expansion in the
future. Under the expectation of stable sale groeftthe Company, the dilution effect of
stock dividend issuance in the current year or&R8 is limited.

The impacts of stock dividend issuance on busimesformance, EPS, and shareholder
Return Rate are as followed:
Unit: NT$ 1,000

N FY 2016
Item (Forecast)

Beginning paid-in capital 952,774
Cash dividend per share NT$ 8.8QNote 1)
The distribution of |Stock dividend per share through capitalizatiof 0.01 share
stock and cash |earnings (Note 1)
dividends Stock dividend per share through capitalization of N

additional paid-in capital

Operating profits

Operating profits, YOY (%)

Net income after tax

The change of
business

performance  |Earnings per share

Net income after tax, YOY (%)

Earnings per share, YOY (%)

Annual average return on investment
(A reciprocal of annual average PE ratio)

The distribution of cash ~ |Pro Forma EPS (Note 2)

dividend through Pro Forma Annual
average return on

capitalization of earnings  |investment

No dividend distribution Pro Forma EPS

T Pro Forma Annual
dhrough capitalization of
Pro Forma EPS an g p average return on

PE ratio additional paid-in capital  |inyestment

No dividend distribution  |prg Forma EPS
through capitalization of
additional paid-in capital angby; Forma Annual
distribution of cash dividendayerage return on
through capitalization of  |i,vestment
earnings
Note 1: The cash and stocks to be distributed ¢b share as shareholders’ bonuses mentioned abereecalculated based
on the total number of actual shares, which wa8®@5388 shares, outstanding on the date of resalofiearnings distributed

by the Board of Directors on February 22, 2016. Gdsh and stocks to be distributed to each shae matwet been adopted
by the 2016 Regular Shareholders Meeting.

Note 2: The Company may not disclose the 2016 &imhrforecast according to the provision of “Regulias Governing the
Publication of Financial Forecasts of Public CompariiTherefore, there is no 2016 forecast inforomati
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(8) Remunerations to employees and the directors
A. The percentage or scope of remunerations to emgdoged the directors as stated in

B.

the Articles of Incorporation: refer to (6) for dét

The estimated principles of remunerations to emgagythe directors and supervisors,

the calculation principles of share quantity ofcktalividends and the accounting

treatment of the discrepancy between the real ahchaed amount of remunerations
to employees, the directors and supervisors:

The number of issued shares of stock remuneratioaniployees for FY 2015 is

calculated based on the closing price at the dageday previous to the Board of

Directors with the consideration of the ex-rightla@ax-dividend effect. The employees’

and directors’ remuneration mentioned above shaltrbated as expenses complied

with the revised laws and regulations in 2015. €hier no difference between the
amount of recognized expenses and the amount oflogegs' and directors’
remuneration passed by the Board of Directors.

Information on the distribution of remunerationsetaployees, the directors passed by

the Board of Directors

(A) The amount proposed to be released for remtinesato employees and the
directors in cash or in stock:

The amount of remunerations to employees in FY20NT$82 million in stock.
The amount of remunerations to the directors in BM2is NT$4.8 million in
cash.

The actual amount of payment is congruent withrdeognized amount for FY
2015.

(B) The amount of remunerations to employees adsotor 7.93% of the total
amount of the corporate earnings in the currenbgdeand the total remunerations
to employees.

If there is discrepancy between the distributionrerhunerations to employees, the

directors and supervisors from the earnings of ldst fiscal year (including the

qguantity of share distribution, the amount and lsmice) and the recognized amount,
the amount of and reasons for the discrepancylanttéatment shall be specified:

(A) The distribution of remunerations to employees,dinectors and the supervisors
in FY 2014:

The amount of remunerations to employees in FY 20 NT'$81 million.

The number of issued shares of stock remuneratoremployees is 223,201
which is calculated based on the closing price NB$8n June 9, 2015 with the
consideration of the ex-right and ex-dividend dffe€he issuing price is
NT$362.9 per share and the total amount of remtioesato employees is
NT$81 million. The remunerations to employees NT&@fich are less than one
share shall be distributed in cash.

The amount of remunerations to the directors apérsisors is NT$4.8 million

(B) The actual amount of remunerations to employeesditectors and supervisors
for FY 2014 is NT$85.8 million. The actual amoufpayment is congruent with
the recognized amount for FY 2014.

(9) Repurchase of Company’s shares: None.

Corporate bonds: None.

Preferred shares: None.

The issuance of overseas depository receipts: None.

The issuance of employee stock options: None.

New shares restricted to employees: None.

Acquisition of new shares from other companies thragh mergers and acquisitions or
assignment: None.

Capital planning and implementation: None.
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V. Operating Highlights

Operating Highlights

1. The content of business

(1) Business scope:
A. Major business items:

(A)

(B)

(©)

(D)

Trendy skin care and cosmetic products

There are domestically well-known brands of skimecand cosmetic items
displayed over-the-counter, dermatology and coslomgyocounter, and economical
and practical products displayed on the open-shelf.

Daily merchandise

There are daily necessaries such as household, itiitg utensils, shampoo, and
shower gel and so on.

Trendy underwear and socks

There are branded underwear displayed over-thetepand the trendy socks for
customers with different characters and preferences

Delicate and personal supplies

There are snacks, stationery, leather goods aradrants and so on.

B. Business proportion

Trendy skErgglrjitind cosmetic 3.980.067 37 24%
Daily merchandise 3,451,323 32.29%

Trendy underwear and socks 1,346,516 12.60%
Delicate and personal supplies 1,909,919 17.87%
Total 10,687,825 100%

C. Current products and services offered by the Compan

(A)
(B)
(©)
(D)
(E)

(F)
(G)
(H)
(1

()
(K)
(A)
(B)

(©)
(D)

Trendy skin care and cosmetic items, accessame perfume.

Branded cosmetics counter.

Branded underwear counter.

Imported trendy leather goods and ornaments.

Trendy socks, male and female underwear, hea\searves, handkerchiefs and
other seasonal items.

Household cleaning products, personal toilstiirdressing items, grocery goods,
shampoo, shower gel, and so on.

Trendy stationery and gifts.

Various kinds of snacks.

Daily items, grocery and home fixtures.

Parking space and special parking space arkalaleain some of branches.

Free cloakroom services.

New services in the future:

Rest rooms, fitting rooms and dressing tabke going to be available in some of
branches.

Product introduction videos, promotional eveatsl new products recommended
are going to be offered on the special web padeoygh Facebook.

Offer some products for customers to test meof branches.

Poya mobile applications are going to be dgwetbfor real-time and multi-lateral

communications with the consumers and updatingniéwwest news and special
offer for customers.
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(2)

Industry Outlook:
A. Industry outlook and prospect

The comprehensive merchandise retailing industrfoisdomestic demands, in
which the stores carry the products covered nead®bd, clothing, living, transport,
education, and entertainment. Thus, the growthhf industry in the future will be
closely associated with the GDP and the consumendipg. The recent statistical
figures of Taiwan in GDP and consumption in thevge sector indicate that
consumption in the private sector increases, ctingl directly with the rise in GDP.
As such, the sales of comprehensive merchandisestailing industry also enjoy
sustained growth.

2003~2015 Annual Sales of the Comprehensive Merctdise Retailing Industry

Currency unit: NT$ million

Year Sales Annual growth rate
2003 689,761 4.51
2004 738,433 7.06
2005 760,511 2.99
2006 783,045 2.96
2007 816,727 4.30
2008 835,016 2.24
2009 853,228 2.18
2010 913,042 7.01
2011 973,502 6.62
2012 1,022,724 5.06
2013 1,052,399 2.90
2014 1,106,506 5.14
2015 1,150,970 4.02

Source: “Business Sales Statistics” compiled bybpartment of Statistics, Ministry of Economic Affa
The comprehensive merchandise retailing industryanvan is well-developed.
Currently, the consuming market has transformed mfrothe era of
“manufacturer-oriented” and “retailer-oriented™tmnsumer-oriented”.

The purchasing power of customers and the consammnvironment will be
affected by the factors such as global economytrédrels of emphasis on high CP ratio
and fair-priced trendy purchases, convenienceasfsport, change of family structure
and the regional development. As the basic neeutg lsatisfied, the living standard
being improved and the consuming environment beattgred, the consuming
behaviors of the customers also change. As a resale value-added services, such as
efficient and convenient services, safe and consloopping space, better taste in lives,
shall be provided by the retailers.

In respond to the changes in shopping types anducoption needs of the
customers, the retailers currently put much emghaasi only on the basic functions of
food, clothing, living, and transport, but alsotbe amused functions of education and
entertainments. Thus, the business strategy in mEmpsive merchandise retailing
industry gradually focuses on differentiation ancrgonalization instead of
homogeneousness.
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It is because the products carried in the compmaiienmerchandise retailing
industry are suitable to the public that the custmmshall be restricted to the
geographic regions. In order to expand market,ycaut the economics of scales and
avoid the risks from online shopping which makes ¢$mall retailers hard to survive,
the retailers shall keep opening new stores. Ad,stite chain store system on
operation is gradually formed.

With respect to the sales, the retailers spareffust en store expansion, joint
marketing and promotional events in order to att@tstomers by creating a better
image and reputation, and to provide customersouarservices without geographical
limitation by the chain stores national wide. Withspect to the purchases of
merchandise, it is the centralized purchases @raremain a competitive advantage of
the retailer. With the large volume of purchashks,retailer can enjoy the economics of
scales, enlarge the margining power with the sepgliand lower the inventory cost
effectively. As such, the trend of setting up tliiaio store system in comprehensive
merchandise retailing industry shall be inevitahléhe future.

B. The association among the upper, middle, and lavderstries

The sources of merchandises sold by the Companlpd@cmanufacturers,
distributors, and trading firms. For reducing therghase costs, the Company has
turned to make a direct purchase from the tradimgsfand the manufacturers.

Manufacturer Direct sales
Comprehensive c
. > Consumers
Merchandise onstume
DiStI‘ibutOFS > Retailers
Trading Firm
Upper Industry Middle Industry Lomladustry

C. Trend of product developments

(A) Products with high CP ratio and fair-pricedHas
The change of consuming habits drives the yountpmess to purchase the
products with high CP ratio and fair-priced fashidhus, the only way to attract
consumers is to satisfy their needs with such prtsdu

(B) Business development of large scale and chiane system

It is the market trend for the retailers to enlattye scales and set up the chain
store system for pursuing the economics of scaldsatter national brand images.
Large scale and chain store system can help thep&woynlower its operational
expenses and share the Company resources which smiidee corporate
management, merchandise purchase, marketing ptaramd development, and
inventory management more competitive. Besidealsib leads to higher market
shares and fast business duplication by econoniicxales, better competitive
abilities and brand awareness enhancement

(C) Product optimization

In order to provide the various products and omp shopping service for
customers, Poya International holds meetings onsked interview periodically.
Simultaneously, Poya International enlarged the eliggment of product
classification with the thoughts close to femalestomers and processed the
product optimization. For example, since the raathig trend and travel trends
are getting popular in Taiwan in recent years, Hayernational introduced related
products to save customerstime and cost. Simultaneously, Poya International
also set up the specific area for such producesv@ny branch.
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D. Competition of the products
Comprehensive products have the feature of homogsness. As there is more
than one competitor selling the same kind of amdhitand of comprehensive products,
the Company focuses on the following factors of greducts in order to attract
customers:

(A) Price: Offer the prices obviously lower than othetailers’. As the high
homogeneousness and substitutability of the conemseire products, customers
have lower loyalty to the specific brand and temgurchase the products from the
retailer offering lower prices.

(B) Convenience: according to a survey conducted byR®e¢ail Market” magazine,
insufficient time for shopping is a common proble@mong the consumers in
advanced nations like Europe and America. Thus, @wnpany offers a
well-designed shopping space and convenient puectavices to lower the effect
of insufficient time on the customers’ purchase.

(C) \Variety of products: as having insufficient time &hopping, the customers tend to
make a purchase in a store with various produdtsis;Tone-stop shopping and
other value-added services become the importatdr&ato attract customers.

In sum, by offering the products and services whihfactors above, the Company
can maintain the original customers since the cnste tend to purchase in the
particular store they are familiar with, and braadlee customer base.

On the other hand, the service quality is alsormaportant factor to determine
whether the customer makes a purchase in the sthreh) includes how much the
store personnel understand the products, whetrermpérsonnel can offer the
consultant services and after-sale services ofptbducts and interact properly
with the customersConceiving with the mission of “Best Services arustomer
Orientation”, Poya offers perfect products and mes/to our customers.

(3) Technologies and R&D:
A. Expenses of introduction of the electronic appiaasystem
Currency unit: NT$ 1,000

Year
ltem FY2015

Expenses of the electronic application system 66,230
Net sales 10,687,825
Proportion to net sales 0.62%

B. Future plan and estimated expenses of R&D
(A) This year, the corporate intellectual property pcobn system (file encryption)
will be established to avoid any disclosure of gorise intellectual property and
the members’ detail information, and to prevent lsges from the Company and

our members.
The establishment of corporate data protectionesyswill be completed before
June, 2016. The estimated expenses is over NTHRiAm

Benefits from

Name of R&D| Current Further Scheduled
. . the success of
plan progress investment | connection dat R&D
Prevent
Corporatga data Under Over NT$2.1 disclosure of
protection . - June 2016 corporate
construction million )
system intellectual
property

(B) The SDS(Software-Defined Storage) will be estaklisiThrough the appliance of
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SDS (DataCore), new and old disk shelves couldnnelemented integration.

Once one of the two disk shelves shut down, théesyscould switch to the

regular one immediately without any influence. Asls we take the advantage of
high efficiency of high level desk shelf withoutrphasing one.

The establishment of SDS will be completed by J@§l6. The estimated

expenses is NT$2.5 million depend on the physioglementation of capacity.

Name of R&D| Current Further Scheduled4 BRI T

: . the success of
plan progress investment | connection dat R&D
Increase
available disk
space

Preliminary
assessment
and
planning

SDS appliance NT$2.5 million July 2016

(C) The Core Switch will be updated and HA will be éfished. To avoid sudden
breakdown and to raise the efficiency, the Compalans to purchase new
products for replacement and also set up HR forpiteeention of single point
failure.

The update and establishment will be completed pyil A2016. The estimated
expenses is approx. NT. 0.5 million.

Name of R&D| Current Further Scheduled

the success of
R&D
Upgrade IT

system reliability|
and transmission
performance for

uninterruptible

system service

4 Benefits from

plan progress investment | connection dat

Core Switch
update & HA
appliance

Assessmen

hase ' NT$0.5 million | April 2016

(4) Business development plan in the short and lomgder
A. Short-term plan
(A) Marketing strategy

(a) Make an effective integration of latest markafiormation and customer
consuming trends in order to select the potentradpcts for intensified
promotion:
Products are the core factor of business operat retailing industry. The
precise views on product selection can stimulatess@ reach a high peak.
Put emphasis on and raise intensified promotiorifose products popular in
the market and likely purchased by the customéies,Gompany can have
higher return on investment and multiple effectale achievement.

(b) Highlight the selling points and features of therchandises in order to raise
sales:
Investigate into the selling points and featureshe potential merchandises
and make promotion to the customers through vinid eoncise pictures and
texts on DM, promotional materials at the stored Bacebook. It helps to
catch more attention of the customers, triggerrtpeiential demands and
lead to sale growth.

(c) Strengthen the product knowledge of the store pesan order to develop a
professional and amiable brand image of Poya latemnal:
Fortify the product knowledge of the store persériheough SOP and the
complete education program and make sure thatidne gersonnel can make
a detailed introduction and product recommendatibenever the customers
have any question about the merchandises in oodéevelop a professional
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(d)

(€)

(f)

(9)

(h)

and amiable brand image of Poya International.

Optimize the music in the stores in order to previde relaxed and leisurely

shopping environment to the customers:

Avoid noisy broadcasting and peddling merchsesliin the stores. Poya

International provides the customers with the simppenvironment with

lively and relaxed music.

Put emphasis on the customers’ demands and inataasener satisfaction:

Collect customers’ opinions through various chanseth as Facebook,

guestionnaires, 0800, customer surveys conductetthdyranches, internal

corporate connection and customer reviews. Aftedewstanding the
customers’ demands, the related program will heukted and be executed
thoroughly in order to increase customer satisbacti

Focus on the membership management in orderaiotain member loyalty:

I. Offer exclusive promotional activities for the mesnb based on the
features of the member consuming behaviors. By lemphhe store
personnel to be familiar with the member activiteexd to execute the
skill of speech, the member participation in thdivéees will be
effectively enhanced and the bonds between the meménd Poya
International will be strengthened.

ii. Conduct an analysis based on the membership datalsts regular
intervals in order to stipulate membership managempkn and maintain
the loyalty of the members.

Promote the activities of co-branded card ideorto maintain the card

holders:

Actively cooperate with the banks the issuer ofd¢bhébranded card and held

various promotional activities which are advertised DM/promotional

materials in the stores to attract the card holtteraake continued purchases
in the stores. By sharing the resources with eablerothe value to card
holders will be maximized and the relationship wittle card holders will be
maintained effectively.

Investigate into the competition of the indysimstantaneously in order to

react properly and create opportunity successfully:

Stipulate proper strategy in time based on dhest strategy of the competitors

which are monitored by the investigation systencarhpetitorsalso with the

consideration of the market trend and Poya’s nicheffectively take the
opportunity.

(B) Policy of product development

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Take advantage of the investigation systemaiional competitive market by
region to maintain the competitive edge in pricaigany time and keep the
niche of being the first prize in the same industyyregion.

Stipulate distinct development strategies aramptional programs based on
the product characteristics, customers’ demands appkals to product
differentiation in order to fortify Poya’s abilitgf attracting customers and
the differentiating from the competitors.

Expand the variety of products based on thatiexj product categories in
order to provide customers more choices and satistomers’ various
demands.

Stabilize the sources of merchandises purchdsed foreign suppliers,
maintain the bargaining power of purchase, track tmarket trend
instantaneously and pay attention to the new pritsdbg appointing the
purchasing team to go abroad for product developmenodically in order
to satisfy customers’ various demands.

(C) Scale of business operation

(a)
(b)

Raise the market shares by store expansion.
Supervise business operation and improve the egireoy situation at once
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through the collection and analysis of computerrajieg system; simplify
and automate the operation for higher working #fficy through IT
management.

(c) Reinforce the product portfolio and the flexibilby the marketing strategy in
order to achieve better operating performance.

(d)

Focus on the human resources and stipulateetheation and training

program in which the centralized training modeladopted to cultivate
proper managerial personnel for business expamsithe future.
(e) Make much effort in new type of operation and vasioevelopments in order
to maintain the high growth rate of profits.
(D) Financial strategy
The main objective of the financial planning isstactly monitor the overall
cash flow in order to meet the capital needs foresexpansion in the future.

B. Long-term plan
(A) Marketing strategy
(@) Alter the market position for projecting a bdldmage of high quality:

Alter the market position from providing young anttendy
products/services to offering high quality prodisxsvices

Cultivate a brand image of high quality andhfaa through the
development of products, the optimization of sexviquality, the
adjustment of DM design and arrangement of atmaspineaterials in
the stores.

Enhance the brand awareness through mass media

Cooperate with the advertising firms to promoteliheend image of Poya
International which actively expands its storesntional wide. By
taking the advantage of the mass media, Poya kitieral can attract the
existing customers to visit the stores more fretjyeand also catch more
attention of the potential customers.

(b) Develop a new communication platform for reale and various interactions
with the customers:

The APP platform:

The APP platform has been launched last year. irdle portable APP

platform, Poya International can pass the messiage$atest marketing

activities, DM, best-selling products to the custominstantaneously and
interactively. Besides, adding the practical fumesi to the APP platform
effectively increases the use frequency of thearusts.

The Fan Group of Facebook:

» Take advantage of the dissemination effect of FBnection and
make demonstration articles or videos of the featysroducts by
popular bloggers and models in order to createc#bpy and
promotional effects.

» Offer the messages like promotional activities t4sedling products,
market trend on the Fan Group managed by the wiofesl FB
marketing personnel, make effective communicatiath fans, held
activities by connecting the resources of the sapplin order to
stimulate visits, raise popularity of Poya Fan Gr@umd increase the
fans number.

(c) Continually improve the customer analysis systéor the maximum of
marketing effectiveness:

Investigate into and distinguish the customers dbase the consuming
behaviors and features to improve the analysigsyst

Offer exclusive promotional activities designed @ading to the
consuming type of the customer to utilize the mtnke resources
accurately and create the greatest value.
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iii. Concentrate the resources on the core group obmigss to maximize
the marketing effectiveness.

(B) Policy of product development

(a) Enhance the depth of product category managemen

Enhance the depth of product category managemehtcamplete the
product line to satisfy the customers’ various dedsaand create consumption
opportunity in different areas.

(b) Reinforce the brand image of high quality:

Extend the breadth and depth of the product limemling to the nature of
different products and develop various merchandieaesthetic medicine to
enhance the promotional effects and create thelbraage.

(c) Introduce the program of product display ifiedent type of stores:

Arrange the product display according to the typelitierent stores and
enhance the liquidity of the products to make theclpase and return of the
products more efficiently.

(C) Scale of operations

(a) Continually expand operating scale and rodiaimvan market.

(b) Establish an effective training system and ai@the performance evaluation
system which focuses on the competence of the gm@@lto improve the
quality of human resources and create a bettemtpgrperformance.

(D) Financial strategy
The main financial strategies are to stipulate ablst financial policy to
support the Company’s operation, enhance the famctf financial forecast, set up
the capital plan based on the overall operatiam pilrchase, the marketing and the
store expansion plan for the future and make a tetm@assessment report of the
capital sources, execution and the benefits aktecudion
2. Market and sale overview

(1) Market analysis:
A. Sales of the major products and services by regnohthe market shares:
(A) Sales of the major products by region:
Poya International is a comprehensive merchandeailer in the lower
industry. Our major customers are normal consuraedsthe companies in Taiwan.
Currently, Poya International is only engaged inmdstic market. The sales of

major products by region in the last 3 years amshin the table below:
Currency unit: NT$ 1,000

North 2,060,58p 28.4 2,662,723| 29.1| 3,089,749 28.9
, Central 2,057,304 28.4 2,624,837 28.6| 3,072,658 28.8
Domestic
market South 1,481,715 20.4 1,813,714 19.8 2,056,332 19.2
Kaohsiung
and Pingtun 1,649,85¢ 22.8 2,066,316| 22.5 2,469,086 23.1
Total 7,249,459 100.0 9,167,590 100.0| 10,687,825 100.0

(B) Market shares
The sales in FY2013, FY 2014 and FY 2015 are NT2% billion, NT$9.168
billion and NT$10.688 billion respectively. (See ttable below) The market shares
are 4.61%, 5.45% and 6.15% in the last 3 yearsngntize other comprehensive
stores of the national comprehensive merchandiading industry.
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Annual Sales and Growth Rate of the ComprglkerMerchandise Retailing Industry
Currency unit: NT$ million; %

FY2012

FY2013

FY2014

FY2015

Year  yvoo11
Industry

Department store 270,186 279,986 288,636 306,136 318,902
Growth rate 7.60 3.63 3.09 6.06 4.171
Supermarket 143,394 151,884 158,74¢ 167,219 180,404
Growth rate 7.35 5.92 4.52 5.34 7.89

Convenience store 245,985 267,70( 276,056 289,17( 294,991
Growth rate 6.74 8.83 3.12 4.75 2.01
Hypermarket 166,534 170,743 171,557 175,824 182,993
Growth rate 6.51 2.52 0.48 2.49 4.09

Other Comprehensive Stofe 147,394 152,41( 157,403 168,158 173,679
Growth rate 4.14 3.4(Q 3.28 6.83 3.2§
Comprehensive Store 973,507 1,022,724 1,052,39 1,106,50(¢ 1,150,979
Growth rate 6.62 5.06 2.90 5.14 4.0

Source:“Statistics of Commercial Sales”, compileby the Department of Statistics, Ministry of Economg Affairs.

B. The supply and demand in the market and the fgroeth:

Poya International adopts the chain store systen selling delicate daily
merchandises. The niche products are trendy ski@ aad cosmetic products, and
delicate personal supplies. It is focus on these tategories of products and
comfortable shopping space that Poya Internatimaal be differentiated from the
hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience storesmphees and drug stores and can
be one of the independent categories in the nmegailndustry. Because of offering
delicate, trendy, various and personalized produntsating and leading the market
trend, and enhancing the marketing strategy andptbduct mix, Poya International
targets its main customers to be the young andethhale aged between 15-49, whose
consuming abilities are raising as there are moceraore female employees in recent
years. As such, the consuming market will grow Igtabthe future.

The products sold by Poya International can be raggé into four categories,
including trendy skin care and cosmetic productgjlyd merchandises, trendy
underwear and socks, and delicate and personalissipBy the end of April 2016,
there are 137 stores national wide and Poya Intiera still expands its new stores
gradually. Compared to the direct competitors, Poyarnational has the leading
position in the industry.

C. Competitive edge:

Location searching is one of the key factors legdiinthe success. By remodeling
the stores, Poya International can offer the custera comfortable shopping
environment. Unlike the hypermarket and the depamtrstore constructing the
building on its land or rental land, Poya Interaatil takes full advantages of store
rental in order to effectively decrease the operat expenses and capital costs.
Whenever opening a new store, Poya Internatioriapvaviously make a detailed
assessment and planning of the business commaunitizich the store is located, the
market analysis, the product mix, the personahimngi and the target market. As such,
Poya International can attract target customeesgterconsiderable sales and maintain
the leading position in the market.

Poya International introduces the POS system, basimtelligence (BI) system,
and electronic procurement module to collect the data from each store which shall
be analyzed instantaneously as a report. Suchtrepohelp the management
understand the market trends and the consumer loefiaand help to control the
products and the inventories. Thus, Poya Internatioan stipulate proper price
strategy, with flexible product operation and mairigesystem in order to attract target
customers, create considerable profits and enhitheamarket competitive abilities.
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D. Favorable and unfavorable factors of further dgwalent and the response to each
issue:
(A) Favorable factors:
(@) Continued growth of market size in comprehemsmerchandise retailing
industry.
(b) Instantaneous information system
Both business intelligence (Bl) systeand the complete POS system
are the key factors that Poya International cafecbthe sale data from stores
in time.
(c) Effective marketing strategy and better prodietelopment
Poya International has long been conceived withptiveciple of “Close to
daily lives and satisfy the needs”, and the missibffollow the market trend
and satisfy the customers with various choices’yaPmternational expects
itself as the retailer creating and leading thadrand satisfying the customers’
demands by offering various trendy, personalized, @elicate products. Also
with the flexible promotional system and effectinearketing strategy, Poya
International can control the products in time atigulate proper price strategy
to meet the customers’ demands on delicate, tréamypriced products.
(d) Effective inventory management
Poya International is a comprehensive merchandeteailer offering
various products and daily goods. The major inveegoare displayed on the
shelves in each store. In order to make effectivanagement, Poya
International establishes various indicators foveimory control such as
inventory turnover rate, ratio of purchases to sasales ranking of products.
Also with the complete purchase-sale inventory @n$ystem, information
system of operation management and marketing giraRoya can effectively
control the inventories. Recently, Poya has intoeduthe centralized logistic
center in order to achieve the goal of much lowgentory level.
(e). Excellent operation performance
Poya International was ranked at the 158ace among the top 2000
national enterprises in the service sector in 2@tdording to the survey
conducted by the Common Wealth Magazine which wasighed in 2015.
This award signifies the better operation perforcearthe stable and long-term
relationship with the suppliers, operation undex #tonomics of scales and
strong bargaining power to lower the cost and imseethe competitive abilities.
(B) Unfavorable factors and the responses to eatte:

\ Unfavorable factors ‘ Responses

Conservative consumingOffer the comfortable shopping environment witheefive produc
behaviors result from thgdisplay to trigger the purchase; establish theitepdrand of
depression of main luxury, fair-price, color, beauty and trendy.

economies, decreasing ¢
crude oil price and raw
material price fluctuation

—h

Severe competition in th{1. Establish complete managerial system and contegbtbduct

comprehensive trend effectively to respond to the market chafde. division

merchandise retailing involved includes the purchases of merchandiseskatiag and

industry planning, store management and analysis of opgratin
information.

2. Enhance the education and training of employeaspoove the
service quality.

3. Adjust product mix and enhance the productseiits based
on the natures of customers in different commutaityatisfy
their needs exactly.

The change of populatiofiT hrough new products innovation, Poya Internatiamabduces a

structure-aging populatigiot of well known branded health food and nutrittordevelop the

with fewer children potential market.
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(2) Purposes of the major products and the productiooess:

Major products ‘ Purpose

There are well-known brands of cosmetics displayed
Trendy skin care and |over-the-counter, such as Shiseido and Kose; v&riou

cosmetic products cosmetics, skin-care products, and merchandisasstietic
medicine.
There are high-quality underwear and socks fromestin
Trendy underwear and soc|and international suppliers, such as underweaydang
ladies and socks for men and women.
There are daily necessaries, groceries and houkehol
fixtures/bedding/pillow.

Delicate and personal |There are leather goods, suitcases, ornamentsaialys
supplies stationery.

Poya International is a comprehensive merchandiailer in the lower industry. The
products sold by Poya International are purchaseun fthe suppliers such as the
manufacturers, distributors or trading firms. Aslsuthere is no production process.

(3) The supply of key materials:

The products sold by Poya International are pusthaBom the manufacturers,
distributors or trading firms. Because of the imasiag store number and growing operating
sales, Poya International has the advantages @httatized purchases and making price
negotiation among various suppliers. As such, Rotgnational can effectively decrease the
purchase cost and stabilize the supply of merclsasdi

(4) If any customer in any of the previous two yearthwiurchase (sales) amount exceeding
10% of the total purchase (sales), the name, anmandproportion to total purchase (sales)

shall be specified, so shall the reasons for aaygé if applicable:

Poya International is a comprehensive merchanéisder. There is no customer in any
of the previous two years with purchase (sales)uarnexceeding 10% of the total purchase
(sales). Therefore, no disclosure is necessary.

(5) Production value and volume in the last 2 years:
Poya International is a comprehensive merchanditeler and does not manufacture
any of the products it carries. Production valué aolume are not applicable.

(6) Sales value and volume in the last 2 years:

As being a comprehensive merchandise retailer, hésd to make a statistical
guantitative analysis because of the complicatedymt categories and the inconsistent unit
of product quantity. The sales by several prodategories are shown in the table below:

Currency unit: NT$ 1,000

FY2014 FY2015

Daily merchandise

Major products Amount
Tre"dySkg'rgjaignd COSM®  330533( 37.09 - . 3,980,06] 37.24 - .
Trendy underwear and socks 1,211,938 13.23 - - 1,346,516 12.60 - -
Daily merchandise 2,936,19] 32.03 - = 3,451,321 32.29 - -
Delicate and personal supplies 1,624,12Y 17.72 - - 1,909,919 17814 - -
Total 9,167,59( 100.0¢ - - 10,687,82} 100.0¢ - -

Note: Poya International is not engaged in expdtsexport information is available.
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3.

5.

In the last two years as of the date this report waprinted, the number of employees,
average working period, average age and educatiomeashown in the table below:

FY 2016 as of the

‘ FY 2014 FY2015 date this report was
printed
Sales personnel 3,174 3,877 3,679
Number of Managerial

employees el 230 225 210
Total (Note) 3,404 4,102 3,889

Average age 28.16 28.36 28.53
Average working period 2.55 years 2.51 years 2.73 years
PhD 0% 0% 0%

Masters 0.85% 1.07% 1.03%

B Bachelors 73.189 70.759 70.079
Senior high schoo| 25.09¢9 27.119 27.809

B S 0.88% 1.07% 1.10%

Note: the employees who has not been on board bgrbiger 31 were excluded.

Information on the expenditures for environmental pgotection

Specify the amount of losses and penalty resuthfemvironmental pollution in the recent
years as of the date this report was printed, gliegble. The responses and the estimated
expenditure in the future shall also be disclosed:

In the recent years as of the date this report weded, there is no matter that the
Company suffered any loss or penalty result fromrenmental pollution. According to the
feature of the industry the Company is in, the Camypis not affected by the ROHS
regulations.

Labor-Management Relationship
(1) The systems of employee welfare, further educatraming, retirement and the
implementation of the systems, the agreement betteelabors and the management, and

the protection of the rights of the employees:
A. The implementation for the consensus between thardaand the management, and the
rights of the employees:

(A) Focus on the industrial relations: Poya Internationolds employment meeting
according to “Measures for Employment Meeting” dagly to communicate and
solve problems, so that Poya International can naakether coordination between
employer and employee, and upgrade the work pedioce

(B) Complaint mechanism: Poya International devotespgrading employees’ salary,
welfare and work environment. The company alsoreffglatforms to make an
effective, two-way communication with employeeseTdpinions from employees
could be heard sufficiently.

(C) Establish the Employee Welfare Committee: Employess use all the welfares
which are designed by Employee Welfare Committee.

B. Employee welfares:

(A) Labor insurance, national health insurance gnodip insurance.

(B) Employee bonus

(C) Bonus of operating performance

(D) Year-end bonus

(E) Matrimonial gifts

(F) Subsidy for hospitalization

(G) Sponsorship for Spring Festival Banquet

(H) Subsidy for funerals
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() Subsidy for parties

(J) Birthday gift coupon

(K) Festival gift coupon, such as Mid-Autumn Featj\Dragon Boat Festival and Spring
Festival

(L) Health examination

(M) Free dormitory for dispatched personnel

. Further education and training for the employees:

(A) Further education and training

Poya International puts emphasis on the cultivataord training of talents. In
addition to routine trainings, Poya Internationed\pdes extra E-Learning platform
for the employees to receive complete and real-teaening and training. Besides,
there is an evaluation system complied with the@Veperating goals. It helps the
employees, under the perquisite of achieving Coryipaargets, to emphasize on
self-learning, raise working abilities and makeso@al career planning.

Poya International has an increasing demand on hugsburces as there are more

and more new stores opened in the middle and lemy-tlevelopment plan. As such,

Poya International establishes complete and stdimar training system which

focuses on the master-apprentice model, and tleenaitlecturer system to provide

better learning environment and platforms. We himpassist the personnel to finish
the training in the short period and to well-penfioon their work for getting job
promotion. It creates win-win situation.

(B) The training program for internal personnel is diéscl below:

a. OJT training for new employees — the general managje give a lecture on
the Company’s history, organization and corporatkuce in the first stage
which helps the employees to get accustomed tertiegonment quickly. In the
second stage, a review of practical works will badmin the stores to ensure
that the employees can get familiar with the bapieration of their work.

b. Instructor training — the training of proper waygab instruction and guidance
will be given and the operating skills, knowledged ananagerial experience
will be shared to the new employees in order tphéethem get accustomed to
the environment quickly and cultivate the manad@easonnel at basic level.

c. Evaluation of promotion to section manager: thdwatson system of practical
work. The personnel will be assessed in a grouppatches and will get
promotion as passing the evaluation.

d. Business management training — There are two stdgegeneral manager will
give a lecture on business management; the setumer snanger will also be
invited to act as internal lecturer to share thpeeience of store management.
It helps to improve the managerial abilities of trenees for being a deputy
store manager

e. Evaluation of promotion to deputy store managee dvaluation system of
practical work. The personnel will be assessed groaip in batches and will
get promotion as passing the evaluation.

f.  Practical training for store manager candidatese Tlass-A store will be
arranged for the training and the senior improveshager will be appointed to
act as the coach. Through practical operation & dtore, the trainees can
engage in benchmark learning of proper managenkdlst 3 his training helps
to improve the trainees’ abilities of utilizing &ncial reports and
problem-solving and also helps to cultivate quadifstore managers.
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Article 1

Article 2

Article 3

Article 4

Training in 2015and the results:

Subject ‘ NS S T_o_tal Total hours [Total expenses (NT¢
Classes participants
Basic training 31 1,044 7,308
Managerial
training 47 992 6,944 2,416,500
Evaluation of joh 37 750 5 250
promotion '

Retirement system and the implementation:

Poya International adopts both the old and newesystof retirement. The Labor
Retirement Regulation has been established undeaslthsystem, governed by the Labor
Standards Act. After the actuarial estimation, 2f4he total monthly salaries will be
allocated as reserve for the pension fund depoaitaddesignated account at the Bank of
Taiwan (previously at Central Trust of China). Te¢eculation of pension payment is
based on the Labor Retirement Regulations ando@illisbursed accordingly. Employees
who elect to go with the new retirement system e 6% of their respective monthly
salaries allocated to their personal pension adsomonthly as required by the Statute
for Labor Pension.

Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Priasiphd Codes of Ethical Conducts:

Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Princips

In order to foster a corporate cultureetiiical management and sound development,
and offer a reference framework for establishingdy@ommercial practices, the
Company hereby enacts these Principles according“Bthical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/GT3Med Companies.”

These Principles are applicable to its businesspgg@nd organizations of such the
Company, which comprise its subsidiaries, any fatioth to which the Company's

direct or indirect contribution of funds exceedspabcent of the total funds received,
and other institutions or juridical persons whick aubstantially controlled by such
Company ("business group").

When engaging in commercial activitiesyedtors, managers, employees, and
mandataries of the Company or persons having sutztaontrol over the Company
("substantial controllers™) shall not directly amndirectly offer, promise to offer,
request or accept any improper benefits, nor cormmethical acts including breach
of ethics, illegal acts, or breach of fiduciary @igtunethical conduct") for purposes
of acquiring or maintaining benefits.

Parties referred to in the preceding paragraphudiec civil servants, political
candidates, political parties or members of pdlticparties, state-run or
private-owned businesses or institutions, and ttieectors, supervisors, managers,
employees or substantial controllers or other $takkers.

"Benefits" in these Principles means any valuabiiengs, including money,

endowments, commissions, positions, services, mmefial treatment or rebates of
any type or in any name. Benefits received or giwerasionally in accordance with
accepted social customs and that do not adversiédget aspecific rights and

obligations shall be excluded.

The Company shall comply with the Compahgt, Securities and Exchange Act,

Business Entity Accounting Act, Political DonatioAst, Anti-Corruption Statute,

Government Procurement Act, Act on Recusal of Rubérvants Due to Conflicts of

Interest, TWSE/GTSM listing rules, other laws ogukations regarding commercial

activities, as the underlying basic premise tolitate ethical corporate management.
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Article 5

Article 6

Article 7

Article 8

Article 9

Article 10

The Company shall abide by the operatigtalosophies of honesty, transparency
and responsibility, base policies on the principtegood faith and establish good
corporate governance and risk control and managemechanism so as to create an
operational environment for sustainable development

In order to implement ethical managemertlicy, the Company shall enact
“Procedures for Ethical Management and GuidelimesClonduct” and shall clearly
and thoroughly prescribe the specific ethical managnt practices and the programs
to forestall unethical conduct ("prevention progsdm

The enactment of “Procedures for Ethical ManageraadtGuidelines for Conduct”
in the preceding paragraph shall comply with rei¢aws and regulations of the
territory where the Company and their businessgare operating.

When establishing the prevention prograriee Company shall analyze which
business activities within their business scopectviaire possibly at a higher risk of
being involved in an unethical conduct, and streegtthe preventive measures.

The prevention programs adopted by the Company ah&ast include preventive
measures against the following:

1. Offering and acceptance of bribes.

2. lllegal political donations.

3. Improper charitable donations or sponsorship.
4

. Offering or acceptance of unreasonable presertsgpitality, or other improper
benefits.

5. Misappropriation of trade secrets and infringemeintrademark rights, patent
rights, copyrights, and other intellectual propergts.

6. Engaging in unfair competitive practices.

7. Damage directly or indirectly caused to the rightenterests, health, or safety of
consumers or other stakeholders in the course s#gareh and development,
procurement, manufacture, provision, or sale oflpots and services.

The Board of Drectors and the managenoérthe Company shall actively achieve
the commitment on implementation of the ethicalpooate management policies,
and shall thoroughly carry out the policies in ined management and in commercial
activities.

The Company shall engage in commerattivdies in a fair and transparent manner
based on the principle of ethical management. Roi@ny commercial transactions,
the Company shall take into consideration the lggaf its agents, suppliers, clients,

or other trading counterparties and whether anthem are involved in unethical

conduct, and shall avoid any dealings with persmnisivolved.

When entering into contracts with its agents, sepgl clients, or other trading
counterparties, the Company shall include in sudmtracts terms requiring
compliance with ethical corporate management poéiog that in the event the
trading counterparties are involved in unethicatdieet, the Company may at any
time terminate or rescind the contracts.

When conducting business, the Company i directors, managers, employees,
mandataries, and substantial controllers, may mettlly or indirectly offer, promise
to offer, request, or accept any improper benefitshatever form to or from clients,
agents, contractors, suppliers, public servantstter stakeholders.
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Article 11

Article 12

Article 13

Article 14

Article 15

Article 16

Article 17

When directly or indirectly offering adation to political parties or organizations or
individuals participating in political activitiesthe Company and its directors,
managers, employees, mandataries, and substamiablters, shall comply with the

Political Donations Act and its own relevant intdroperational procedures, and
shall not make such donations in exchange for cawialegains or business

advantages.

When making or offering donations anamsgorship, the Company and its directors,
managers, employees, mandataries, and substaotitdolbers shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations and internal opematirocedures, and shall not
surreptitiously engage in bribery.

The Company and its directors, managensployees, mandataries, and substantial
controllers shall not directly or indirectly offer accept any unreasonable presents,
hospitality or other improper benefits to establmlsiness relationship or influence
commercial transactions.

The Company and its directors, managers, @apk, mandataries, and substantial
controllers shall observe applicable laws and rguis, the Company's internal
operational procedures, and contractual provismoreerning intellectual property,
and may not use, disclose, dispose, or damagdeutighl property or otherwise
infringe intellectual property rights without theigr consent of the intellectual
property rights holder.

The Company shall engage in businessviies in accordance with applicable
competition laws and regulations, and may not figgs, make rigged bids, establish
output restrictions or quotas, or share or dividarkets by allocating customers,
suppliers, territories, or lines of commerce.

In the course of research and develognmoecurement, manufacture, provision, or
sale of products and services, the Company andirgstors, managers, employees,
mandataries, and substantial controllers shallrebsspplicable laws and regulations
and international standards to ensure the transparef information about, and
safety of, their products and services. They shlath adopt and publish a policy on
the protection of the rights and interests of comsts or other stakeholders, and
carry out the policy in their operations, with @&wito preventing their products and
services from directly or indirectly damaging thghts and interests, health, and
safety of consumers or other stakeholders. Wheeeetlare sufficient facts to
determine that the Company's products or servioedikely to pose any hazard to
the safety and health of consumers or other stadleisy the Company shall, in
principle, recall those products or suspend theices immediately.

The directors, managers, employees, ratmegs, and substantial controllers of the
Company shall exercise the due care of good adtratoss to urge the Company to
prevent unethical conduct, always review the resoiltthe preventive measures and
continually make adjustments so as to ensure tighrauplementation of its ethical
corporate management policies.

To achieve sound ethical corporate management, Ghmpany assigns Audit
Division for establishing and supervising the inmpéntation of the ethical corporate
management policies and prevention programs. Tt Auvision shall report to the
Board of Directors on a regular basis.
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Article 18

Article 19

Article 20

Article 21

Article 22

The Company and its directors, managensployees, mandataries, and substantial
controllers shall comply with laws and regulatiosmsd the prevention programs
when conducting business.

When a proposal at a given Board of Bioes meeting concerns the personal interest
of, or the interest of the juristic person représdrby, any of the directors, managers,
and other stakeholders attending or present atdbmaetings of the Company, the
concerned person shall state the important aspétte relationship of interest at the
given board meeting. If his or her participationikely to prejudice the interest of
the Company, the concerned person may not parcipadiscussion of or voting on
the proposal, and shall recuse himself or hersethfthe discussion or the voting,
and may not exercise voting rights as proxy forthaodirector. The directors shall
practice self-discipline and must not support amatleer in improper dealings.

The Company's directors, supervisors, managers,logegs, mandataries, and
substantial controllers shall not take advantag#eir positions or influence in the
Company to obtain improper benefits for themseltesiy spouses, parents, children
or any other person.

The Company shall establish effectivecamting systems and internal control
systems for business activities possibly at a higisk of being involved in an
unethical conduct, not have under-the-table acsoontkeep secret accounts, and
conduct reviews regularly so as to ensure thatdésgn and enforcement of the
systems are showing results.

The internal audit unit of the Company shall peigcally examine the Company's
compliance with the foregoing systems and prepanit aeports and submit the
same to the Board of Directors. The internal audit may engage a certified public
accountant to carry out the audit, and may engagfegsionals to assist if necessary.

The Company shall establish operatigmaicedures and guidelines in accordance

with Article 6 hereof. The procedures and guiddirsghould at least contain the

following matters:

1. Standards for determining whether improper bendifése been offered or
accepted.

2. Procedures for offering legitimate political doais.

3. Procedures and the standard rates for offering itabdg donations or
sponsorship.

4. Rules for avoiding work-related conflicts of intste and how they should be
reported and handled.

5. Rules for keeping confidential trade secrets antsiege business information
obtained in the ordinary course of business.

6. Regulations and procedures for dealing with supglielients and business
transaction counterparties suspected of unetharaduct.

7. Handling procedures for violations of these Prifesp

8. Disciplinary measures on offenders.

The chairperson, general manager, oiosemanagement of the Company shall
communicate the importance of corporate ethicstdodirectors, employees, and
mandataries on a regular basis.
The Company shall periodically organize trainingd amwareness programs for
directors, managers, employees, mandataries, apstasuial controllers, so they
understand the Company's resolve to implement atmrporate management, the
related policies, prevention programs and the aqneseces of committing unethical
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Article 23

Article 24

Article 25

Article 26

Article 27

Article 28

conduct.

If there is any violation of these Prdoees, the personnel of the Company shall
actively report to the Board of Directors, Auditi@mittee, internal audit manager or
other managers. The Company shall keep secret #imidentity of whistle-blowers
and the content of reported cases.

When material misconduct or likelihood of materiedpairment to the Company
comes to their awareness upon investigation, théicdeed personnel or unit
handling the whistle-blowing system shall immediatgrepare a report and notify
the Independent Directors in written form.

If any person of the Company violates #thical corporate management rules, the
Company shall give punishments according to regatides and regulation based on
its violation and shall immediately disclose on thempany's internal website the
title and name of the violator, the date and detatfl the violation, and the actions
taken in response.

The Company shall collect quantitativatal about the promotion of ethical
management and continuously analyze and asses$f¢kaveness of the promotion
of ethical management policy. They shall also disel the measures taken for
implementing ethical corporate management, theustatf implementation, the

foregoing quantitative data, and the effectivenalspromotion on their Company

websites, annual reports, and prospectuses, atiddgwose their ethical corporate
management best practice principles on the Markse€ation Post System.

The Company shall at all times monittwe tdevelopment of relevant local and
international regulations concerning ethical cogb®rmanagement and encourage
their directors, managers, and employees to maggestions, based on which the
adopted ethical corporate management policies aabunes taken will be reviewed
and improved with a view to achieving better impégration of ethical management.

These Principles shall be implementeérathe discussion of the Audit Committee
and the approval of the Board of Directors, andllsha submitted to the
Shareholders Meeting. The same procedure shalblbeeved when the principles
have been amended.

For the Company that has appointed any Independeettor, when the ethical
corporate management best practice principles abenisted for discussion by the
Board of Directors pursuant to the preceding paaigrthe Board of Directors shall
take into full consideration each Independent Does opinions. If an Independent
Director objects to or expresses reservations atoyimatter, it shall be recorded in
the minutes of the Board of Directors meeting. Addpendent Director that cannot
attend the board meeting in person to express ttnjeor reservations shall provide
a written opinion before the board meeting, untesse is some legitimate reason to
do otherwise, and the opinion shall be specifiedhi@ minutes of the Board of
Directors meeting.

This Principle was enacted on October Z¥14. The first amendment was made on
February 24, 2015, which was approved by the Bo&Rirectors.
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Article 1

Article 2

Article 3

Codes of Ethical Conduct

Purpose of and Basis for Adoption

For the purpose of encouraging the directors amdntianagerial officers of the

Company to act in line with ethical standards, aetping the interested parties of
the Company better understand ethical standardsCtimpany shall enact a code of
ethical conduct with reference to “Guidelines fbe tAdoption of Codes of Ethical

Conduct for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies”, and sladlide by such a code of

ethical conduct.

Objects of Application

The Code is applicable to the directors and theagamal officers of the Company,
including general managers or their equivalentsistent general managers or their
equivalents, deputy assistant general managergear équivalents, chief financial
and chief accounting officers, and other persortbaized to manage affairs and
sign documents on behalf of a company.

Content of the Code

1. Prevention of Conflicts of Interest

The directors or managerial officers of the Compahall perform their duties
in an objective and efficient manner, and shallidvany improper benefit

obtained by taking advantage of their position lre tCompany either for
themselves or for their spouse, parents, childoemelatives within the second
degree of kinship. The directors and manageriate® of the Company shall
voluntarily explain whether there is any potengahflict between them and the
Company when the Company makes loans of fundsasigions of guarantees,
major asset transactions or the purchases (or sdlgjoods involving the

affiliated enterprise at which a director or manajeofficer mentioned above
work.

2. Minimizing Incentives to Pursue Personal Gain
The Company shall prevent its directors or managefficers from engaging in
any of the following activities:
(1) Seeking an opportunity to pursue personal daynusing Company’s
property or information, or taking advantage ofitip@sitions.
(2) Obtaining personal gain by using Company’s progpor information, or
taking advantage of their positions.
(3) Competing with the Company.
When the Company has an opportunity for profitss the responsibility of the
directors, and managerial officers to maximize teasonable and proper
benefits that can be obtained by the Company.

3. Confidentiality

The directors and managerial officers of the Comgpsimall be bound by the
obligation to maintain the confidentiality of anwyfermation regarding the
Company itself or its suppliers and customers, pgixaghen authorized or
required by laws to disclose such information. @ieritial information includes
any undisclosed information that, if exploited bycampetitor or disclosed,
could result in damages to the Company or its seygpand customers.
4. Fair Trades

The directors and managerial officers of the Comgpahall fairly treat all

suppliers and customers, competitors, and employettee Company, and may
not obtain improper benefits obtained through maliaifion, nondisclosure, or
misuse of the information learned by virtue of thpbsitions, or through
misrepresentation of important matters, or throotjier unfair trading practices.
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Article 4

Article 5

Article 6

Article 7

5. Safeguarding and Proper Use of Company Assets

All directors and managerial officers have the oesibility to safeguard the
Company's assets and to ensure that those asedig edfectively and lawfully

used for official business purposes. Any theft ligegce in care, or waste of the
assets will all directly impact the Company's pediility.

6. Legal Compliance

The Company shall strengthen its compliance wighSkcurities and Exchange
Act and other applicable laws, regulations, andiains.

7. Encouraging Reporting on Any lllegal or Unethicaitiéity

The Company shall raise awareness of ethics idtgrrend encourage

employees to report to the Board of Directors, anagarial officer, the chief

internal auditor, or other appropriate individuajgon suspicion or discovery of
any activity in violation of a law or regulation tiie code of ethical conduct.
The Company shall manage the case confidentiatlyletnthe employees aware
that the Company will use its best efforts to eaghe safety of informants.

8. Disciplinary Measures

When a director, or managerial officer of the Compaiolates the code of
ethical conduct, the Company shall, after invesiiga handle the matter
according to related regulations and shall promgligclose on the Market
Observation Post System (MOPS) the name and fitlleeoviolator, the date of
the violation, reasons for the violation, provisoof the code violated, and the
disciplinary actions taken.

If the director or managerial officer who shall fpenished because of violation
of the code does not accept the disciplinary astitime director or managerial
officer may appeal against the judgments base&lated regulations.

Procedures for exemption

If there is necessary for any exemption for direstor managerial officers from

compliance with the code, the application of theregtion shall be adopted by a
resolution of the Board of Directors. That inforimaton the date on which the Board
of Directors adopted the resolution for exemptiand the objection or reservation
raised by the Independent Directors, and the pesipdeasons for, and principles
behind the application of the exemption shall deadisclosed without delay on the
MOPS in order that the shareholders may evaluaeppropriateness of the Board
resolution to forestall any arbitrary or dubiouseeption from the code. It is to

safeguard the interests of the Company by ensuapopriate mechanisms for
controlling any circumstance under which such agngption occurs.

Method of disclosure

The code of ethical conduct and any amendments $hall be disclosed on the
Company’s website, in the Company’s annual repanid prospectuses, and on the
MOPS.

Enforcement

The code of ethical conduct and any amendmentsdibail enter into force after it
has been reviewed by the Audit Committee, adoptethé Board of Directors, and
submitted to a Shareholders Meeting.

The code of ethical conduct was enacte®actober 27, 2014. The first amendment
was made on March 23, 2015.
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F. Protection of work environment and labor safety
(A) Labor insurance and national health insurance
All employees are protected by labor insurance raatébnal health insurance
as required by law, and are entitled to insuraneeefits. Employees are also
entitled to benefits for maternity, injury, sickseslisability, aging and death under
the “Labor Insurance Statue” and the “National e#hsurance Act” from Labor
Insurance Bureau and National Health Insurance d@&urkacilitated by Poya
International.
(B) Safety and health
Poya International complies with the rules and la&ions governing labor
safety and health by providing a healthy and safeirenment, preventing
occupational hazards and injuries, and protecthng health and safety of the
employees.
(C) Health concern and management
Physical examination is arranged for all employemsce a year for
maintaining their physical health.
(D) Safety and hygiene at employee accommodations
For the preservation of safety, tidiness and hygiah the accommodation
provided by Poya International, the Office of Gehemanager appoints the
designated personnel to the employee accommodatiorsss the province to
conduct inspections. The scope of inspection cowbes public area, home
appliance safety, water heating facilities and farevention equipment for the
safety and health of the employee accommodations.
(E) Maintenance and inspection of all facilities
All branches and the corporate headquarters sbhllflie safety inspection
regularly to maintain reliability and safety of aljuipment.

(2) Inthe recent years as of the date this reportpriased, disclose the estimate amount of the
losses and the responses result from labor disptite current period and in the future, if
applicable: None.
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6. Material Contracts

Lease Agreemerj

Average monthly rent of

. A001~A137 2004.01.01~2035.11.30NT$ 457,000 payable once No
on Housing
month.
Loan Agreement KGI Bank 2014.05.27-2017.05.26| °raW dngi\lll?o%f NI 210 No
Loan Agreement KGI Bank 2014.08.18-2017.05.26| °raW d%"i‘l’l'i‘o‘r’wf NT$ 20 No
Loan Agreement KGI Bank 2014.12.18-2017.05.26| DraW d;‘;n?ogf N No
Loan Agreement KGI Bank 2015.08.20-2018.08.20| "W d‘r’n";’lﬂg NT$180 No
Loan Agreement Ciring! T CEmmeEnss 2014.08.18-2016.08.20 DIy doyvn OfNTS$70 No
Bank million
Loan Agreement Hua Nan Bank 2014.07.01-2017.07.01 Draw drcr:\i,nino(r)]f NT$80 No
Loan Agreement Hua Nan Bank 2015.08.20-2018.08.20 UL dr%\i’ninoﬁf TR No
Loan Agreement First Commercial Bank 2013.08.20-2016.08.20 Draw dr(1)1\i,;1ino(r:f NT3$60 No
Loan Agreemen{  'mdustrial Bankof | 5414 9 16.0016.09.15|  Draw down of NT$80 No
Taiwan million
Loan Agreement  'ndustrial Bankof | 5.4 14 17 50160915  Draw down of NT$20 No
Taiwan million
Industrial Bank of Draw down of NT$100
Loan Agreement Taiwan 2015.08.20-2018.08.15 million No
Loan Agreement Industrlgl Bank of 2016.01.15-2018.08.15 Draw doyvn of NT$70 No
Taiwan million
Loan Agreement E-Sun Bank 2013.08.20-2016.08.20 I dcr)nv;/”rimoc;]f ITIES No
Loan Agreement E-Sun Bank 2013.10.17-2016.10.17 Draw drcr)1\i,;1ino(r)1f NT$20 No
Loan Agreement E-Sun Bank 2015.08.20-2018.08.20 D @fein @i R No

million
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VI. Financial Information
Financial Information

1. Condensed balance sheets and consolidated incomatsients in the last five years

(1) Condensed balance sheet and consolidated incoteenstat
A. Condensed balance sheet - IFRS

Currency unit: NT$ 1,000
Financial information from January 1° 2011 to March 31 2016

Financial
information
in 2016 to
March

31(Note 2)
Current assets 2,106,191 2,460,17] 3,195,551 3,521,05 3,411,298
Egjfjﬁi’ plants, and 885,03] 1,299,68{ 1,407,481 1,830,431  1,016,44%
Intangible assets - - - - -
Other assets 256,713 238,51¢ 287,94] 318,234 328,538
Total assets 3,247,942 3,998,376 4,890,987 5,669,727  5,656,27}
Current |Cum-dividend 1,316,544 1,716,81{ 2,283,45| 2,584,22 2,384,55]
liabilities |Ex-dividend 1,692,214 2,162,778 2,979,894  (Note 4 (Note 5
Non-current liabilities 137,72 260,261 205,432 348,766 288,269
Total Cum-dividend 1,454,264 1,977,08( 2,488,88{ 2,932,98] 2,672,820
liabilities |Ex-dividend(Note3) | 1,820,934 2,423,034 3,185,326  (Note 4 (Note 5
Shareholders’ equity
attributable to parent ) ) ) ) )
Capital stock 916,261 929,073 941,131 952,77 952,774
Capital surplus 309,961 346,318 394,551 473,319 473,319
Retained |[Cum-dividend 567,45( 745,904 1,066,41¢( 1,310,64] 1,557,364
earnings |Ex-dividend(Note3) 191,78( 299,951 369,979 (Note 4 (Note 5
Other equities - - - - -
Treasury stocks - - - - -
Uncontrolled equities - - - - -
Total Cum-dividend 1,793,67¢ 2,021,29¢ 2,402,09¢ 2,736,74 2,983,45f
equity Ex-dividend(Note3) 1,418,008 1,575,342 1,705,661  (Note 4 (Note 5

Note 1: Poya International adopted the Internatiofimancial Reporting Standard (IFRS) since Januiify2013 in
accounting. Inasmuch as the insufficiency of dawgedng a period of 5 years, the statement (lIpbelvas prepared
in accordance with the Statement of Financial Aatimg (SFAS) of the ROC.

Note 2:  The financial information as of March 31180vas reviewed by CPA.

Note 3: The figures of ex-dividend were based on the resoiwf the Shareholders Meeting in subsequenalfigeriod.

Note 4: The distribution proposal has not been passedégttareholders Meeting in 2016.

Note 5: This period is not a complete fiscal period anddata on distribution were skipped.
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B. Consolidated income statement -IFRS

Revenue

Gross profits

Operating income

Non-operating incomes
and expenses

EBT

Net profit in segments of
continued operation

Loss incurred from
discontinued operation

Corporate earnings
(loss) in current period

Other consolidated
income in current period
(after taxation)

Total consolidated
income in current period

Earnings attributable to
owners of parent

Earnings attributable to
uncontrolled equity

Total consolidated
income attributable to
owners of parent

Total consolidated
income attributable to
uncontrolled equity

EPS

Currency unit: NT$ 1,000

Financial information from January 1* 2011 to March 31 201§Note 1)

N/A

Financial
information in
2016to March

31(Note 2)

6,272,81% 7,249,459 9,167,590 10,687,825 3,003,298
2,366,391 2,875,194 3,710,77 4,377,57 1,169,144
448,914 596,64% 894,893 1,128,615 287,821
64,834 77,686 42,134 20,300 9,92(
513,748 674,331 937,032 1,148,91% 297,74%
426,171 558,857 772,467 952,14¢ 246,717
426,171 558,857 772,467 952,14¢ 246,717
(5,145 4,434 3,294 (2,067 -
421,026 563,28¢ 775,754 950,078 246,717
4.62 5.97 8.14 10.0¢ 2.59

Note 1: Poya International adopted the Internatidfiaancial Reporting Standard (IFRS) since Janukty2013 in
accounting. Inasmuch as the insufficiency of daisecng a period of 5 years, the statement (I)obelvas
prepared in accordance with the Statement of FinbAccounting (SFAS) of the ROC.

Note 2: The financial information as of March 31180vas reviewed by CPA.
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(2) Condensed balance sheet and income statement -SFAS
A. Condensed balance sheet -SFAS

Currency unit: NT$ 1,000

Financial information from January 1% 2011 to
December 31 2015

Current assets $1,999,271 $2,124,55
Funds and long-term i i
investments
Fixed assets 886,128 885,032
Other assets 157,871 246,013
Total assets 3,043,275 3,255,601
Current Eurg.-d.l(;/ldznd 1,240,54( 1,286,744
liabilities |EX-dIviden ) )
(Note 1) 1,536,024 1,662,414
Long-term liabilities 122,09¢ 118,489
Other liabilities 3,540 4,514
Total Eurgjq:;/ldznd 1,366,174 1,409,749
liabilities |=X-dIviden
(Note 1) 1,661,668 1,785419 N/A N/A N/A

Capital stock 900,867 916,267
Capital surplus 285,357 309,961
Unrealized gains of
financial assets i i
Cumulative conversion
adjustment ) )
Net loss from unrecognize
pension cost i i
Retained CEumd-fjl_\gdegd 490,872 619,426
earnings VeElEgE] 3

g (Note 1) 195,384 243,756
Total Cum-dividend 1,677,096 1,845,852
shareholder{ Ex-dividend
equity (Note 1) 1,381,611 1,470,182
Note 1: The figures of ex-dividend are based onrésslution of the Shareholders Meeting in subsegue

fiscal period.
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B. Condensed income statement -SFAS

Currency unit: NT$ 1,000

Financial information from January 1° 2011 to
December 31 2015

Revenue 6,278,208 6,699,657
Gross profits 2,047,79 2,370,470
Operating income 357 899 457 437
Non-operating incomes 55 785 70.118

Non-operating expenses$
and loss

EBT in segments of
continued operation 405,68: 522,273
Earnings in segments of L N/A N/A N/A
continl?ed ope?ation 336,35¢ 433,24%
Income from discontinue
operations
Contingent incomes - -
Cumulative effect of
change in accounting - -

7,999 5,284

policy
Earnings in current perid 336.358  433.24%
EPS 3.72 4.79

Note 1: The calculation is made on the basis @fhighted average quantity of outstanding shares.

Note 2: New share issue through capitalizatiorraployee bonus and retained earnings is requirdtieoy
accounting principles generally accepted in the R@Qracking the total quantity of outstanding
shares before and after dilution for comparisothefearrings per share of each year.

(3) Names of the certified public accountants and aygintions in the last 5 years

Year | CPA Firm Names of CPAs Audit Opinion
: Lee Ming-Hsien, i
2011 | PriceWaterhouse Coope Lin Chi-Yu Unqualified
, Lee Ming-Hsien, - e
2012 | PriceWaterhouse Coope Lin Chi-Yu Modified unqualified
: Lee Ming-Hsien, i
2013 | PriceWaterhouse Coope Lin Chi-Yu Unqualified
2014 | PriceWaterhouse Coopers Le_e Ming-Hsien, Unqualified
Liou Tzu-Meng
2015 | PriceWaterhouse Coope Lge WIGHAEN, Unqualified
Liou Tzu-Meng
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2.

Financial analyses in the last five years

(1) Financial analysis - IFRS

Year

Liabilities to assets rati

(%)

Financial analyses in the last 5 years

2011 ‘ 2012

Financial
structure

Long-term capital to re
estate, plants, and
equipment ratio( % )

Current ratio( % )

Ability to

Quick ratio (9% )

repay debf

Debt services coverags
ratio

A/R turnover (time)
(Note 3)

Average days of cash
receipt(Note 3)

Inventory turnover
(time)

Utility

A/P turnover (time)

Average days of sales

N/A

Real estate, plants, an
equipment turnover
(time)

Total asset turnover
(time)

ROA (%)

ROE (%)

Profitability]

Ratio of EBT to paid-in
capital ¢6)

Net profit rate( % )

EPS (NT$)(Note 5)

Cash flow ratio( 95 )

Cash flow

Net cash flow adequac
ratio (%)

Cash reinvestment rati

(%)

Financial information

(Note 1) .
in 2016 to March 31
2013 ‘ 2014 (Note 2)
4477 49.45 50.8¢9 51.73 47.25
216.06 174.71 184.71 167.98 170.10
159.9§ 143.30 139.94 136.25 143.06
55.27 58.44 59.9( 52.08 48.86
202.39 148.54 127.71 165.93 159.97
2.96 3.19 3.43 3.29 3.49
4.69 4.83 4.66 4.29 491
123.31 114.494 106.4]1 110.94 104.58
7.08 6.64 6.77 6.60 6.41
2.00 2.00 2.04 2.02 2.12
13.63 15.53 17.57 18.14 17.54
24.84 29.30 34.93 37.06 34.50
56.071 72.58 99.5¢ 120.5¢ 125.00
6.79 7.71 8.43 8.91 8.21
4.62 5.97 8.14 10.0C 2.59
48.48 52.50 50.11 44 58 19.00
94.50 101.04 94.84 77.93 85.08
12.51 16.32 18.9( 10.91 10.34
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Operation leverage 4.89 4.50 3.90 3.65 3.83
Financial leverage 1.01 1.01 1.0y 1.01 1.01

Leverage

The reasons fahe changes in financial ratios in the last 2 ydahsinges less than +20% are not req
for further analysis):

Debt services coverage ratio: Because of an iner@aSBIT in FY2015.

Ratio of EBT to paid-in capital (%): Becauseanf increase in revenue and the effective controjpetating
expenses in FY2015.
EPS (NT$): The increase of the earnings which testdman increase in revenue and the effective co
of operating expenses in FY2015.

Cash reinvestment ratio: The decrease of cashegtiment ratio results from the higher cash dividend

Note 1: Poya International adopted the Internatidfinancial Reporting Standard (IFRS) since Janugry
2013 in accounting. Inasmuch as the insufficientgata covering a period of 5 years, the statement
(1) below was prepared in accordance with theeStant of Financial Accounting (SFAS) of the ROC.
Note 2:  The financial information as of March 31180vas reviewed by CPA.
Note 3: Poya International is in the retailing istty, and this is not applicable here.
Note 4: The equations for the calculation of thewabfinancial ratios (under IFRS) are shown below:
A.  Financial structure
(A) Liabilities to assets ratio = total liabilities/tdtassets
(B) Long-term capital to real estate, plants, and eqaift ratio = (total equity + non-current
liabilities)/net value of real estate, plants, aggdipment
B. Ability to repay debts
(A) Current ratio = current assets/ current liabilities
(B) Quick ratio = (current assets — inventory — prepants) / current liabilities
(C) Debt services coverage ratio = EBIT/interest expsms current period
C. Utility
(A) Receivables (including account receivables and neteivables deriving from business
operation ) turnover = net sales/the average rabdvbalance in each period (including
account receivables and note receivables derivirg business operation)
(B) Average days for cash receipt = 365 days/receiviabt®ver rate
(C) Inventory turnover = cost of goods sold / averagentory
(D) Payables (including account payables and note peyaleriving from business operations)
turnover = cost of goods sold/ average payablenbalan each period (including account
payables and note payables deriving from busingsgation).
(E) Average days of sales = 365 days/ inventory turncate.
(F) Real estate, plants, and equipment turnover =alesfet value of real estate, plants, and
equipment.

(G) Total assets turnover = net sales/ average todatsas
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D. Profitability
(A) ROA = [Corporate earnings + interest expense tadrate)] / average total assets
(B) ROE = Corporate earnings /average total equity
(C) Net profit rate = Corporate earnings / net sales
(D) EPS = (Earnings attributable to the owners of pargoreferred stock dividend)/ weighted
average quantity of outstanding shares
E. Cash flow
(A) Cash flow ratio = net cash flow from operation freat liabilities
(B) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flow froperation in the last 5 years/ (capital
expenditure + increase in inventory + cash dividendhe last 5 years
(C) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flow from ofi@na- cash dividend) /gross real estate,
plants, and equipment + long-term investment +ratlo@-current assets + working capital)
F. Leverage:
(A) Operation leverage = (net sales — cost of goodbamd expenses) /operating income
(B) Financial leverage = operating income / (operaiti@ome — interest expenses)
Note 5:  Attention to the following items is advisidassessing the equation for the calculatioraofiegs per
share:
A. Based on the weighted average quantity of outstgnchmmon shares in current year.
B. For new share issue through capitalization of netiearnings and capital surplus, adjustment in
proportion of the amount of capital raised shallrhade in the calculation of the annual or

semi-annual earnings per share of the previous year
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(2) Financial analysis - SFAS

Financial analyses in the last 5 years

2014 2015
Items of analyses
, _ |Liabilities to assets ratio (%) 44.89 43.30
Financial
structure |Long-term capital to fixed O i
assets ratio (%)
- Current ratio (%) 161.16 165.11
Ability to - -
Quick ratio (%) 49.4( 56.55
repay debt .
Debt services coverage ratjo  109.18 205.73
A/R turnover (time)Note 1) - -
Average days of cash receipt
(Note 1)
- Inventory turnover (time) 3.44 3.28
Utility :
A/P turnover (time) 5.01 5.19
Average days of sales 106.21 111.29
Fixed assets turnover (time) 7.18 7.57
Total assets turnover (time 2.10 213  N/A N/A N/A
ROA (%) 11.38 13.87
ROE (%) 20.79 24.60
Ratio to [Operating income 39.73  49.97
. |paid-in
Profitability _
capital |EBT 45.03 57.00
(%)
Net profit rate (%) 5.36 6.47
EPS (NT$)(Note 2) 3.7 4.75
Cash flow ratio (%) 29.45 52.471
Net cash flow adequacy rat
Cash flow 74.99 95.99
(%)
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 4.60 13.55
Operation leverage 5.39 4.80
Leverage
Financial leverage 1.01 1.0%

Note 1: Poya International is in the retailing istty, and this is not applicable here.

Note 2:  Attention to the following items is advisedassessing the equation for the calculationaphiags per
share:
A. Based on the weighted average quantity of outstgnchmmon shares in current year.

B. For new share issue through capitalization of nethiearnings and capital surplus, adjustment in
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Note 3:

proportion of the amount of capital raised shallrhade in the calculation of the annual or

semi-annual earnings per share of the previous year

The equations for the calculation of thevabfinancial ratios (under SFAS) are shown below:

A.

Financial structure

(A) Liabilities to assets ratio = total liabilities/édtassets

(B) Long-term capital to fixed assets ratio = (totalargolders’ equity + long-term
liabilities)/net fixed assets

Ability to repay debts

(A) Current ratio = current assets/ current liabilities

(B) Quick ratio = (current assets — inventory — prepants) / current liabilities

(C) Debt services coverage ratio = EBIT/interest expsis current period

Utility

(A) Receivables (including account receivables and neteivables deriving from business
operation ) turnover = net sales/the average rab&vbalance in each period (including
account receivables and note receivables derivomg business operation)

(B) Average days for cash receipt = 365 days/receivait®ver rate

(C) Inventory turnover = cost of goods sold / averagemntory

(D) Payables (including account payables and note pesyaleriving from business operations)
turnover = cost of goods sold/ average payablenbalén each period (including account
payables and note payables deriving from businpegation).

(E) Average days of sales = 365 days/ inventory turncate.

(F) Fixed assets turnover = net sales/net value fissdta.

(G) Total assets turnover = net sales/ average tadatas

Profitability

(A) ROA = [Corporate earnings + interest expense xairate)] / average total assets

(B) ROE = Corporate earnings /average net shareholeiguity

(C) Net profit rate = Corporate earnings / net sales

(D) EPS = (Earnings— preferred stock dividend)/ weidhé@erage quantity of outstanding

shares

Cash flow

(A) Cash flow ratio = net cash flow from operation freat liabilities

(B) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flow froperation in the last 5 years/ (capital
expenditure + increase in inventory + cash dividendhe last 5 years

(C) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flow from opema— cash dividend) /gross fixed
assets + long-term investments + other assets kingpcapital)

Leverage:

(A) Operation leverage = (net sales — cost of goodbaad expenses) /operating income

(B) Financial leverage = operating income / (operaiti@ome — interest expenses)
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3. Audit Committee’s Review Report on Financial Staterant of Last Fiscal Year

POYA International Co., Ltd.

Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors have prepared and submikttedbusiness report, financial
statements and profit distribution proposal foryear 2015, among which the financial
statements have been audited and reviewed by Leg Nsien and Liou Tzu-Meng, who are
both certified accounts from the accounting firmrPefC Taiwan, and they have issued an
audit report. The above mentioned report and doatsrteave been reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Company and the members of Audih@ittee are of the opinion that they
are in order, and hereby issue this report in alzwre to Article 14-4 of the Securities and
Exchange Law and Article 219 of the Company Act.

POYA International Co., Ltd.

The convener of Audit Committee: Lin Tsai-Yuan

February 22, 2016
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Financial information in last fiscal year:

Please refer to Page 104~143. Poya Internatiored dot have any subsidiary and
no consolidated financial statement is necessarly the financial statement on the
Company itself is required.

The audited financial statement of the Company itdéin the last fiscal year:
None

Any insolvency for the Company and the affiliatesn the last fiscal period and to the
date this report was printed, and the effect on théinancial position: None.
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VIIl. Financial Position, Financial Operation in Reviewand Risk

Assessment

Financial Position, Financial Operation in Reviewd Risk Assessment
1. Financial Position
Comparison of financial positions

Currency unit: NT$ 1,000

Year Change
: FY2015 FY2014
Title Amount

Current assets 3,521,058 3,195,555 325,503 10.199

Real estate, plants and |

equipment 1,830,435 1,407,485 422,950 30.05¢

Other assets 318,234 287,947 30,287 10.529

Total assets 5,669,72] 4,890,98] 778,74( 15.92%
Current liabilities 2,584,221 2,283,457 300,764 13.179

Non-current liabilities 348,766 205,432 143,334 69.779

Total liabilities 2,932,981 2,488,88¢ 444,098 17.84%
Capital stock 952,774 941,131 11,643 1.24%
Capital surplus 473,319 394,551 78,768 19.969

Retained earnings 1,310,647 1,066,416 244,231 22.909

Total shareholders’ equity 2,736,74 2,402,09 334,642 13.93%

(1) Analysis of changes in proportion (changes less #20% are not required for further analysis):
A. Real estate, plants and equipment: Because ofxieneion of the operating scaad th¢

purchase of land and building -Fongyuan Branch¥20A.5.
B. Non-current liabilities: Because of the increasdoofy-term debt payable deriviigpm the
expansion of the operating scale.
C. Retained earnings: Because of the increase oftgrofi
(2) Responses in the future:
The working capital deriving from business opemaiiothe future and part of the funds offered by
the financing of financial institutions shall befgient for supporting the operation of the

Company in the future.
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2. Financial performance
Comparison of financial performance

Currency unit: NT$ 1,000
Change in Change in

FY2015 ‘ FY2014

amount proportion (%)

Revenue 10,687,825 9,167,590 1,520,23% 16.589
Cost of goods sold (6,310,255 (5,456,820) (853,435 15.649
Gross profit 4.377,57( 3,710,770 666,80( 17.979
Operating expense (3,248,955 (2,815,877) (433,078 15.389
Operating income 1,128,611 894,891 233,727 26.129
Non-operating income ai

20,30( 42,139 (21,839 (51.83)9
expense
EBT 1,148,911 937,037 211,883 22.619
Income tax expense (196,770 (164,570 32,20( 19.579
Earnings in current period 952,14¢ 772,464 179,683 23.269

(1) Analysis of changes in proportion in the last 2disyears (changes less than +20% are not
required for further analysis):
A. Operating income: Because of the increase of revenkY2015.
B. Non-operating income and expense: Because of ttrease of other non-operating incoime
FY2015 comparing to FY2014.
C. EBT: Because of the increase of revenue and theosap of scale in FY2015
D. Earnings in current period: Becausetloé increase of revenue and the economy of sc
FY2015.
(2) The forecast of sales in the year ahead and the bfhe forecast:
Poya International will continue to expandw stores, enlarge its operating scale and inerémg
sales in the next year. With our viewpoints of élecenomic changes and store expansion in the
year, we forecast that the sales will still be comgh.
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3.

Cash flow
Analysis of the change in cash flow in last fisgaar, the improvement plan for
insufficient liquidity, and the forecast analysiscash flow in the year ahead

(1) Analysis of the change in cash flow in current peéri
Currency unit: NT$ 1,000

Cash and Improvement plan for
Net cash flow | Cash outflow
Cash : _ _ Cash surplus cash gap
from operation | (inflow) in

Equivalents, | . _ _ (short) Investment| Financial
o in the period the period
Beginning of (1)+(2)-(3)

Year (1) 2) (3)
$771,75 1,152,166

1,160,309 763,608

The analysis:

A. Operation activities: net cash inflow from operatiactivities is approximately
NT$ 1.152 billion which results from the increasetloe earnings in current
period.

B. Investment activities: net cash outflow from invesht activities is
approximately NT$ 0.672 billion which results fraime purchases of property,
plant and equipment for store remodeling and stapansion in current period,
and the increase of refundable deposits.

C. Financing activities: net cash outflow from finamgiactivities is approximately
NT$ 0.488 billion which results from the distriboti of cash dividends in
current period and the repayment of the long-terams.

(2) The improvement plan for insufficient liquidity: Napplicable.

(3) Analysis of cash flow in the year ahead
Currency unit: NT$ 1,000

Cash and Improvement plan for
Net cash flow | Cash outflow
Cash _ Cash surplus cash gap

, from operation | (inflow) in : :
Equivalents, | _ _ (short) Investment | Financial
o in the period the period
Beginning of (1)+(2)-(3)

2 3
Year (1) @ 3
$763,608 1,324,995 1,325,528 763,075 Bank loans

A. The analysis:

(A) Operation activities: revenue in FY2016 is expedtedrow stably and will
generate net cash inflow.

(B) Investment activities: net cash outflow from inwvesnt activities mainly
results from the continued store expansion, thénastd purchases of
property, plant and equipment, and the paymengfoindable deposits.
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(C) Financing activities: mainly for the projected distition of cash dividends
and the repayment of long-term loans.

B. The improvement plan for and liquidity analysiscakh gap: Poya International
plans to increase the size of long-term loans flmenks to sustain its store
expansion plan which results in additional capiedpenditures and the
inadequacy of working capital. Loans from banks baip to maintain a safe
level of balance for working capital.

4. Major capital expenditure in the last fiscal year and its effect on financial position
and operation

(1) The implementation of major capital expenditured @re sources of funding
Currency unit: NT$ 1,000

Actual or Actual or Total Actual or estimated spending
ota
_ expected expected
Project amount | FY2012| FY2013| FY2014| FY2015
sources of date of :
_ _ required

funding completion

New store Working

expansion, capital and

_ i _ 2015.12.31] 532,469 - - - 532,469
remodeling of financial

existed store§ institutions

(2) Effect on financial and business operation

The purpose of new share issue through capitalizaif earnings and employee
bonus is to sustain the new store expansion plaichwis necessary for maintaining
the business growth and enhancing the competitdgeimelong-term development. The
benefits of new store expansion will be broughoimall play in the future and
contribute to the earnings and shareholders’ equity

In consideration of the effect on earnings per ehaost of capital, stable
operation, the security of financial structure, ahdreholders’ equity, new share issue
through capitalization of earnings and employeeulsas the most preferred source of
financing for the time being.

5. Reinvestment policy in the last fiscal year, the ma reason for profits or losses, the
improvement plan, and the investment plan in the y& ahead: None.
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6. Risk analysis and assessment

(1) The effect of fluctuation of interest rate and extafpe rate and inflation on the income

status of the Company, and the responses:
The effect on the income status of the Company:

Title FY2015 (NT$ 1,000; %)
Net interest income (expense) -4,432
Net exchange gains/loss 0
Net interest income (expense) to net sales ratio -0.04%
Net interest income (expense) to EBT ratio -0.39%
Net exchange gains/loss to net sales ratio 0%
Net exchange gains/loss to EBT ratio 0%
(A) Fluctuation of interest rate:

As of the end of 2015, Poya International had lerga debt amounting
to NT$667.499 million (including current portion twng-term debts or with
maturity in one operation period). It takes littfect on the income status of
Poya International. The Company takes responsdsedp tracking on the
trend of interest rate, and bargain with the servimancial institutions
actively with an attempt to control the cost ofafiiting at a relative low point
in market.

(B) Fluctuation of exchange rate:

Poya International buys and sells merchandises Ti$, N\and is not
engaged in exports. Imported items accounted faralow proportion of its
total sales. In addition, there is no trade agree¢mavolving foreign
exchanges. As such, exchange rate fluctuation doéscause significant
effect on the revenue and profit of the Company.

(C) Inflation:

Poya International pays close attention to thetdlaion of market prices
and keeps abreast of information on CPI fluctuaaod inflation. As such,
inflation does not cause significant effect on tileome status of the
Company. Poya International spares no effort ilargmg its economy of
scale to reduce the pressure from cost up dudlatiam, and also reduce the
influence on its operation.

(2) The policy of engagements in high risk and higretage investment, financing a third
party, endorsement and guarantee in favor of d tharty, and derivative trade, the

main reason for profits or losses, and the respsoimste future:
Poya International focuses on retailing businessiamot engaged in high risk

and high leverage investment, financing a thirdypandorsement and guarantee in
favor of a third party, and derivative trade. Huoe effective control of related risk, and
enhancement of financial operation security, Pay@rhational has established the

“Operational Procedures for Loaning of Company RintDperational Procedures for
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Endorsements and Guarantees”, and “Operational eBuoes for Acquisition or
Disposal of Assets” as required by applicable leglds of the Securities and Futures
Bureau. In addition, the auditing function of Pdgéernational has also established
related risk management and assessment of relgstens in accordance with the
“Regulations Governing the Establishment of Inter@antrol System by Public
Companies” of the Securities and Futures Bureau.

(3) R&D plan in the future and estimated expenses oDR&

(A) This year, the corporate intellectual property @ctibn system (file encryption)
will be established to avoid any disclosure of gorise intellectual property
and the members’ detail information, and to prevany losses from the
Company and our members.

The establishment of corporate data protectioresystill be completed before
June, 2016. The estimated expenses is over NTHRidm
Benefits from

Name of R&D| Current Further Scheduled
_ ] the success of
plan progress investment | connection dat
R&D
Prevent
Corporate data disclosure of
) Under Over
protection ) . June 2016 corporate
construction| NT$2.1 million .
System intellectual
property

(B) The SDS(Software-Defined Storage) will be estaklish Through the
appliance of SDS (DataCore), new and old disk gsebould be implemented
integration. Once one of the two disk shelves stawn, the system could
switch to the regular one immediately without anffuence. As such, we take
the advantage of high efficiency of high level deslelf without purchasing

one.

The establishment of SDS will be completed by JAR16. The estimated

expenses is NT$2.5 million depend on the physioglémentation of capacity.
Benefits from

Name of R&D| Current Further Scheduled
_ ] the success of
plan progress investment | connection dat
R&D
Preliminary

Increase

, assessment . , ,
SDS appliance and NT$2.5 million July 2016 available disk

_ space
planning

(C)The Core Switch will be updated and HA will be édfished. To avoid sudden
breakdown and to raise the efficiency, the Compplays to purchase new
products for replacement and also set up HR foptkegention of single point

failure.
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The update and establishment will be completedfyl, 2016. The estimated
expenses is approx. NT. 0.5 million.

Name of R&D| Current Further Scheduled Benefits the
plan progress investment | connection datq success of R&D
Upgrade IT
_ system reliability|
Core Switch o
Assessment . _ and transmission
update & HA NT$0.5 million April 2016
) phase performance for
appliance . .
uninterruptible
system service

(4) The effect of national and international changestial policies and legal environment
on the financial and business operation of the Gomjpand the responses to such
changes:

A. The effect of national and international changesvital policies and legal
environment on the financial and business operatidhe Company:

(A) For the enhanced advocacy of corporate governafigancial Supervisory
Commission has mapped out the blue print for intging corporate
governance in 2013. Through relevant institutioralon of rules and
regulations, self-discipline of the enterprisesd anarket supervision, FSC
makes the enterprises to make positive effort irviag the culture of
corporate governance, prompt the actions of theek&ers, upgrade the
function of the Board of Directors, disclose th&avinformation on corporate
governance, and fortify the legal framework as thédelines for the
corporate governance policy of the enterprisesaRntentional will support
the cause of intensifying corporate governance eabed by FSC.

(B) Financial Supervisory Commission indicates that ¢néerprises operating
the business related to people’s livelihood, béaug to face directly with the
customers, or reaching a certain size which magesaignificant impacts on
the environment and society because of its operawbivities shall spare no
effort in execution of corporate social respongilln 2014, FSC fortifies
the responsibilities of internal control of the TBR/&TSM-Listed Companies
and also requires that the listed enterprises aal,fdinancial and chemical
industry, and with the paid in capital amounted\ft$ 10 billion or more
shall issue the corporate social responsibilityorefhereinafter referred to as
CSR). In order to thoroughly execute the policy adrporate social
responsibility and fortify the communication amoting stakeholders, Poya
International voluntarily issued the 2014 CSR répoDecember 2015.

(C) Since January *1 2016, the listed enterprises with the paid in t@pi
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amounted to NT$ 2 billion or more and with the staiders to be more than
10,000 people shall adopt the way of electroniangptas convening the
Shareholders Meeting. Poya International plans dtuntarily implement

electronic voting in 2016 Shareholders Meeting ndeo to preserve the
voting rights of shareholders and to implement $ip&its of shareholder
activism.

(D) Financial Supervisory Commission announced thegkexorder to require
TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies to set the Independeirecidr and
establish the audit commission step by step. Thetions of establishment of
Independent Director and audit commission areffant the shareholder’s
equity, perfecting the company management and dpgyathe company
governance. In order to thoroughly execute the cgolof corporate
governance and fortify the transparency of infororatand supervision
device, Poya International has voluntarily estdlglts audit commission in
2014.

B. The responses: Poya International has appointeddbignated personnel to pay
close attention to any change in applicable legigisrand information released by
the government, and submit the information to thenagement and related
personnel timely.

(5) The effect of technological and industrial changehe financial position and
operation of the Company, and the responses tohifuege:

Poya International pays close attention to the ldgweent of consumer related
technologies like e-commerce, telecommunications, @onsumer banking. With its
ever expanding scale of operation, product manageberomes essential. The use of
information system for quick access to sales infdrom can effectively help to control
the purchase of merchandises to the minimum le/@hv@ntory without losing any
sale opportunity. As such, the use of informatieshhology can fortify real-time
supply of products and services which are vitaldevelopment under competition and
breakthrough. Overall, technological change causesignificant influence on the
financial position of the Company.

(6) The effect of corporate image on crisis manageraedithe responses to the crisis:

(4) In addition to emphasis on its core business ojeraPoya International spares
no effort in performing its corporate social respibility and social charity in the
long run. In 2015, Poya International participait&d the “International Beach
Clean-Up” held by “the Society of Wilderness”, mutly did the small donations
to sponsor the ocean protection, but also protebe@nvironment by action;
participated into the activity named “Love in Kaalmgy-Christmas Carnival” held
by “Kaohsiung Community Services Association”, spaned national slow-pitch
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7.

(7)

(8)

(9)

soft ball championships- the silence cup for heaimpaired labor in Tainan in
2015. Furthermore, Poya International establisalevant rules and regulations
for the prevention of disasters like typhoon ame ¥ith proper education and
training. These efforts help to minimize the dameased by disasters quickly.
As of the date this report was printed, there iwent that caused damage to the
corporate image of the Company.

Expected result and possible risks deriving frommgees and acquisitions, and the
responses: None.

Expected result and possible risks deriving froampkexpansion, and the responses:
None.

The risk deriving from concentration of purchaseales, and the responses:

Poya International is a retailer and there is naceatration of sales. There is also
no single supplier that accounted for more than b@#e total purchase made by the
Company. This is because that the Company seeaksdwsify its sources of
merchandise supply with purchase and sales in geeggty of items. As such, there is
no risk deriving from the concentration of purchassales.

(10) The effect and the risk caused by the transfewingguity shares in large quantity by

directors, supervisors or dominant shareholdetshibial more than 10% of the shares
each or the replacement of directors, supervissrdpminant shareholders holding
more than 10% of the Company shares each , amétpense: None.

(11) The effect of the change in ownership on the Comypiie risk derived thereof, and the

response: None.

(12) Major law suits, non-contentious matters, or adstrative actions involving the

directors, supervisors, general manager, owneasebblders that hold more than 10%
of the equity shares, with sentence or pendingoomta@ecision, the result of which
may significantly affect the shareholders’ equitystock price of the Company, the
action taken in response to the aforementionedutbspthe target amount involved, the
date on which the law suit started, the partieceomed, and the status as of the day
this report was printed: None.

(13) Other important risks and responses: None.

Other important notice: None.
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VIIl. Special Notes

Special Notes
1. Information on the affiliates
(1) Consolidated business report: None.
(2) Consolidated financial statement: None.
(3) Report on affiliates: None.

2. From the last fiscal year to the date this report \as printed, any issuance of
securities through private placement: None.

3.  From the last fiscal year to the date this report \as printed, the holding or
disposition of equity shares by the Company: None.

4. Other supplementary note: None.
5. From the last fiscal year to the date this report \&s printed, any event that

significantly affects the shareholders’ equity or ®ck price of the Company as stated
in Article 36- IlI- (Il) of the Securities and Exchange Act: None.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS TRANSLATED FROVHINESE

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of POM&rnational Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying balance she®®%A International Co., Ltd. as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related staterkecomprehensive income, of changes
in equity and of cash flows for the years then endéese financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaasibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the tRegpns Governing Auditing and
Attestation of Financial Statements by CertifiedRuAccountants” and generally accepted
auditing standards in the Republic of China. Thsiaedards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abouhetitte financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examinamga test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemantaudit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estismatade by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement prederiaWe believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@dlbove present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of POYA International CotdLas of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and
its financial performance and cash flows for thargghen ended in conformity with the
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of FinanBi@ports by Securities Issuers” and the
International Financial Reporting Standards, Iraéional Accounting Standards, IFRIC
Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endbloye=inancial Supervisory Commission.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
Republic of China
February 22, 2016

The accompanying financial statements are not d#erno present the financial position aerdults of operations and c:
flows in accordance with accounting principles gaftg accepted in countries and jurisdictions ottiem the Republic ¢
China. The standards, procedures and practicdwifRépublic of China governing the audit of suctaficial statements
may differ from those generally accepted in coastand jurisdictions other than the Republic ofn@hAccordingly, the
accompanying financial statements and report oépetident accountants are not intended for usedsetivho arenot
informed about the accounting principles or auditstandards generally accepted in the Republic oha; and thei
applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibilftthe management, PricewaterhouseCoopers canceptany liability
for the use of, or reliance on, the English traimmtaor for any errors or misunderstandings thay rdarive from the
translation
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POYA INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 20: December 31, 20:

104

Asset: Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) and 8 $ 763,608 14 771,751 16
Notes receivable, net 7,239 - 8,338 -
Accounts receivable, net 6(2) 566,726 10 433,248 9
Other receivables 6(21) 2,356 - 154,382 3
Inventories 5(2) and 6(3) 2,067,638 36 1,765,613 36
Prepayments 6(4) 107,441 2 62,223 1
Other current financial assets 8 6,050 - - -

Total current assets 3,521,058 62 3,195,555 65

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 6(5)(21) 1,830,435 32 1,407,485 29
Deferred income tax assets 6(18) 18,180 - 15,779 1
Refundable deposits 6(20) 206,292 4 157,552 3
Other non-current financial assets 8 2,550 - - -
Long-term prepaid rent 80,806 2 103,655 2
Other non-current assets 10,406 - 10,961 -

Total non-current assets 2,148,669 38 1,695,432 35
Total assets $ 5,669,727 100 4,890,987 100

(Continued)



POYA INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
Liabilities and Equit Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %

Current liabilities

Notes payable $ 562,291 10 $ 444,820 9
Accounts payable 1,010,818 18 927,106 19
Other payables 6(6)(21) 538,814 10 506,503 10
Current income tax liabilities 6(18) 113,836 2 110,557 2
Receipts in advance 12,790 - 12,640 -
Long-term liabilities, current portion 6(7) 329,493 6 263,780 6
Other current liabilities 16,179 - 18,051 1
Total current liabilities 2,584,221 46 2,283,457 47
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 6(7) 338,006 6 197,633 4
Deferred income tax liabilities 6(18) 2,865 - 2,574 -
Net defined benefit liabilities-non-current5(2) and 6(8) 2,869 - 2,092 -
Guarantee deposits received 5,026 - 3,133 -
Total non-current liabilities 348,766 6 205,432 4
Total liabilities 2,932,987 52 2,488,889 51
Equity
Share capital
Common stock 6(9)(11)(17) 952,774 17 941,131 19
Capital surplus 6(9)(10) 473,319 8 394,551 8
Retained earnings 6(9)(11)(17)(18)
Legal reserve 357,480 6 284,378 6
Unappropriated retained earnings 953,167 17 782,038 16
Total equity 2,736,740 48 2,402,098 49
Significant Contingent Liabilities and 6(20) and 9
Unrecognized Contract Commitments
Total liabilities and equity $ 5,669,727 100 $ 4,890,987 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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POYA INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2015 AND 2014

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, gdoe earnings per share amounts)

201t 201«
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Operating revenue 6(12) $ 10,687,825 100 $ 9,167,590 100
Operating costs 6(3) ( 6,310,255)( 59) ( 5,456,820)( 59)
Net operating margin 4,377,570 41 3,710,770 41
Operating expenses 6(16)(17)(20)
and 7
Selling expenses ( 2,708,757)( 25) ( 2,277,795)( 25)
General and administrative expenses ( 540,198) ( 5) ( 538,082) ( 6)
Total operating expenses ( 3,248,955)( 30) ( 2,815,877)( 31)
Operating profit 1,128,615 11 894,893 10
Non-operating income and expenses
Other income 6(13) 36,379 - 38,985 -
Other gains and losses 6(14) ( 9,113) - 10,549 -
Finance costs 6(5)(15)(21) ( 6,966) - ( 7,395) -
Total non-operating income and
expenses 20,300 - 42,139 -
Profit before income tax 1,148,915 11 937,032 10
Income tax expense 6(18) ( 196,770)( 2) ( 164,570)( 2)
Net income for the year $ 952,145 9 $ 772,462 8
Other comprehensive income (loss)
(Net)
Components of other comprehensive
income (loss) that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit 6(8)
obligations ($ 2,490) - $ 3,969 -
Income tax relating to the compone 6(18)
of other comprehensive income (lo
that will not be reclassified to profit
loss 423 - ( 675) -
Total other comprehensive (loss)
income for the year ($ 2,067) - $ 3,294 -
Total comprehensive income for the
year $ 950,078 9 % 775,756 8
Basic earnings per share (in dollars)
Net income 6(19) $ 10.00 $ 8.1¢
Diluted earnings per share (in dollars)
Net income 6(19) $ 996 $ 8.1(C

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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POYA INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2015 AND 2014

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

2014

Balance at January 1, 2014
Distribution of 2013 net income:
Legal reserve
Cash dividends
Stock dividends
Employees' stock bonuses
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2014
Other comprehensive income for the year endeeibber 31, 2014
Balance at December 31, 2014

2015

Balance at January 1, 2015
Distribution of 2014 net income:
Legal reserve
Cash dividends
Stock dividends
Employees' stock bonuses
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2015
Other comprehensive income for the year endegiber 31, 2015
Balance at December 31, 2015

Capital
Surplus Retained Earnings
Unappropriated
Additional retained
Notes Common stock paid-in capital Legal reserve earnings Total equity

$ 929,073 % 346,318 $ 228,493 $ 517,412 $ 2,021,296

- - 55,885 ( 55,885) -
6(11) - - - | 445,954) ( 445,954)
6(9)(11) 9,291 - - | 9,291) -
6(9)(21) 2,767 48,233 - - 51,000
- - - 772,462 772,462

. . - 3,294 3,294

$ 941,131 % 394,551 $ 284,378 $ 782,038 $ 2,402,098

$ 941,131 % 394,551 $ 284,378 $ 782,038 $ 2,402,098

- - 73,102 73,102) -
6(11) - - - 696,436) ( 696,436 )
6(9)(11) 9,411 - - 9,411) -
6(9)(21) 2,232 78,768 - - 81,000
- - - 952,145 952,145
- - - 2,067) ( 2,067 )

$ 952,774 % 473,319 $ 357,480 $ 953,167 $ 2,736,740

(Note) The employees' bonues were $51,000 and @8,1ad the directors' remuneration were both $4i82013 and 2014, respectively which had beenicted from statements of

comprehensive income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oétfirancial statements.
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POYA INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2015 AND 2014

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit beforcincome tax for the yee
Adjustments to reconcile profit before income taxet cash
provided by operating activiti
Income and expenses having no effect on cash
Depreciatiol
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and piongin
Interest incom
Interest expen:
Changes in assets/liabilities relating to operasiciiyities
Net changes in assets relating to operating aeti
Notes receivab
Accounts receivab
Other receivable
Inventorie:
Prepaymen
Net changes in liabilities relating to operatingi\aties
Notes payabl
Accounts payab
Other payable
Receipts in advan
Other current liabilitie
Net defined benefit liabilitie-nor-curren
Cash generated from operati
Interest receive
Interest pai
Income tax pai
Net cash provided by operating activi

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in other current financial as
Cash paid for acquisition of property, plant andigopen
Interest paid for acquisition of property, plantdaguipmer
Cash received from disposal of property, plant andpmen
Increase in refundable depo
Increase in other n-current financial asse
Decrease (increase) in Ic-term prepaid rel
Decrease in other n-current asse

Net cash used in investing activil

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from lor-term borrowing

Repayment of lor-term borrowing

Increase in guarantee deposits rece

Cash dividends pa

Net cash used in financing activit

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equiv
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivaleiat end of yee

Notes 2015 2014
1,148,91! $ 937,03:
6(5)(16 349,82( 296,51«
6(14 2,141 13,37¢)
6(13' ( 2,532) ( 2,40¢)
6(15 6,96¢ 7,39t
1,09¢ ( 1,03¢)
( 133,47¢) ( 145,08! )
9,02¢ 3,047)
( 302,02!) ( 348,13:)
( 45,21¢) ( 22,927)
117,47 130,84"
83,71: 270,16:
119,31t 171,71:
15C ( 2,037)
( 1,872) 7,26¢
( 1,713) ( 1,720)
1,351,77 1,280,27.
2,53¢ 2,40
( 6,96¢) ( 7,395)
( 195,17¢) ( 130,97°)
1,152,16 1,144,30.
( 6,05( ) -
6(21 ( 780,72() ( 620,12()
6(5)(15)(21 ( 59¢) ( 572)
6(21 143,41( 63,09¢
( 48,74() ( 30,52:)
( 2,55() -
22,84¢ 14,567 )
55¢E 1,91¢
( 671,85.) ( 600,76!)
550,00( 320,00(
( 343,91¢) ( 346,34()
1,89¢ 15
6(11 ( 696,43() ( 445,95: )
( 488,45 ) ( 472,27¢)
( 8,14%) 71,26(
6(1) 771,75 700,49:
6(1) 763,60 $ 771,75

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottfirancial statements.
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POYA INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, gtces otherwise indicated)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

(1) POYA International Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) wasamporated as a company limited
by shares under the provisions of the Company Athe® Republic of China (R.O.C.).
The Company is primarily engaged in selling fashagoessories, arts and crafts, food,
stationery and a variety of products.

(2) The common shares of the Company have been ligteitheo Taipei Exchange since
September 2002.

2. THE DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE NIANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were authorized foraissel by the Board of Directors on
February 22, 2016.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND
INTERPRETATIONS

(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or ammgms to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as endorsed by tharkial Supervisory Commission

("FSC")

According to Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Auat No. 1030010325 issued by
FSC on April 3, 2014, commencing 2015, companidhk shares listed on the TWSE or
traded on the Taipei Exchange or Emerging Stockkbtagshall adopt the 2013 version
of IFRS (not including IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruntef as endorsed by the FSC and
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Finan&alports by Securities Issuers
effective January®} 2015 (collectively referred herein as the “20E3sion of IFRS”)

in preparing the financial statements. The impa&dwopting the 2013 version of IFRS
IS listed below:

A. 1AS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’

The amendment requires entities to separate itegsepted in OCI classified by
nature into two groups on the basis of whether #reypotentially reclassifiable to
profit or loss subsequently when specific condgicare met. If the items are
presented before tax then the tax related to eatheatwo groups of OCI items
(those that might be reclassified and those thdtnet be reclassified) must be
shown separately. Accordingly, the Company willustljits presentation of the
statement of comprehensive income.
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B. IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’

The standard defines fair value as the price thatldvbe received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly tracsion between market participants
at the measurement date. The standard sets oammeevirork for measuring fair
value from market participants’ perspective, anqunes disclosures about fair
value measuremtnts. For non-financial assets @ailyyvalue is determined based
on the highest and best use of the asset. Basdteddompany’s assessment, the
adoption of the standard has no significant impmectts financial statements, and
the Company will disclose additional informationoab fair value measurements
accordingly.

(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFBSmdorsed by the FSC but not yet
adopted by the Company

None.

(3) IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by thé FS

New standards, interpretations and amendmentsd$suBASB but not yet included in the

2013 version of IFRS as endorsed by the FSC: Effective Date by

International Accounting

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

Standards Board

Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financetiss
(amendments to IAS 36)

Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedgecainting
(amendments to IAS 39)

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’

Defined benefit plans: employee contributions
(amendments to IAS 19R)

Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012

Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013

Investment entities: applying the consolidated ptioa
(amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28)

Accounting for acquisition of interests in jointeyations
(amendments to IFRS 11)

IFRS 14, ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’
Disclosure initiative (amendments to 1AS 1)
Disclosure initiative (amendments to 1AS 7)

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciatiod amortisation
(amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38)

Agriculture: bearer plants (amendments to IAS 1d &S 41)

Equity method in separate financial statements
(amendments to IAS 27)

Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealissdds
(amendments to IAS 12)

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’
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January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014
July 1, 2014

July 1, 2014

July 1, 2014
January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016

JanuaryQiLe?

Janugrg016

Janugrg017
January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016
January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016
January 1, 2017

January 1, 2018



Effective Date by
International Accounting

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ uday 1, 2018
IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ January 1, 2019
Sale or contribution of assets between an invesidrits associate To be determined by
or joint venture (amendments to IFRS 10 and 28p InternationalAccounting

Standards Board

The Company is assessing the potential impacteohéw standards, interpretations and
amendments above. The impact will be disclosed ihemssessment is complete.
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in thegaration of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consigtapplied to all the periods presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(1) Compliance statement

The financial statements of the Company have beepaped in accordance with the
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Finan&alports by Securities Issuers”,
International Financial Reporting Standards, Iiéonal Accounting Standards, IFRIC
Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endblsethe FSC (collectively referred
herein as the “IFRSs”).

(2) Basis of preparation

A. Except for the following items, these financialtestaents have been prepared
under the historical cost convention:

a. Financial assets and financial liabilities (inclugliderivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss.

b. Defined benefit liabilities recognized based on tieé amount of pension fund
assets less present value of defined benefit dldiga

B. The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith IFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It alsquires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Compangtanting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexdy areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financiakestents are disclosed in Note 5.

(3) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements are mmeak using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entityemdes (the “functional currency”).
The financial statements are presented in New Taiallars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

A. Foreign currency transactions are translated imtofinctional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of thedriosis or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and lesdsng from the settlement of

such transactions are recognized in profit or inghe period in which they arise.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated ini¢preurrencies at the period end
are re-translated at the exchange rates prevadinghe balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising upon re-translatiorthat balance sheet date are
recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominatefbieign currencies held at fair
value through profit or loss are re-translatechatéxchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date; their translation differengesrecognized in profit or loss.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominatefbieign currencies held at fair
value through other comprehensive income are restaged at the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date; their tréinsialifferences are recognized in
other comprehensive income. However, non-monetayeta and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are not nrealsat fair value are translated
using the historical exchange rates at the datdseanhitial transactions.

In the statement of comprehensive income, all fpreixchange gains and losses
are presented in “Other gains and losses”.

(4) Classification of current and non-current items

A.

Assets that meet one of the following criteria afassified as current assets;
otherwise they are classified as non-current assets

a. Assets arising from operating activities that axpeeted to be realized, or are
intended to be sold or consumed within the norrpafating cycle;

b. Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

c. Assets that are expected to be realized withinyevelonths from the balance
sheet date;

d. Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted and cash equivalents and
those that are to be exchanged or used to payabffiies more than twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

Liabilities that meet one of the following criter@@e classified as current liabilities;
otherwise they are classified as non-current st

a. Liabilities that are expected to be paid off witkive normal operating cycle;
b. Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

c. Liabilities that are to be paid off within twelveomths from the balance sheet
date;

d. Liabilities for which the repayment date cannotels¢ended unconditionally to
more than twelve months after the balance sheet atms of a liability that
could, at the option of the counterparty, resuliténsettlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification
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(5) Receivables

Accounts receivable are receivables originatedhayentity. They are created by the
entity by selling goods or providing services tetaumers in the ordinary course of
business, including vendor sponsorship receivalben fpurchase cost adjustments
generated from main operating activities. Accouiateivable are initially recognized at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortiostl using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. However, $bort-term accounts receivable
without bearing interest, as the effect of discounts insignificant, they are measured
subsequently at original invoice amount.

(6) Inventories

A.

Self-owned inventories: Inventories are initiallyecognised at cost and
subsequently stated at the lower of cost and radizable value using the retail
inventory method.

Comcessionaire: The concessionaire recognisesutharhount collected from
customers as revenue when the following criterearaet: a. Concessionaire acts
as a principal and provides goods or services stoawers; b. The Company earns
a fixed amount or percentage of profit in the teati®n; and c. Concessionaire
assumes credit risks. The difference between tlieafnount collected from
customers and the amount paid to concessionamecagnised as license income
by the Company. Unsold goods on the balance shast Helong to the
Concessionaire, and are not included in the endimgnce of the Company’s
inventories. If the above are not met, the full amtocollected from customers is
recognised as revenue.

(7) Impairment of financial assets

A.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet dateemwtieere is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of firdrassets is impaired as a result
of one or more events that occurred after theainigcognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an ¢tnpa the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financedsets that can be reliably
estimated.

The criteria that the Company uses to determinetivelnethere is objective
evidence of impairment loss is as follows:

a. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer oebtor;

b. The disappearance of an active market for thatn@izd asset because of
financial difficulties;

c. Observable data indicating that there is a meakuddrrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a group of financial assgtge the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot eyetidnmtified with the
individual financial asset in the group, includiraglverse changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group or natiaralocal economic
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conditions that correlate with defaults on the &ssethe group;

d. Information about significant changes with an adeeeffect that have taken
place in the technology, market, economic or lesgalironment in which the
issuer operates, and indicates that the cost ofithestment in the equity
instrument may not be recovered.

When the Company assesses that there has beetiveb@adence of impairment
and an impairment loss has occurred, accountinginigrairment is made as
follows according to the category of financial dsse

For financial assets measured at amortised casgrtiount of the impairment loss
Is measured as the difference between the assetigrngg amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discountedhat financial asset’s original
effective interest rate, and is recognised in puarfioss. If, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases andiéicecase can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impannloss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversedugh profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset doegxceed its amortised cost that
would have been at the date of reversal had theairment loss not been
recognised previously. Impairment loss is recoghead reversed by adjusting the
carrying amount of the asset through the use afhgairment allowance account.

(8) Derecognition of financial assets

9)

The Company derecognizes a financial asset wheoathigactual rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset expire.

Property, plant and equipment

A.

Property, plant and equipment are initially record® cost. Borrowing costs
incurred during the construction period are caisi¢al.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s ngrg/mount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it ibapte that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to Bempany and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amounteféplaced part is derecognized.
All other repairs and maintenance are chargedabtpor loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment apply the cost mo#ekcept for land, other

property, plant and equipment are depreciated usiagstraight-line method to
allocate their cost over their estimated usefuddivif each component of property,
plant and equipment is significant, it is depremibseparately.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and degiren methods are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial ‘geal. If expectations for the
assets’ residual values and useful lives diffemfrprevious estimates or the
patterns of consumption of the assets’ future espadenefits embodied in the
assets have changed significantly, any change deuated for as a change in
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estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Chanige&ccounting Estimates and
Errors’, from the date of the change. The estimaiseful lives of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Asset Useful lives
Buildings 30~40 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Office equipment 3~5 years
Leasehold improvements 2~20 years
Other equipment 5 years

(10) Leases (lessee)

Payments made under an operating lease (net ofirmentives received from the
lessor) are recognized in profit or loss on a glrialine basis over the lease term.

(11) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet datedlierable amounts of those
assets where there is an indication that they m@wgaired. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s yoagr amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is itffeeh of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal or value in use. Except for gathdwhen the circumstances or
reasons for recognizing impairment loss for an tasserior years no longer exist or
diminish, the impairment loss is reversed. The aased carrying amount due to
reversal should not be more than what the depeztiat amortized historical cost
would have been if the impairment had not beengeized.

(12) Notes and accounts payable

Notes and accounts payable are obligations to gagdods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business frompbers. They are recognized

initially at fair value and subsequently measuredmaortized cost using the effective

interest method. However, for short-term accoumigple without bearing interest, as
the effect of discounting is insignificant, theyeaneasured subsequently at original
invoice amount.

(13) Borrowings

A. Borrowings are recognised initially at fair valunet of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortiset] ang difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemydalue is recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings usingdfiective interest method.

B. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilitresracognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable th@ine or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred uh&l drawdown occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probablésbene or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payrf@ntiquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to whithelates.
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(14)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the @aition under the liability specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(15)

A.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at tthisaounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in respect of sengndered by employees in a
period and should be recognised as expenses ipahat when the employees
render service.

Pensions
a. Defined contribution plan

For the defined contribution plan, the contribui@re recognised as pension
expenses when they are due on an accrual basmi®@ntributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent of a casidrefua reduction in the future
payments.

b. Defined benefit plan

I.  The liability recognized in the balance sheet ispext of defined benefit
pension plan is the present value of the defingtkfiteobligation at the
balance sheet date less the fair value of plantsssegether with
adjustments for unrecognized past service coste défined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independentuages using the
projected unit credit method. The present valuahef defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estedduture cash outflows
using interest rates of government bonds (at thenba sheet date).

II. Remeasurement arising on defined benefit plan ¢egmized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which thegyearand presented in
retained earnings.

Employees’, directors’ and supervisors’ remuneratio

Employees’ remuneration and directors’ and supersisemuneration are
recognized as expenses and liabilities, providatigtich recognition is required
under legal or constructive obligation and thoseamts can be reliably estimated.
Any difference between the resolved amounts angubsequently actual
distributed amounts is accounted for as changestimates. If employee
compensation is distributed by shares, the Compaloylates the number of
shares based on the closing price at the previay®fithe board meeting
resolution.
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(16)

A.

Income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current @eferred tax. Tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except to the exthat it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or items recogniseztttly in equity, in which
cases the tax is recognised in other compreheirgioee or equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated orb#es of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date icountry where the Company
operates and generates taxable income. Manageneiudipally evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to aitns in accordance with
applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisiovhere appropriate based on
the amounts expected to be paid to the tax auitbgrit An additional 10% tax is
levied on the unappropriated retained earnings iangcorded as income tax
expense in the year the stockholders resolve &inréte earnings.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the balaieet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax batessets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statemeHiswever, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initi@cognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than aibess combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting rmeable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laha) have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet dataranekpected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realizededd#ierred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised onlizdcextent that it is probable

that future taxable profit will be available agdindich the temporary differences

can be utilized. At each balance sheet date, ugreeed and recognised deferred
income tax assets are reassessed.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offsel the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enfoleeght to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle ontdasis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred ino®rtax assets and liabilities are
offset on the balance sheet when the entity hadetjedly enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current taxliiedsi and they are levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same entitifterent entities that intend to
settle on a net basis or realize the asset arld g®tliability simultaneously.

A deferred income tax asset shall be recognisedhircarry forward of unused
tax credits resulting from research and developnegpenditures, to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit whlé available against which the
unused tax credits can be utilised.
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(17)

(18)

(19)

Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Company’s finandiaesnents in the period in which
they are approved by the Company’s shareholdersh @avidends are recorded as
liabilities; stock dividends are recorded as stdskdends to be distributed and are
reclassified to ordinary shares on the effectivie @& new shares issuance.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the cerdidn received or receivable
taking into account the value-added tax, returglsates and discounts for the sale
of goods to external customers in the ordinary sewf the Company’s activities.
Revenue arising from the sales of goods is recegnighen the Company has
delivered the goods to the customer, the amouséles revenue can be measured
reliably and it is probable that the future econoiménefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the entity. The delivery goods is completed when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership havenbeansferred to the customer,
the Company retains neither continuing managenablvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effectivetadrover the goods sold, and
the customer has accepted the goods based on l#ge cmtract or there is
objective evidence showing that all acceptanceipias have been satisfied.

The Company has customer loyalty programmes wheee Gompany grants

loyalty awards credits (such as ‘points’; the awamdits can be used to
exchange for free or discounted goods) to custoaepart of a sales transaction.
The fair value of the consideration received oenreable in respect of the initial

sale shall be allocated between the initial salgadds and the award credits.
The amount of proceeds allocated to the award tsredmeasured by reference to
the fair value of goods that can be redeemed hygusie award credits and the
proportion of award credits that are expected toebeemed by customers. The
Company recognizes the deferred portion of theg®ds allocated to the award
credits as revenue only when it has fulfilled idigations in respect of the award
credits.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner censigfth the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker, whaesponsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the ogesatgments.
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5.CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND KEY

SOURCES OF ASSUMPTION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of these financial statements regumanagement to make critical
judgments in applying the Company’s accountinggies and make critical assumptions
and estimates concerning future events. Assumptamas estimates may differ from the
actual results and are continually evaluated afpastetl based on historical experience and
other factors. Such assumptions and estimates daignificant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets atditias within the next financial year, and
the related information is addressed below:

(1) Critical judgments in applying the Company’s acdignpolicies

Revenue recognition on a net/gross basis

The determination of whether the Company is act@sg principal or agent in a
transaction is based on an evaluation of the Cogpaxposure to the significant risks
and rewards associated with the sale of goodseorathdering of service in accordance
with the business model and substance of the tioeaWhere the Company acts as a
principal, the amount received or receivable framtomer is recognised as revenue on
a gross basis. Where the Company acts as an agenhttevenue is recognised
representing commissions earned.

The following characteristicts of a principal aed as indicators to determine whether
the Company shall recognise revenue on a gross:basi

A.

B.
C.

D.

The Company has primary responsibilities for thedgoor services it provides.

The Company bears inventory risk

The Company has a latitude in establishing prioeshfe goods or services, either
directly or indirectly.

The Company bears credit risks of customers.

(2) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

A.

Evaluation of inventories

a. As inventories are stated at the lower of cost metirealizable value, the
Company must determine the net realizable valueantories on balance
sheet date using judgments and estimates. Beoduke change in market
demand and the sales strategy, the Company evalim@mounts of normal
inventory consumption, obsolete inventories or mwees without market
selling value on the balance sheet date, and wud@sn the cost of
inventories to the net realizable value. Such aluation is principally based
on the demand for the products within the specifiediod in the future.
Therefore, there might be material changes to vatiation.

b. As of December 31, 2015, the carrying amount ofemgries was
$2,067,638.
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B. Calculation of net defined benefit liabilities-nonfrent

a. When calculating the present value of defined henalbligations, the
Company must apply judgments and estimates to rdaterthe actuarial
assumptions on balance sheet date, including disgates and future salary
growth rate. Any changes in these assumptions csigtdficantly impact the
carrying amount of defined benefit obligations.

b. As of December 31, 2015, the carrying amount of defined benefit
liabilities-non-current was $2,869.

6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Cash:
Cash on hand $ 31,179 $ 25,722
Checking deposits and
demand deposits 732,429 746,029

$ 763,608 $ 771,751

A. The Company transacts with a variety of finanamstitutions all with high credit
rankings to diversify credit risk, so it expectsitithe probability of counterparty
default is remote.

B. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, details of then@my's cash and cash
equivalents pledged to others as collateral arevigeed in Note 8, “Pledged
assets”.

(2) Accounts receivable, net

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Accounts receivable - sponsorship $ 554,084 $ 422,754
Accounts receivable - customer 12,642 10,494
$ 566,726 $ 433,248

A. The Company has no significant past due but notimed accounts receivable as
of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

B. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’suatts receivable that were
neither past due nor impaired were from the custsrmého have good credit
quality.

C. The Company did not hold any collateral as secastyf December 31, 2015 and
2014.
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(3) Inventories

December 31, 2015

Allowance for price

Cost decline of inventories Carrying amount
Merchandise $ 2,067,638 $ - $ 2,067,638
December 31, 2014
Allowance for price
Cost decline of inventories Carrying amount
Merchandise $ 1,765,613 $ - $ 1,765,613

The cost of inventories recognized as expenséyear:

Cost of inventories sold
Loss on physical inventory

Cost of goods sold

(4) Prepayments

Prepaid rent

Overpaid sales tax
Prepayment for purchases
Other prepaid expenses

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
$ 6,281,990 $ 5,430,107
28,265 26,713
$ 6,310,255 $ 5,456,820

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

$ 83,619 $ 21,283
13,574 11,857
1,536 4,513

8,712 24,570

$ 107,441 $ 62,223
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(5) Property, plant and equipment

At January 1, 2015

Cost

Accumulated
depreciatio

For the year ended

December 31, 2015

At January 1
Additions
Transferred after
acceptance inspecti
Depreciation
Disposal-Cost

Accumulated

depreciatio

At December 31

At December 31, 2015

Cost

Accumulated
depreciatio

Construction in
progress and

Transportatio Office Leasehold Other equipment before
Land Buildings equipment  equipment improvements equipment acceptance inspection  Total
- $ - $ 19,134$% 692,933 $ 1,422,075 % 283,244 $ 78,313 $ 2,495,699
- - 9,361)( 306,036)( 620,108)( 152,709) - (_1,088,214)
- $ - $ 9,773 $ 386,897 $ 801,967 $ 130,535 $ 78,313 $ 1,407,485
- $ - $ 9,773% 386,897 % 801,967 $ 130,535 $ 78,313 $ 1,407,485
240,242 8,017 - - - - 527,062 775,321
- - 6,568 147,639 298,551 68,840 ( 521,598)
- ( 117) 4,041} 140,168J 158,146 47,348) - ( 349,820)
- - 1,291j 84,500) 222,713) 40,403) - ( 348,907)
- - 1,081 83,325 221,744 40,206 - 346,356
240,242 $ 7,900 $ 12,090 $ 393,193 $§ 941,403 $ 151,830 $ 83,777 $ 1,830,435
240,242 $ 8,017 $ 24411 $ 756,072 $ 1,497,913 $ 311,681 $ 83,777 2,922,113
- 117)( 12,321)( 362,879)( 556,510)( 159,851) - (_1,091,678)
240,242 $ 7,900 $ 12,090 $ 393,193 $ 941,403 $ 151,830 $ 83,777 $ 1,830,435

122



At January 1, 2014

Cost

Accumulated
depreciatio

For the year ended
December 31, 2014
At January 1
Additions
Transferred after
acceptance inspecti
Depreciation
Disposal-Cost
Accumulated
depreciatio
At December 31

At December 31, 2014

Cost

Accumulated
depreciatio

Construction in
progress and

Transportatio Office Leasehold Other equipment before
Land Buildings equipment  equipment improvements equipment acceptance inspection  Total
$ 168,160 $ 20,000 $ 14590 $ 582,130 $ 1,152,227 $ 242,770 $ 81,849 $ 2,261,726
S ¢ 222) ( 7,685)( 264,101)( 551,826)( 138,203) S 962,037)
$ 168,160 $ 19,778 $ 6,905 $ 318,029 $ 600,401 $ 104,567 $ 81,849 $ 1,299,689
$ 168,160 $ 19,778 $ 6,905 $ 318,029% 600,401 $ 104,567 $ 81,849 $ 1,299,689
- - - - - - 597,030 597,030
- - 5,848 188,339 341,317 65,062 ( 600,566) -
- ( 556) 2,974 119,471§ 134,695) 38,818) - ( 296,514)
168,16Q) 20,000) 1,304) 77,536) 71,469) 24,588) - ( 363,057)
- 778 1,298 77,536 66,413 24,312 - 170,337
$ - $ - $ 9,773 $ 386,897 $ 801,967 $ 130,535 $ 78,313 $ 1,407,485
$ - $ - % 19,134$% 692,933 $ 1,422,075 % 283,244 $ 78,313 $ 2,495,699
- - 9,361)( 306,036)( 620,108)( 152,709) - ( 1,088,214)
$ - $ - $ 9,773 $ 386,897 $ 801,967 $ 130,535 $ 78,313 $ 1,407,485
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Amount of borrowing costs capitalized as part agarty, plant and equipment and the range of
interest rates for such capitalization are as Vedto

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Amount capitalized $ 598 $ 573
Interest rate range 0.95%~1.71% 1.34%~1.91%

(6) Other payables

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Salaries and bonuses payable $ 171,689 155,623
Accrued employees' remuneration (bonuses) 86,800 85,800
and directors' remuneration

Equipment payable 84,385 90,390

Rent payable 57,931 34,893

Labor and health insurance payable 31,209 25,071

Others 106,840 114,726
$ 538,814 $ 506,503

(7) Long-term borrowings

Range of
Nature Borrowing period interest rates Collateral December 31, 2015
Long-term bank borrowings
Unsecured bank borrowings 8.20.2013~  1.32%~1.64% None $ 667,499
8.20.201
Less: current portion of
long-term borrowin ( 329,493)
$ 338,00¢
Range of
Nature Borrowing period interest rates Collateral December 31, 2014
Long-term bank borrowings
Unsecured bank borrowings 8.22.2012~  1.54%~1.70% None $ 461,413
8.18.201
Less: current portion of
long-term borrowin ( 263,780)
$ 197,633
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(8) Pensions

A.

The Company has a defined benefit pension plarcéerdance with the Labor Standards
Law, covering all regular employees’ service yegatisr to the enforcement of the Labor
Pension Act on July 1, 2005 and service years #fiere of employees who chose to
continue to be subject to the pension mechanisneruteg Law. Under the defined benefit
pension plan, two units are accrued for each yéaewice for the first 15 years and one
unit for each additional year thereafter, subjech tmaximum of 45 units. Pension benefits
are based on the number of units accrued and #rage monthly salaries and wages of the
last 6 months prior to retirement. The Company couates monthly an amount equal to 2%
of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages todtieement fund deposited with Bank of
Taiwan, the trustee, under the name of the indep@nektirement fund committee. Also,
the Company would assess the balance in the afotemed labor pension reserve account
by December 31, every year. If the account balaaceot enough to pay the pension
calculated by the aforementioned method to the eyegls expected to qualify for
retirement in the following year, the Company wilake contribution for the deficit by next
March. Information on the Company’s aforementiopedsion plan is as follows:

a. The amounts recognised in the balance sheet dod@ss:
December 31, 2015December 31, 2014

Present value of defined $ 51,425)($ 48,002)
benefit obligations

Fair value of plan assets 48,556 45,910

Net defined benefit liability % 2,869)($ 2,092)
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b. Movements in net defined benefit liabilities arda@®ws:

Present value of Fair value
defined benefit of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liability
Year ende
December 31, 20:
Balance at January 1 (% 48,002) $ 45,910(% 2,092)
Current service cost ( 395) -( 395)
Interest (expense)
income ( 960 91€ ( 42)
( 49,357 46,82¢ ( 2,529
Remeasuremen
Return on plan assets - 292 292
Change in financial ( 2,491) -( 2,491)
assumptior
Experience adjustments  ( 291) - ( 291,
( 2,782 292 ( 2,490
Pension fund contribution - 2,150 2,150
Paid pension 714 ( 14 -
Balance at December 31 ($ 51,425 $ 48,55¢ ($ 2,869
Year ende
December 31, 20:
Balance at January 1 % 50,460) $ 42,679(% 7,781)
Current service cost ( 372) -( 372)
Interest (expens
income ( 1,009 85& ( 156
( 51,841 43,53: ( 8,309
Remeasuremen
Return on plan assets - 130 130
Experience adjustments 3,83¢ - 3,83¢
3,83¢ 13C 3,96¢
Pension fund contribution - 2,24t 2,24¢
Balance at December 31 ($ 48,002 $ 45,91( ($ 2,092

The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage thedFof the
Company’s defined benefit pension plan in accordamith the Fund’s
annual investment and utilization plan and the ‘iRagons for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilisation of the draRetirement Fund”
(Article 6: The scope of utilisation for the Funttiudes deposit in domestic
or foreign financial institutions, investment inmdestic or foreign listed,
over-the-counter, or private placement equity S@esr investment in
domestic or foreign real estate securitization pobsl etc.). With regard to
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the utilisation of the Fund, its minimum earningsthe annual distributions
on the final financial statements shall be no thas the earnings attainable
from the amounts accrued from two-year time deposith the interest
rates offered by local banks. If the earning is lk&n aforementioned rates,
government shall make payment for the deficit attethorized by the
Regulator. The Company has no right to particip@temanaging and
operating that fund and hence the Company is unablelisclose the
classification of plan asset fair value in accomamwith IAS 19 paragraph
142. The composition of fair value of plan asset®fiDecember 31, 2015
and 2014 is given in the Annual Labor Retirememd-Wtilisation Report
announced by the government.

The principal actuarial assumptions used were l&sAfs:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015December 31, 2014
Discount rate 1.70% 2.00%
Future salary increases 2.50% 2.50%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience &et based on
actuarial advice in accordance with Taiwan Lifeul@mce Industry 5th
Mortality Table.

Because the main actuarial assumption changed,ptbgent value of
defined benefit obligation is affected. The anaysias follows:

Discount rat Future salary increas
Increase 1¢ Decrease 1' Increase 1¢ Decrease 1!

December 31, 2015
Effect on present value of
defined benefit obligation ($ 7,758% 9,490 $ 8,721 ($ 7,342)

December 31, 2014
Effect on present value of

defined benefit obligation ($ 7,319) $ 8,984 $ 8,292 (% 6,950)

The above sensitivity analysis was arrived at basedone assumption
which changed while the other conditions which remd unchanged. In
practice, more than one assumption may change afi@e. The method of
sensitivity analysis and the method of calculatieg pension liability in the
balance sheet are the same.

The methods and assumptions used in preparatitre&ensitivity analysis
for the year ended December 31, 2015 were consigiiéim those used in
2014.
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e. Expected contributions to the defined benefit pmgilans of the Company
for the year ending December 31, 2016 are $2,154.

f. As of December 31, 2015, the weighted average idaratf the retirement
plan is 18 years. The analysis of timing of theufatpension payment was

as follows:

Within 1 year $ 166
2-5 years 2,781
Over 6 years 68,821

$ 71,768

Effective July 1, 2005, the Company has establisaedefined contribution
pension plan (the “New Plan”) under the Labor PamsAct (the “Act”),
covering all regular employees with R.O.C. natiggaUnder the New Plan, the
Company contributes monthly an amount based on 6%h® employees’
monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ iddadi pension accounts at the
Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits accruedpar@ monthly or in lump
sum upon termination of employment. The pensionscasder the defined
contribution pension plan of the Company for thergeended December 31,
2015 and 2014 were $61,185 and $49,219, respectivel

(9) Common stock

A.

Movements in the number of the Company’s ordindmgraes outstanding are as
follows (in thousands of shares):

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
At January 1 94,113 92,907
Stock dividends 941 929
Exercised employee stock bonuses 223 277
At December 31 95,277 94,113

On June 10, 2014, the Company’s shareholders atlaptesolution to issue new
shares of common stock through capitalization o&pgpmopriated retained
earnings of $9,291 and employees’ bonus payab&5bf000. As approved by
the Securities and Futures Bureau, Financial Sigmyw Commission, the
effective date of the capitalization was set on ésidl, 2014. Of the amount of
$51,000 employees’ stock bonuses, 277 thousanésheere calculated based
on the fair value per share at the preceding dath@fshareholders’ meeting,
after taking into account the effects of ex-riglatsd ex-dividends. Amounts
arising in excess of par value on issuance aresifiled as capital
surplus-additional paid-in capital.

After the abovementioned capitalization, the Conyfsatotal authorized capital

was $1,200,000 (including $20,000 reserved for eyg# stock options) and the
128



paid-in capital was $941,131 (94,113 thousand shavih par value of $10 (in
dollars) per share.

On June 10, 2015, the Company’s shareholders atlaptesolution to issue new
shares of common stock through capitalization o&ppmopriated retained
earnings of $9,411 and employees’ bonus payab&8bf000. As approved by
the Securities and Futures Bureau, Financial Sigmyw Commission, the
effective date of the capitalization was set on ésidl, 2015. Of the amount of
$81,000 employees’ stock bonuses, 223 thousan@shkere calculated based
on the fair value per share at the preceding dath@fshareholders’ meeting,
after taking into account the effects of ex-riglatsd ex-dividends. Amounts
arising in excess of par value on issuance aresitked as capital
surplus-additional paid-in capital.

After the abovementioned capitalization, the Conyfsatotal authorized capital
was $1,200,000 (including $20,000 reserved for eyg# stock options) and the
paid-in capital was $952,774 (95,277 thousand shavéh par value of $10 (in
dollars) per share.

(10) Capital surplus

Pursuant to the Company Act, capital surplus agi$iom paid-in capital in excess
of par value on issuance of common stocks and amsatcan be used to cover
accumulated deficit or to issue new stocks or ¢asshareholders in proportion to
their share ownership, provided that the Company ha accumulated deficit.
Further, the Securities and Exchange Law requitasthe amount of capital surplus
to be capitalized mentioned above should not exd€étl of the paid-in capital each
year. Capital surplus should not be used to covenraulated deficit unless the legal
reserve is used.

(11) Retained earnings

A.

The legal reserve shall be exclusively used to caseumulated deficit, to

issue new stocks or distribute cash to shareholdepsoportion to their share

ownership. The use of legal reserve for the issei@afictocks or cash dividends
to shareholders in proportion to their share owmprs permitted provided that
the balance of such reserve exceeds 25% of the &uwyigopaid-in capital.

Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, t@Gempany operates in a
volatile business environment and is in stable gnostage, the appropriation of
earnings should consider fund requirements andatdmidgets to decide how
much earnings will be kept or distributed and houchhcash dividends will be

distributed. 10% of the annual net income, aftdsaifing any loss of prior

years and paying all taxes and dues, shall be sié¢ @s legal reserve. The
remaining net income and the unappropriated retagé@enings from prior years
can be distributed in accordance with a resolutipthe Board of Directors and
then approved at the shareholders' meeting. Oanmeunt to be distributed by
the Company, employees’ bonuses shall not be kess @.1%; with directors

and supervisors’ remuneration shall not exceed 6¥he remaining balance
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shall be appropriated as dividends to shareholeetis,cash dividends being at
least 1% of the total dividends. Amounts shall strithuted as stock dividends
when the price per share of cash dividend is leems $0.5 (in dollars).

On June 10, 2014, the Company’s shareholders atl@ptesolution to amend
the Company’s Articles of Incorporation. Accordittgthe amended Articles of
Incorporation, the Company operates in a volatilsifeess environment and is
in stable growth stage, the appropriation of eawmishould consider fund
requirements and capital budgets to decide how neachings will be kept or
distributed and how much cash dividends will berdiated. 10% of the annual
net income, after offsetting any loss of prior yeand paying all taxes and dues,
shall be set aside as legal reserve. The remair@hgcome is the distributable
net profit of this period, which is added to theappropriated retained earnings
from prior years to arrive at the accumulated dtistable net profit. After
considering business environment, future operatithesneed for reinvestment,
and so on, the Board of Directors will propose sohation for the distribution
of earnings which will be approved at the sharetidd meeting. The
distributable net profit shall be appropriated 5868%~100% of accumulated
distributable net profit will be appropriated asvidends and bonuses to
shareholders, with cash dividends being at leastof%he total dividends.
Amounts shall be distributed as stock dividends rwiiee price per share of
cash dividend is less than $0.5 (in dollars).

C. In accordance with the regulations, the Companyl seaaside special reserve
arising from the debit balance in other equity iseat the balance sheet date
before distributing earnings. When debit balanceother equity items is
reversed subsequently, an equal amount could thersédxd for distribution.

D. The Company recognized dividends distributed to eranamounting to
$696,436 ($7.40 dollars per share) and $445,9580%dollars per share) for
cash dividends; $9,411 ($0.10 dollars per shard)%$291 ($0.10 dollars per
share) for stock dividends for the years ended Dées 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. On February 22, 2016, the Company&ar8 of Directors
proposed that total dividends for the distributimihearnings for the year of
2015 was $838,441 ($8.80 dollars per share) foh cigidends and $9,528
($0.10 dollars per share) for stock dividends.

E. The information relating to employees’ remunerat{bonuses) and directors’
remuneration is described in Note 6 (17) Employeeefit expense.

(12) Operating revenue

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015  December 31, 2014
Merchandise sales $ 10,359,501 $ 8,848,504
License income 328,324 319,086
$ 10,687,825 $ 9,167,590
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(13) Other income

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Rental income $ 13,065 $ 12,202
Interest income:
Interest income from bank deposits 1,645 2,404
Other interest income 889 -
Other income 20,780 24,379
$ 36,379 $ 38,985
(14) Other gains and losses
Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

(Loss) gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment ($ 2,141) $ 13,375
Other losses ( 6,972) ( 2,826)
$ 9,113) $ 10,549

(15) Einance costs

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Interest expense:

Bank borrowings $ 7,564 $ 7,968
Less: capitalization of qualifying assets ( 548) 573)
$ 6,966 $ 7,395

(16) Expenses by nature

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Operating expense Operating expense

1,462,635 $ 1,274,560
349,820 $ 296,514

Employee benefit expense
Depreciation

& |
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(17) Employee benefit expense

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015  December 31, 2014
Operating expense Operating expense

Wages and salaries $ 1,216,736 $ 1,075,007
Labor and health insurance fees 126,868 101,882
Pension costs 61,622 49,747
Other personnel expenses o7,40¢ 47,92«

$ 1,462,635 $ 1,274,560

A. The Company had 4,347 and 3,609 employees fordaesyended December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively.

B. According to the Articles of Incorporation of theo@pany, when distributing
earnings, the remuneration to the directors shall exceed 6% of the
distributable net profit of this period and the bsrto employees shall not be
less than 0.1% of the distributable net profit bfstperiod. However, in
accordance with the Company Act amended on May@0D5, a company shall
distribute employee bonus, based on the currentsygaofit condition, in a
fixed amount or a proportion of profits. Qualifitat requirements of
employees, including the employees of subsidianiethe company meeting
certain specific requirements, entitled to recaa@ementioned stock or cash
may be specified in the Articles of Incorporatidine Board of Directors of the
Company has approved the amended Articles of Irmcatipn of the Company
on February 22, 2016. According to the amendedlesti a ratio of profit of the
current year distributable, after covering accuragda losses, shall be
distributed as employees’ compensation and dirgctemuneration. The ratio
shall not be lower than 5% for employees’ compeasaind shall not be higher
than 6% for directors' remuneration. The amendédies will be resolved in
the shareholders’ meeting in 2016.

C. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014pgees’ compensation
(bonuses) was accrued at $82,000 and $81,000,ctesghg; while directors'
remuneration was both accrued at $4,800. The afm#oned amounts were
recognized in salary expenses.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, employeagensation and directors’
remuneration were estimated and accrued basedeodistributable net profit
of 2015 calculated by the percentage prescribe@rutiee Company’s Articles
of Incorporation. The employees’ compensation amdctbrs’ remuneration
resolved by the Board of Directors were $82,000 $/@&00, respectively, and
the employees’ compensation will be distributeth form of shares.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, employeesuses and directors’
remuneration were accrued based on the after tanga of 2014, considering
legal reserve calculated by the percentage prestrimder the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation. Where the accrued ameunt employees’ bonuses
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and directors’ remuneration are different from #icgual distributed amounts as
resolved by the stockholders at their stockholderseting subsequently, the
differences are accounted for as changes in esgtandthe actual amount
approved at the shareholder's meeting for empldybesuses and directors’
remuneration for 2014 was the same as the estinaatedint recognized in the
2014 financial statements. The actual number ofreshadistributed as

employees’ bonuses for the year ended Decembe2(@¥ was 223 thousand
shares, which was calculated based on the markee girice of $362.9 (in

dollars) per share.

Information about the appropriation of employeesmpensation (bonuses) and
directors’ remuneration by the Company as propaseitie Board of Directors
and resolved by the shareholders during their mgetill be posted in the
“Market Observation Post System” at the websitthefTaiwan Stock
Exchange.

(18) Income tax

A.

Income tax expense:
a. Components of income tax expense:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015December 31, 2014

Current income tax:

Current tax on profits for the year $ 198,145 $ 169,016
Prior year income tax under (over)
estimate 312 ( 81)
Total current tax 198,457 168,935

Deferred income tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary

differences ( 1,687) ( 4,365)
Total deferred income tax ( 1,687) ( 4,365)
Income tax expense $ 196,770 $ 164,570

b. The income tax relating to components of other aamgnsive income is
as follows:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015December 31, 2014

Remeasurements on defined
benefit obligations $ 423) $ 675
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C.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and aticwmuprofit:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015December 31, 2014

Tax calculated based on profit before

tax and statutory tax rate $ 195,316 $ 159,479
Expenses disallowed by tax regulation 1,142 471
Prior year income tax under (over) estimate 312 ( 81)
10% tax on undistributed earnings - 4,701
Tax expense $ 196,770 $ 164,570

Amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities assalt of temporary differences
are as follows:

Year ended Decenber 31, 2

Recognised |
othel
Recognised Il comprehensiy
January 1  profit or loss income December 31
Temporary difference
- Deferred tax asse
Unrealized expense  $ 9,186 2,296 $ - $ 11,482
Pension 3,524 - 423 3,947
Unearned revenue 3,069 ( 318) - 2,751
15,779 1,978 423 18,180
- Deferred tax liabilities
Pension ( 2,574)( 291) - ( 2,865)
$ 13,205 $ 1,687 $ 423 $ 15,315

Year ended Decenber 31, 2!
Recognised in

other
Recognised it comprehensive

January 1  profit or loss income December 31

Temporary differences

- Deferred tax assets:
Unrealized expense  $ 5,765 3,421 $ - $ 9,186
Pension 1,917 2,282( 675) 3,524
Unearned revenue 1,833 1,236 - 3,069
9,515 6,939 ( 675) 15,779

- Deferred tax liabilities:

Pension - ( 2,574) - ( 2,574)
$ 9,515 $ 4,365 ($ 675) $ 13,205
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D. As of February 22, 2016, the Company’s income &rns through 2013 have
been assessed by the Tax Authority, and there weralisputes existing
between the Company and the Tax Authority.

E. Unappropriated retained earnings:
December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
Earnings generated in and after 1998 $ 953,167 $ 782,038

F. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the balancebeofmiputation tax credit
account were $106,595 and $118,575, respectively. dividends were
approved at the shareholders’ meeting on JuneQiy and June 10, 2014 with
the dividend distribution date set on August 1,2@hd August 1, 2014 by the
Board of Directors, respectively, the creditable tate for the unappropriated
retained earnings of 2014 and 2013 were 20.66%28B%, respectively. The
creditable tax rate for 2015 is expected to be Z&.5The creditable tax rate
will be based on the actual imputation tax credd@oaint on the distribution date
for the earnings of 2015; thus, the credit acconay be subject to appropriate
adjustments according to tax regulations.

(19) Earnings per share

For the year ended December 31, -

Weighted average
number of ordinary  Earnings per

Amount after shares outstanding share
tax (shares in thousan: (in dollars
Basic earnings per shi
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholdei® 952,145 95,179 $ 10.00
Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholdei® 952,145 95,179

Assumed conversion of all diluti

potential ordinary shares

Employees' bon - 379
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholc

plus assumed conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shar $ 952,145 95,558 $ 9.96
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For the year ended December 31, 2

Weighted average
number of ordinary  Earnings per

Amount after shares outstanding share
tax (shares in thousan: (in dollars
Basic earnings per shi
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholde® 772,462 94,892 $ 8.14
Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholdef 772,462 94,892

Assumed conversion of all diluti

potential ordinary shares

Employees' bon - 421
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholc

plus assumed conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shar $ 772,462 95,313 $ 8.10

A. As the Company may choose to distribute employleesus in the form of shares,
the calculation of diluted earnings per share sedaon the assumption that the
bonus would be issued in shares. When calculatimy diluted EPS, those
potential common shares that result in dilutiveeefffwould be included in the
calculation of the weighted-average outstanding mom shares during the
reporting period. When calculating the basic EPBe tweighted-average
outstanding common shares during the reportingpdas calculated based on the
actual amount of shares distributed as employeasu$ under the resolution at
the shareholders’ meeting. In addition, since timpleyees’ stock bonus is no
longer regarded as a distribution of stock dividgrtle Company did not adjust
the effects on the basic and diluted earnings Iparesretroactively.

B. The abovementioned weighted average number of anglghares outstanding has
been adjusted to unappropriated retained earnisgpr@portional increase in
capital for the year ended December 31, 2014.

(20) Operating leases

The Company has lease contracts with the key mamagieand non-related parties.

The lease terms are between 3 and 20 years. Aeadrbber 31, 2015 and 2014, the
amount of deposits paid in accordance with theeleamtracts was $203,793 and
$154,282, respectively and was classified as refoled deposits. The Company
recognized rental expenses of $688,887 and $574¢t4Bese leases in profit or loss

for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, resgecThe future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable apgrkgases are as follows:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Within 1 year $ 753,898 $ 608,267

Between 1 and 5 years 2,796,102 2,033,895

Over 5 years 2,964,343 1,986,235
$ 6,514,343 $ 4,628,397
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(21) Supplemental cash flow information

A. Investing activities with partial cash payments:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
a. Purchase of property, plant and equipmeht 775,321 597,030
Add: Beginning balance of payable on 90,390 114,053
equipment (Other payables)
Less: Ending balance of payable on ( 84,385) ( 90,390)
equipment (Other payables)
Capitalization of interest ( 598) 573)
Cash paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment $ 780,728 $ 620,120
Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
b. Disposal of property, plant and equipmerst 419 206,095
Add: Beginning balance of receivable on 143,000 -
land and buildings (Other
receivable
Less: Ending balance of receivable on
land and buildings (Other
receivable - ( 143,000)
Cash received from disposal of property,
plant and equipment $ 143,410 $ 63,095
B. Financing activities without cash payments:
Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Accrued employees' bonus exercised $ 81,000 $ 51,000

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) Significant transactions and balances with relatties

Rental expense

Year ended  Year ended
Determinatio Paymer December 3. December 31,

Leased subject of rental method 2015 2014
Key management Underground~6F., Negotiation  Monthly $ 3,000 $ 3,000
No. 74, Sec. 3, payment
Minzu Rd., West
Central Dist.,

Tainan City 700

For details on operating lease agreements, pledseto Note 6 (20) Operating leases.
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(2) Key management compensation

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits $ 18,242 $ 18,242
Post-employment benefits 216 216
$ 18,458 $ 18,458
8. PLEDGED ASSETS
The Company’s assets pledged as collateral ar@law/$:
Assets December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 Purpose of collateral
Demand deposits (Note) $ 5,000 - Performance guarante
Certificate of deposit (Note) 3,600 - Refundable deposits
$ 8,600 $ -

(Note) Classified as “Other current financial asseand “Other non-current financial
assets”.

9. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNFED
CONTRACT COMMITMENTS

(1) Capital expenditures contracted for but not yetiined

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Property, plant and equipment $ 62,077 $ 47,223

(2) For details on operating lease agreements, pledseto Note 6 (20) Operating leases.

10. SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSS

None.

11. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

None.
12. OTHERS

(1) Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capitaltarsafeguard the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern in ordepttovide returns for shareholders, and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to redtice cost of capital. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Camgpenay adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capitah&reholders, issue new shares or sell
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assets to reduce debit.

(2) Financial instruments

A. Fair value information of financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments not measurddiavalue (including cash
and cash equivalents, notes receivable, accoucgg/eble, other receivables,
other current financial assets, refundable depastiter non-current financial
assets, notes payable, accounts payable, otheblpaybong-term borrowings
(including current portion) and guarantee depasiteived) are based on their
book value as book value approximates fair valneaddition, the fair value
information of financial instruments measured atvalue is described in Note
12 (3) Fair value information.

B. Financial risk management policies

The Company adopts a comprehensive risk managesystém to identify all

risks (including market risk, credit risk and lidity risk) and to enable key
management to measure and control all risks. Tdragany’s objectives when
managing market risk are achieving optimal risk asype, maintaining
appropriate liquidity and managing all market risksitrally by taking economic
environment, competition and market risk effecbiatcount.

C. Significant financial risks and degrees of finahcisks
a. Market risk

l. Foreign exchange risk

Since the main transactions of the Company arerderaded in New
Taiwan dollars, the Company is not engaged in fpreexchange
contracts. Therefore, the Company is not exposedignificant
foreign exchange risk.

[I. Price risk

The Company is not engaged in any financial inséwntmor
derivatives investment, hence is not exposed tepisk.

[Il. Interest rate risk

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 20iterest rates on
borrowings had been 10% higher/lower with all othariables held
constant, post-tax profit for the years ended Ddxen31, 2015 and
2014 would have decreased/increased by $28 andr&g@Bectively,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expeosefloating rate
borrowings.

b. Creditrisk

l. Credit risk refers to the risk of financial lossttee Company arising
from default by the customers or counterparties fiolancial
instruments on the contractual obligations. Cregit arises mainly
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from cash and cash equivalents and deposits withsband financial
institutions, including outstanding receivables. r Fbanks and
financial institutions, only independently rated rtms with
distinguished rating are accepted.

I[I. For information of credit quality of the Companyisancial assets,
please refer to Note 6, Financial assets.

c. Liquidity risk

l. Cash flow forecasting is performed by the Compdimg Company’s
Finance Department monitors rolling forecasts a thompany’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficieceash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient headh on its
undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times that the
Company does not breach borrowing limits or covéngmwhere
applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.

I[I. The table below analyses the Company’s non-deveafinancial
liabilities and relevant maturity groupings basead the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contrantatalrity date. The

amounts disclosed in the table are the contractmdiscounted cash
flows.

Between1l Between2 More than

December 31, 2015 Less than 1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years
Notes payable $ 562,291% - $ -$ -
Accounts payable 1,010,818 - - -
Other payables 538,814 - - -
Long-term 334,633 212,668 130,611 -

borrowings

(including

current portior
Guarantee deposits - 5,026 - -

receive

Between1l Between2 More than

December 31, 2014 Less than 1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years
Notes payable $ 444,820% - $ -$ -
Accounts payable 927,106 - - -
Other payables 506,503 - - -
Long-term 268,185 170,526 30,408 -

borrowings

(including

current portior
Guarantee deposits - 3,133 - -

receive
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(3) Fair value information

The Company had no fair value financial instrumeagsof December 31, 2015 and
2014.

13. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

(1) Significant transaction information

(In accordance with the current regulatory requiets, the Company is only required
to disclose the information for the year ended Ddwer 31, 2015.)

A.

B.

J.

Loans to others: None.
Provision of endorsements and guarantee to otmevsded: None.

Holding of marketable securities at the end of fhexiod (not including
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures): None.

Marketable securities acquired and disposed obstisar prices of at least $300
million or 20% of paid-in capital: None.

Acquisition of real estate reaching $300 million 20% of paid-in capital or
more: Please refer to Table 1.

Disposal of real estate reaching $300 million o¥26f paid-in capital or more:
None.

Total purchases or sales of goods from or to rélpteties reaching $100 million
or 20% of the paid-in capital or more: None.

Receivables from related parties reaching $100ianilbr 20% of the paid-in
capital or more: None.

Derivative financial instruments undertaken: None.

Significant inter-company transactions: None.

(2) Disclosure information of investee company

(Only information for the year ended December 31,2is required to be disclosed.)

None.

(3) Disclosure information on indirect investments iaiMand China

(Only information for the year ended December 3,2is required to be disclosed.)

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had no invesisrin Mainland China.
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14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(1)

(@)

3)

General information

The Company operates business only in a singlestinduThe Company’s chief
operating decision-maker, who allocates resourcek assesses performance of the
Company as a whole, has identified that the Complaay only one reportable
operating segment.

Measurement of segment information

The Board of Directors evaluates the performandbebperating segments based on
a measure of EBIT. This measurement basis exchheesffects of non-recurring
earnings and expenditures from the operating setgméne accounting policies of the
operating segment are the same with Note (4) ofitencial Report.

Information about segment profit or loss, assets|@abilities

The segment information provided to the chief ofpegadecision-maker for the
reportable segments is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Retailing Retailing

Segment revenue

Revenue from external customers (net) $ 10,687,885 9,167,590
Depreciation 349,820 296,514
Finance cost 6,966 7,395
Segment pre-tax profit 1,148,915 937,032
Segment assets 5,669,727 4,890,987
Segment liabilities 2,932,987 2,488,889

A. The segment income or loss reported to the chiefatimg decision-maker is
measured in a manner consistent with that in theestent of comprehensive
income. A reconciliation of reportable segment meoor loss to the income
before tax for the years ended December 31, 20862814 is provided as

follows:
Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Reportable segments income $ 1,148,91% 937,032
Other - -
Profit before income tax from
continuing operations $ 1,148,91% 937,032
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B. The amounts provided to the chief operating dectsiaker with respect to total
assets are measured in a manner consistent witlftiize financial statements.
A reconciliation of assets of reportable segmenttatal assets is as follows:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Assets of reportable segments $ 5,669,737 4,890,987
Unamortised items - -
Total assets $ 5,669,727 $ 4,890,987

C. The amounts provided to the chief operating decisiaker with respect to total
liabilities are measured in a manner consistenh witat of the financial
statements. A reconciliation of assets of repoetaeigment and total liabilities is

as follows:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Liabilities of reportable segments $ 2,932,983 2,488,889
Unamortised items - -
Total liabilities $ 2,932,987 $ 2,488,889

(4) Information on product and service

Please refer to Note 6 (12) Operating revenuediated information

(5) Geographical information

Year ended December 31, 2015Year ended December 31, 2014

Non-current Non-current
Revenue assets Revenue assets
Taiwan $ 10,687,825 $ 1,921,647 $ 9,167,590 $ 1,522,101

(6) Major customer information

The Company's annual revenue from each customéndoyrears ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 did not reach morelf&mof the revenue on
the statement of comprehensive income.
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Poya International Co., Ltd.
Statement of Declaration of Internal Control
Date: March 28 2016

Poya International Co., Ltd. has conducted inteenalit in accordance with its Internal
Control Regulation covering the period from Janu#ifyto December 31 2015, and hereby
declares as follows:

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

The Company acknowledges and understands thagsthblishment, enforcement and
preservation of internal control system is the oesjibility of the Board and the
managers, and that the Company has already estdbksich system. The purpose it to
reasonably ensure the effect and efficiency of @@ (including profitability,
performance and security of assets), the religlolitfinancial reporting and the
compliance with relevant legal rules.

There is limitation inherent to internal controksym, no matter how perfect the design.
As such, effective internal control system may amelgsonably ensure the achievement
of the aforementioned goals. Further, the operaionronment and situation may vary,
and hence the effectiveness of the internal cangétem. The internal control system
of the Company features the self-monitoring mecraniOnce identified, any
shortcoming will be corrected immediately.

The Company judges the effectiveness of the inteararol system in design and
enforcement in accordance with the “Criteria far Establishment of Internal Control
System of Public Offering Companies” (hereinafeferred to as “the Criteria”). The
Criteria is instituted for judging the effectiveses the design and enforcement of
internal control system. There are five componehtffective internal control as
specified in the Criteria with which the proced{oeeffective internal control are
composed by five elements, namely, 1.control emwvivent, 2. Risk Evaluation, 3.
Control Operation, 4. Information and Communicatiand 5. Monitoring. Each of the
elements in turn contains certain audit items, grall be referred to the Criteria for
detail.

The Company has adopted the aforementioned inteomdéifol system for internal audit
on the effectiveness of the design and enforcewiethie internal control system.

Basing on the aforementioned audit findings, then@any holds that has reasonably
preserved the achievement of the aforementioneld gathin the aforementioned
period of internal control (including the monitagiover the subsidiaries), including the
effectiveness and efficiency in operation, religgpin financial reporting and
compliance with relevant legal rules, and thatdésign and enforcement of internal
control are effective.
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(6) This statement of declaration shall form an integeat of the annual report and
prospectus on the Company and will be announcedett is any fraud, concealment
and unlawful practice discovered in the conterthefaforementioned information, the
Company shall be liable to legal consequences ukdiete 20, Article 32, Article 171
and Article 174 of the Securities and Exchanges Act

(7) This statement of declaration has been approvetéBoard in a session held on
March 28, 2016 with the presence of 7 directorseunghanimous consent.

Chairman: Chen Jian-Zao (signature)

General Manager: Chen Zong-Cheng (signature)

Poya International Co., Ltd.
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IX. Address and telephone of corporate headquarters and

branches

Business unit Address
Headquarters in Tainaio.74, Sec. 3, Minzu Rd. West Central Dist. Tainan
Headquarters in Taipei: 4F., No.2, Fuxing N. RdoZgshan Dist., Taipei
Tainan Xiao Bei Branch: No. 169, Ximen Rd., SectignTainan
Taipei Yong He Branch: No. 239, Zhongzheng Rd.,gfenDist, New Taipei City
Chaunghua Yuan Lin Branch: No. 68, Sanmin St., Yoa@hanghua
Kaohsiung Feng Shan Branch: No. 138, ZhongshanAedgshan Dist., Kaohsiung
Tainan Dong Ning Branch: No. 229, Dongning Rd.n&ai
Taichung Feng Jia Branch: NO. 420, Fuxing Rd., Aang
Taichung 1st High School Branch: No. 22-4, TaipgRdy, Taichung
Taichung Wen Xin Branch: No. 597, Wenxin Rd. Settig, Beitun Dist., Taichung
Tainan Zhong Hua Branch: No. 273~275, Zhonghua EedstTainan
Kaohsiung Gang Shan Branch: No. 46, Minzu Rd., Ghag Dist., Kaohsiung
Nantou Cao Tun Branch: No. 117, Zhognshan St., @adantou
Tainan Yong Kang Branch: No. 106, Zhonghua Rd.,gkamg Dist., Tainan
Tainan Jian Kang Branch: No. 175, Zhonghua West 8&ttion |, South Dist., Tainan
Douliu Min Sheng Branch: No. 64, Zhongjian West,Rabuliu, Yunlin
Kaohsiung Da Chang Branch: No. 145, Dachang 2nd $&xhmin Dist., Kaohsiung
Dali Zhong Xing Branch: 1F, No.550, Zhongxing Recgon Il, Dali Dist., Taichung
Hualien Zhong Zheng Branch: No. 339-1, Zhongzhedg Rualien
Luodong Cang Qian Branch: No. 66, Canggian Rd.dong, Yilan
Jiali Yan Ping Branch: 1F, No. 91, Yanping Rd.)iIast., Tainan
Chiayi Cui Yang Branch: No. 459, Cuiyang Rd., Chiay
Pingtung Zi You Branch: No. 21, Taiyuan 1st Rdnd®iing, Pingtung
Xinying Min Zhi Branch: No. 227, Minzhi Rd., XinyqDist., Tainan
Nantou Da Tong Branch: No. 70, Datong South Stntdbia Nantou
Kaohsiung You Chang Branch: 1F, No. 645, Houchatdg Rioying Dist., Kaohsiung
Taitung Zhong Hua Branch: 1F, NO. 513, ZhonghuaSattion I, Taitung, Taitung
Taichung Da Dun Branch: No. 466, Dadun Rd., Namist., Taichung
Chaozhou Xin Sheng Branch: 1F, NO. 117, Xinsheng @daozhou, Pingtung
Hualien Zhong Shan Branch: No. 269, Zhongshan Rahlien, Hualien
Taipei Min Sheng Branch: No. 163-1, Minsheng East &ction V, Songshan Dist, Taipei
Fengyuan Fu Qian Branch: 1F, No. 39, Fugian Shg¥ang Li, Fengyuan, Taichung
Kaohsiung Wu Jia Branch: NO. 381, Wujia 2nd Rdnd&han Dist., Kaohsiung
Miaoli Min Zu Branch: No. 59, Minzu Rd., Miaoli, Moli
Pingtung Min Sheng Branch: No. 248, Minsheng Rihgfng, Pingtung
Yunlin Hu Wei Branch: No. 105-1, Heping Rd., Huwéijin
Taichung Xue Shi Branch: No. 175, Xueshi Rd., N@tst., Taichung
Shulin Zhongshan Branch: 1F, NO. 1Zhongshan Rd,. Section I, Shulin Dist, New Taipity C
Xizhi Zhong Xing Branch: NO. 195, Zhongxing Rd. zKi Dist., New Taipei City
Toufen Zhong Hua Branch: No. 1167, Zhonghua Rdif&iim, Miaoli
Longtan Zhong Zheng Branch: No. 222, Zhongzheng Rzhgtan, Taoyuan
Xiaogang Han Min Branch: No. 206, Hanmin Rd., Xiang Dist., Kaohsiung
Yonghe Zhong Shan Branch: No. 1Zhongshan Rd. Section |, Yonghe Dist., New Taipgt C
Changhua Lu Gang Branch: No. 322, Fuxing Rd., Lgg&hanghua
Zhongli Zhong Yuan Branch: No. 55, Zhongbei Rd.o@dli, Zhongli
Nantou Pu Li Branch: No., 24, ZhognshdfRd., Puli, Nantou
Taoyuan Nan Ping Branch: No. 399, Nanping Rd., Tlaay Taoyuan
Xinzhuang Xin Tai Branch: No. 300, Xintai Rd., Xmzmng Dist., New Taipei City
Yunlin Bei Gang Branch: No. 62, Huanan Rd., Guargdfu.ugang, Yulin
Pingtung Dong Gang Branch: No. 316, Zhongzheng3edtion | , Donggang, Pingtung
Douliu Station Branch: No. 159, Minsheng Rd., DopNunlin
Taichung Tan Zi Branch: No. 2, Lane 99, Yatan Rett®n |, Tanzi Dist., Taichung
Yilan Station Branch: No. 6, Guangfu Rd., Yilanlari
Fenshan Qing Nian Branch: No. 471, Qingni&hR&l., Fenshan Dist., Kaohsiung
Keelung Dong Ming Branch: No. 177, Dongming Rd, ¥ibist, Keelung
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Telephone
Telephone: (06)241-1000
Telephone: (02)8772-8688
Telephone: (06)281-7806
Telephone: (02)8941-7717
Telephone: (04)837-9800
Telephone: (07)747-7000
Telephone: (06)275-5933
Telephone: (04)2708-2007
Telephone: (04)2221-1023
Telephone: (04)2247-0011
Telephone: (06)260-1100
Telephone: (07)625-0022
Telephone: (049)230-2000
Telephone: (06)311-2111
Telephone: (06)292-0202
Telephone: (05)533-5050
Telephone: (07)394-3300
Telephone: (04)2481-8181
Telephone: (03)834-3322
Telephone: (03)955-1010
Telephone: (06)723-7700
Telephone: (05)216-6161
Telephone: (08)766-0202
Telephone: (06)656-6611
Telephone: (049)222-5200
Telephone: (07)363-6767
Telephone: (089)337-070
Telephone: (04)2328-2118
Telephone: (08)788-7700
Telephone: (03)831-6666
Telephone :(02)8787-9900
Telephone: (04)2524-4000
Telephone: (07)727-2111
Telephone: (037)380-808
Telephone: (08)765-5500
Telephone: (05)633-8811
Telephone: (04)2203-2000
Telephone: (02)2686-0022
Telephone: (02)2692-4444
Telephone: (037)670-033
Telephone: (03)470-0717
Telephone: (07)802-0033
Telephone: (02)2920-2727
Telephone: (04)775-0777
Telephone: (03)438-0505
Telephone: (049)298-6060
Telephone: (03)326-1100
Telephone: (02)2991-4000
Telephone: (05)783-6363
Telephone: (08)831-0101
Telephone: (05)537-0033
Telephone: (04)253-20000
Telephone: (03)936-0505
Telephone: (07)767-6262
Telephone: (02)2468-0066



Business unit Address
Sanxia Zhong Hua Branch: 1F, No. 20, Zhonghua 8ahxia Dist., New Taipei City
Tainan Hai Tian Branch: 1F, No. 120, Haitian Rdct®m |, Annan Dist., Tainan
Tainan Shan Hua Branch: No. 472, Zhongzheng R@nl8a Dist., Tainan
Taoyuan Ba De Branch: No. 126,Sec. 2, JieshouBRdle, Taoyuan
Bangiao Chong Qing Branch: 1F, No. 247, Chongqidg Rangiao, New Taipei City
Taichung Mei Cun South Branch: No. 70, Meichun 8drdl., South Dist., Taichung
Zhubei San Min 1 Branch: No. 202, Sanmin Rd., Zhubei, Hsinchu
Daya Zhong Qing Branch: No.1171, Sec. 3, Zhongfldg Daya Dist., Taichung
Tainan Ma Dou Branch: No. 22-1, Bo'ai Rd., MadostiTainan
Yingge Jian Guo Branch: No., 280, Jianguo Rd., ;d\New Taipei City
Neili Zhong Xiao Branch: No. 74, Zhongxiao Rd., Zlgl, Taoyuan
Kaohsiung Rui Long Branch: No. 459, Ruilong Rd.aqZhen Dist., Kaohsiung
Taichung Wu Feng Branch: No., 1095, Zhongzheng Wdfeng Dist., Taichung
Zhunan Bo Ai Branch: No. 281, Bo’ai St., Zhunan gili
Hsinchu Dong Men Branch: No. 73, Fuxing Rd., Hsinch
Xinzhuang Long An Branch: No.252-1, Longan Rd.,2finang Dist., New Taipei City
Linkou Ren Ai Branch: No. 2, Yulin St., Linkoou, WeTaipei City
Hsinchu Hu Kou Branch: No. 23, Zhongxiao Rd., Hukidginchu
Tainan Gui Ren Branch: No. 133, Zhongshan Rd. &e¢ti, Guiren Dist., Tainan
Taoyuan Da You Branch: NO. 586, Dayou Rd., Taoy@ianyuan
Nantou Zhu Shan Branch: No.89, Dali Rd., Zhushamtbiu
Kaohsiung Da Shun Branch: No. 110, DashirR8., Yaling Dist., Kaohsiung
Changhua Bei Dou Branch: No. 313, Fuxing Rd., Bejdchanghua
Taichung Jing Wu East Branch: No. 97, Jingwu Eabt Rast Dist., Taichung
Bangiao Xin Hai Branch: No. 93, Xinhai Rd., Banqi&lzw Taipei City
Kaohsiung Qi Shan Branch: No. 7-17, Dongxin Stsh@n Dist., Kaohsiung
Hsinchu Jing Guo Branch: No. 820, Jinguo Rd., $edti Hsinchu
Zhudong Chang Chun Branch: No. 100, Changchun Betid I, Zhudong, Hsinchu
Dali Cheng Gong Branch: No.23, ChenggofigrR., Dali Dist., Taichung
Taichung Song Zhu Branch: No. 168, Songzhu Rd.i@edt Beitun Dist., Taichung
Guishan Wen Hua Branch: No. 26, Wenh{faRd., Guishan, Taoyuan
Kaohsiung Minsheng Branch: No. 1, MinshefigRd., Xinxing Dist., Kaohsiung
Taitung Xin Sheng Branch: No., 201, Xinsheng Rditung, Taitung
Nanmiao Zhong Zheng Branch: No. 929, Zhongzheng Ridoli, Miaoli
Taichung Li Ming Branch: No. 726, Datun".8t., Nantun Dist., Taichung
Sanxia Wenhua Branch: No.59, Wenhua Rd., Sanxig, Disw Taipei City
Chiayi Minxiong Branch: No.48, Shengping Rd., Miomg Township, Chiayi
Taichung Dongshi Branch: No.558, Fengshi Rd., DbnBsst., Taichung
Xinying Zhongshan Branch: No.113, Zhongshan Rdaylfig Dist., Tainan
Pingtung Fengjia Branch: No.60, Fengjia Rd., PingtCity, Pingtung
Zhubei Guangming Branch: No.7, Guangming 3rd Rdub&i City, Hsinchu
Changhua Minzu Branch: No.221, Minzu Rd., ChangBityy Changhua
Taoyuan Dayuan Branch: No.99, Zhongzheng E. RdyuBaTownship, Taoyuan
Yuanlin Zhongzheng Branch: No.672, Zhongzheng Raanlin Township, Changhua
Tainan Jinhua Branch: No0.168, Sec. 3, Jinhua Rdst\Wentral Dist., Tainan
Bangiao Nanya Branch: No.55, Sec. 1, Nanya S.Bahgiao Dist., New Taipei City
Kaohsiung Linyuan Branch: No.46, Ren’ai Rd., Linguaist., Kaohsiung
Tainan Zhongzheng Branch: No.246, Zhongzheng Rdst\Wentral Dist., Tainan
Changhua Jinma Branch: No.1, Sec. 2, Jinma Rdn@he City, Changhua
Penghu Beichen Branch: No.8, Beichen St., Magomyg Benghu
Hsinchu Xuefu Branch: No.130, Xuefu St., Xinfengnfship, Hsinchu
Kaohsiung Xintian Branch: No.168, Xintian Rd., Xing Dist., Kaohsiung
Taichung Hankou Branch: No.313, Sec. 4, Hankou Rdrth Dist., Taichung
Huwei Linsen Branch: No.154, Sec. 2, Linsen Rd.wEiurownship, Yunlin
Changhua Shengang Branch: No.55, Xinyi Rd., Shepgawnship, Changhua
Yunlin Mailiao Branch: No.377, Zhongshan Rd., Ma&iliTownship, Yunlin

Tianzhong Zhongzhou Branch: No.123, Sec. 1, Zhomg#d., Tianzhong Township, Changhua

Taoyuan Zhongzheng Branch: 2F., No.60, ZhongzhehgTRoyuan Dist., Taoyuan
Toufen Shangshun Branch: No.103, Zhongyang Rd fefo@ity, Miaoli

Kaohsiung Dream Mall Branch7F., No.789, ZhonghdeFad., Qianzhen Dist., Kaohsiung

Zuoying Hua Xia Branch:No0.636, Huaxia Rd., Zuoyiigt., Kaohsiung
Gangshan Liugiao Branch:No.2, Liugiao W. Rd., GéagsDist., Kaohsiung
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Telephone
Telephone: (02)8674-2121
Telephone: (06)350-0011
Telephone: (06)583-0000
Telephone: (03)371-3838
Telephone: (02)2958-1818
Telephone: (04)226-03388
Telephone: (03)555-6222
Telephone: (04)256-60202
Telephone: (06)571-2211
Telephone: (02)2677-4488
Telephone: (03)435-5000
Telephone: (07)713-0011
Telephone: (04)233-21333
Telephone: (037)481-414
Telephone: (03)523-2200
Telephone: (02)2202-1000
Telephone :(02)8601-9191
Telephone: (03)590-6363
Telephone: (06)338-8000
Telephone: (03)316-0111
Telephone: (049)266-2200
Telephone: (07)713-1111
Telephone: (04)888-2020
Telephone: (04)2211-9292
Telephone: (02)2250-7766
Telephone: (07)662-2626
Telephone: (03)542-1616
Telephone: (03)595-3322
Telephone: (04)2493-7373
Telephone: (04)2242-2211
Telephone: (03)327-5050
Telephone: (07)229-9090
Telephone: (089)322-211
Telephone: (037)361-333
Telephone: (04)2254-3377
Telephone: (02)26729911
Telephone: (05)2066677
Telephone: (04)25771717
Telephone: (06)6333322
Telephone: (08)7346633
Telephone: (03)5510055
Telephone: (04)7277722
Telephone: (03)3862266
Telephone: (04)8337788
Telephone: (06)2207373
Telephone: (02)29688555
Telephone: (07)6433366
Telephone: (06)2240666
Telephone: (04)7367755
Telephone: (06)9279911
Telephone: (03)5575999
Telephone: (07)2822277
Telephone: (04)22376767
Telephone: (05)6366633
Telephone: (04)7982626
Telephone: (05)6937733
Telephone: (04)8752266
Telephone: (03)3386565
Telephone: (037)682929
Telephone: (07)8232266
Telephone: (07)3495522
Telephone: (07)6253366



Business unit Address
Shalu Guanhua Branch: No.308-5, Guanghua Rd., $¥iaty Taichung
Fengyuan Xiangyang Branch: No.227, Xiangyang Reingyuan Dist., Taichung
YongKang Zhongzheng Branch: No.646, ZhongzhengdS. Yvngkang Dist., Tainan
Kaohsiung San Duo Branch:No.225, Sanduo 3rd Rénfien Dist., Kaohsiung
Kaohsiung Mingchen Branch: No.369, Mingcheng 2nd Rdoying Dist., Kaohsiung
Wugu Gongshang Branch: No.90, Gongshang Rd., Wusfu, Dlew Taipei City
Tucheng Yumin Branch: No.165, Yumin Rd., TuchengtDiNew Taipei City
Tamsui Zhongshan Branch: No.96, Sec. 2, Zhongshd®dl Tamsui Dist., New Taipei City
Taichung Henan Branch: No.466, Sec. 2, Henan Rtun)Dist., Taichung
Dajia Yude Branch: No.228, Yude Rd., Dajia Disaichung
Gangshan Zhongshan N. Branch: No.79, ZhongshardN.Gangshan Dist., Kaohsiung
Xiluo Gongzheng Branch: No.137, Gongzheng Rd., Xifownship, Yunlin
Kaohsiung Wannei Branch: No.63, Dashun 2nd Rd.irabist., Kaohsiung
Taoyuan Pingzhen Branch: No.71, Sec. 3, HuannanHRtyzhen Dist., Taoyuan
Xizhi Farglory Branch: 2F., N0.97, Sec. 1, Xint#h d., Xizhi Dist., New Taipei City
Taoyuan Daxing Branch: No.175, Sec. 1, Daxing W, Raoyuan Dist., Taoyuan
Tainan Wenxian Branch: No.112, Wenxian Rd., Norist DTainan
Sanchong Renai Branch: Aly. 6, Ln. 255, Xiwei Sanchong Dist., New Taipei City
Zhubei Zigiang Branch: No.107, Zigiang S. Rd., Z&iuBity, Hsinchu
Taipei Dongmen Branch: B1F., N0.230, Sec. 2, XRgi, Da’an Dist., Taipei
Nanzi Dexian Branch: No.211, Dexian Rd., Nanzi Disaohsiung
Changhua Xihu Branch: No.312, Donghuan Rd., Xihwiship, Changhua
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Telephone
Telephone: (04)26626633
Telephone: (04)25151155
Telephone: (06)2542255
Telephone: (07)3352266
Telephone: (07)5507722
Telephone: (02)22929933
Telephone: (02)22647272
Telephone: (02)26230303
Telephone: (04)27076688
Telephone: (04)26882266
Telephone: (07)6246633
Telephone: (05)5870077
Telephone: (07)3841616
Telephone: (03)4687676
Telephone: (02)26973737
Telephone: (03)3169777
Telephone: (06)2502929
Telephone: (02)29810101
Telephone: (03)5506262
Telephone: (02)23956677
Telephone: (07)3602266
Telephone: (04)8610011



